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KEY HIGHLIGHTS

« Sporfs Refail gross margin increased by 170 bps to 44.6%

» Group underlying EBITOA incieased by 15.7% to £383.2m ™
» |Underbying profit before tax up 20.5% to £300.3m"

o [inderlying free cosh gencration of £301.8m

* Sports Retail like-forlike stores gross coniribution incrensed
by 7.4% (FY14: 10.5%)®

* (ontinued rolkout of large format city cenire stores
* Successful UK launch of Click and Collect in FY15 HZ
* Record EBITDA achieved v. 4th yeor Share Scheme torget

® Nei debt decrensed to £59.7m™

¢ undardyng EBITDA (before
coIpalGhian lox paid.

(3) Lachudes n e Sport Byt and Sports Expaits A (£AG) and Spextiand |
(SI6} o5 the g crapuvalive is nat a ful year

(4 Her dabt is bosrowings less cash keld

GROUP REVENUE +4.7 %

April 15 £2,832.6m

Aprit 14 £2.706.0m
April 13 22,185.6m

Apil 12 21,807 2m

April 11 £1,599.2m

UNDERLYING EBITDA +1 5.7 %

April 15 £383.2m
Aprit 14 £331.1m
Apit 13 £287.9m

hprit 12 £735.7m

April 11 £211.0m

REPORTED PBT +30.9%

April 15 £313.4m

Aarl 14 £239.5m

Aol 13 £207 Zm

hpil 12 £148.0m

Apil 11 £118.8m

UNDERLYING EPS +2] .2°/o

Apsil 15 38.9
April 14

pil 13

Apiil 12

Bpeil 11




“The Group hos dehvered another solid set of results i spite of chellenging troding
condions including the adverse impact on performance duning the penod of
England’s eorly departure from the FIFA World Cup in Brazil ond unseasonably
mild weather dunng autumn, reducng footfall

“However, with our ongoing focus on providing customers with exceptional quality
and unbeatable value, we hove continued to grow Group revenues ond EBITDA
and hove succeeded in surpassing our fourth ond fingl EBITDA target under the
2011 Share Scheme The first of these awards will vest with participants 1
September 2015 ond the second n Saptember 2017 We owe our contyed
success to the commitment and hard work of those parhicpants and we are
dehghted that we are able to reward them in this woy

“Troding since the period end has been i hine with management expectations
and will continue to be drven by improvements in product range and avarlabilify,
optimisation of both our in-store and web offenngs, the introduction of Click and
Collect in the UK and further investment in our store portfoli

Dave Forsey
Chief Executive

16 luly 2015
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EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
SPORTS DIRECT NATIONAL DISTRIBUTION CENTRE, SHIREBROOK

Phase Three of the exponsion of aur Netional Distbution Centre in Shirebrook, the construchion of an addifonol ¢ 700,000 sq ft
warehouse and office faalty, 1s now well underway, with complenion scheduled for late 2015

We have also commenced work on an oddifonal retail unit and training centre at our Shirebrook compus, with completion also enticipated
forlate 2015 These exponsions will have a range of benefits for the Group, including an improved environment for staff training

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING

SPORTS DIRECT com

BUILDING ELECTRICAL DATA

29,000 m® Concrete 60 km Cable 28 km Fibre ophic cable

3,600 tonnes Steehwork 30 km Lighting bus-bar 250 km Category 6 dota cable
68,000 m? Root dadding 11,000 Light fithings 3,000 Informanon outlets
21,000 m? Wall cledding 7 km Cabling conteinment

8 km Pipework 14km Fire glom pipework

15 km Building perimeter
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EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
GROUP BRANDS

Karnmor launched therr new mutichennel unming

campasgn, with predorminant focus on TV, digita!, and

istore channels, fo comade with the world rengwaed

London Marothon The campoign focused on the laest

rwening apparef and foctwear but also contrbuted ro the >I 74
launch of the new Kornmor Elite runing app 2014 ako 1 I N
sow Kormmor expond thew ambassader fmewp by ogresmg karrimor
0 thiee year deal with Countryfile presenter Helen Skelton

ond resigning Olympec Gold Medalhst Jomes Crocknedl for

0 further two years

Throughout the year Lonsdale hos confinued fo go from
strength to strength, fusther establstng its posihan n the
fight sports market The Lonsdale brand has been shawcased
ot vanous evenis such os BAMMA and the Queensbury

n Boxing League IF was akso @ main sponsor ot one of the
SDALE biggast fights of 2014 which sow tonsdole’s feading brond
e ambassador Codl Froch knack out George Groves in front of

80,000 ot Wembtay Stadum The poy per view event was
wiewsd by milions ocross the globe Furthermare, Lonsdale
signed hoxer Nothan Cleverly for a thiee vear deaf which wil
carry the parmarship nfo 2017

USA Pro launched its new “lom Our Movement’ compaign

which focused on vibrant hero prnts and demonstrated the

denth ard fireadth of the US4 Pro collection The compmign

fentured women at the top of their gome to show that USA

Pra 15 not (ust 0 stylish ftness brand Launched in USC end

Sports Direct ocross o number of chaanels including TV, USA PRO
retoil end digitel, the ‘Jorm Our Mevement’ campoign s o

perfect reflection of how USA Pre s continuing fo expand

its praduct offenng ond mcrease its dominance m the

female finess markat

Slozenger and The Chuménonshlps, Wimbledon agreed 10
extend ther IunEesT standing sporting sponsarship n the s Efii
history of spert for o funther three year term whuch will toke

the pvernll agreement to 16 yeors The parmershup 15 o

perfect reflechion of the prestige and Iongevug of the brand

and the extension will continue to showcase Slazenger
lazenger wasldwide on the biggest stage there s

Also this yeor, Sluzengers cacket embassador, England

fast bowder limmy Anderson, surpossed Sir lan Botham as

Englond’s “oliime tesi wcket foker” with fus 384th wicket in
fus 100th match




EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
PARTNER BRANDS

Followng the successful lounch of Nike's MPT {market ploce
tnsformation) orea i our Shirebrook store n FY14, we
decded to lead our new Oxford Street flagship store ot the
begl]l'lﬂlﬂg of FY15 with on impressive Nike men's rmmmg gied
i the entrance The Nike area and oversll store merchondising
stondands and customes seraice hove been maintomed fo o
very hugh standard since opening ond bath busmesses are
pleased with the feedback and ma! results We have shared
nlans 1o roll out further Nike branded areas i our farge formot
ity cenfre stores ond will continug 1o work dlosely with owr
Nike team i Shirehrook i develo‘:mg praduct and retoil
solunans to gve our customers enhanced shopping expenences
thraughout our store portfalio

We see the Under Armous brond ¢s 3 significant
future pariner for the Sporss Direct business and
i FY15 committed to o long ferm ot business
ﬂlun In July 2015 we ogened 03,000sq f
Inder Armour “shop in s ? 1n DUT recen

refurhished ond extended Glosgow City Centie
store on Argyle Street We are planning odéiional
space for the Under Armour brond os 1t qrows

UNDER ARMOUR- 4 pogulonty in the new lurge format aty centre
stores as they roll out 1n addihon to ths, 200
stores will plso feature bespoke Under Asmour
base [oyer fixiures by the end of the 2015
twlendar year

The adidos Group bos committed to mvesting several milkan pounds with
Sports Direct across FY14 to build upon the repostioming wark storted

i FY15 To dote thes hos included two ol doot (Sports Direct) wandow
rnarkenn% compmgns, 0 170 door rofl aut of o new footbiall Bochioom parel
concept, branded space in key locotion doors ond continued marketing
support {Ulira Boost} for the Swentshop business ln FY16 Sports Direct wall
be o key partner for thew new football silo lounch “Ace v X' including enather
alt doos window compoign and Bootroom update There are olso plans to roll
out refreshed fxtuses for men’s apporet across the wider estate and o more
focused Manchester United lounch in oppropnate stores The adidas Group

t5 also investing m a much lorger showreem space ot eur Shutebrook Head
Qffice which will feature o stalf training facility ond o dedicated space for the
Reehok hrand which we ora efso planrung 0 tnal with some branded appore!
spoce In key doors 1n FY16

Pumg contnue to be o key sttegue portner for the Sports
Direct business and in FY15 cemented thexr strateqic
wvestments m the foothall category by rolling out 150

Bootraom centre panels 1o showcose their new boot
\( concepts which wos supperted by on extenswve gesod of
I] “ m “ stoft tmmm% They are akso takiag o significantly lorger
] office and showsoom space n our Sturebrook Head
Office and hove nvested in o dedicated retal specielist

1o monage their branded spoce rofl out ond assoriment
planning progess

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING...

SPORTS DIRECT.com
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EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
SPORTS DIRECT FITNESS

SPORTSDIRECT

Busing the yaae, the Group entared sha fitness industry with the davelopment

of Spontsdirac! Fitness.com, comprising 25 standolone gyms purchased from:

LA Fitness ond an additional two naw buld combined reioit and gym spoces. A
fusiher fwro gyms in St Helans and Dundee a+e planned for eory ouruma 201 5.
thembership continues 1o grow and we have olready surpassed our full yeor
Tuigeis.

SPORTSDIRECT FITNESS.COM AINTREE




EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
MEGASTORES

i 7 £
g
[

GLASGOW, ARGYLE STREET BEFORE AND AFTER

Wa hove worked hard 10 improve and invest in our store portiofie during the
yeas, with a particutar focus on oiger city cenire stozes. During the year we
refocated our Oxford Streer stor 1o 3he ¢ 50,000 sq. f1. formes H4AV store and
have completed o ¢.30,000 sq. fi. extension of our Glasgow store. Ve hove
recentty also acquired the fiechold of 1he former Pramark stose in Leeds. Viorks
ore turrently undzrsay on this four flogr, ¢.50,000 sq. fr. store which s dus 10
open ihis summes,

MEGASTORES OPEN

SHIREBROGK - €.57,000 SO. F1.
0XFORD STREET - £.50,000 50. F1.
AINTREE - C.40,000 S0. F1.
GLASGOW ARGYLE - .50,000 50, 1.
{EEDS - €.50,000 5. f1.

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING.

SPORTSDIRECT .com
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SPORTS DIRECT AT A GLANCE

The Group operates through three strategic business segments Sports Retoil, Premum Ufestyle and Brands

PORTS RETA 85% TOTAL REVENUE £2,398.6m Up 5.5%

The Group's Sports Retal dwrsion supphes o wide range of sports and lessure equipment, across an aray of global brands,
mchuding Group owned brands such s Dunlop, Slozenger and Lonsdale, tturd party and icensedin bionds Thes wide
ronge of products, combined with exfremely competitive pricng, attracts customers fo both our stores and website in ever
mereasing numbers

As ot 26 Apiit 2015 Sports Retcil operoied out of 661 stores m the UK and the rest of Europe {excluding Northem
Irelond) The mojonty of stores trode under the SPORTSDIRECT com foscis

Wa conimnue to expand and develop our stores, with sevesol relocanons faking place in the yeor into lorger and better
configured space, so thot we are better able to serve the needs of eur axsfomers Yavestment hos also conhnued i
specalist performonce areas, with wisugl merchandising improving across the whole of the division

In Europe, the Group's growih hos contwsed, wath our products being offered vio wholly-owned retoil outles, jont
ventures with other retolers and stores wathin another retaller’s store We have continued the integranion of the secenty
acquied Sport Eybl ond Sports Experts AG (FAB), and over the coming year will rebrond key Eybl Megustores to the
billywhites fasan

Bunng the year, os part of our Furopean growih programme, we increased our Eurapeon store porfolio by nime stores and
entered one new country, with the opening of our Bern store in Switzedand Our strategy remains fo wenndy parters in
niew temtones wiile continumg to expand our operations m the counines where we currently trode

Our online safes contnus fo ncrease, enhanced in the year by the successful ntroduchon of UK Click ond Collect ond the
development of a streamined chackaut process

PREMIUM LIFESTYLE 7% TOTAL REVENUE

Rohonalisshion of the diwision has token place throughout the year, mcfuding the closure of loss making stoses, the
mitgenon of opesating costs and the relocation of back-office funcrons

The Premum Lifastyle division 1s o must for those fostron canscious shappers wha demand higvend and on trend apparel
The divsion centres on contemporary luxury with o Brand focus, and leading stocked brands include Peul Smith, Fendi
ond Alexander Mcueen The division enobles customers to express ther indraduality, with new collechons regularty being
added Recent addihoas melude White Premiota, Corven ond Canado Goose

BRAND 8% TOTAL REVENUE

The Brands dwision hcenses our brands to partess pcross the world thraugh o commirted netwoek of licensing and
distmbution portmers The umque, miegrated epproach to brond monagement ersures consstency, and encourages
confinuol mestment ond globol success for the brands

Facus on ous brands s maintoined through sponsosstup of fugheprofidle media personalities, events, teams ond venues
Bolddog, o motarcycle disploy ream moda fumous in the 2014 senes of Brioin's Got Telent, ore o secent oddinon to the
No Fear brond, ond Sno Zone m Reading 1s o winter sports venue wich s spomsored by aur Newea brand The Slazenger
brond hos recently signed o renewal sponsorshup of The Championshyps, Wimbledon Stazenger hos sponsored the event
smee 1902, makmg s one of the longest partmerships 1 sporting hustory




SPORTS STORES ACROSS EUROPE

Note Includes ossaontes miceland, Republic of lselond and Northern ireland thar trade under the SPORTSDIRECT com fustin

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING...

SPORTSDIRECT com
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

{ am pleosed to report the Group hos once agam achieved another sohd result, delivenng growth in both Group revenues and EBITDA.

EXPANSION

The construciion of Phose Three of our Shirebrook campus expansion 15 now well underway It consists of on oddinonal warehouse and office foctliry, spanning @ ¢ 700,000 sg f
footpnnt Occupancy of the fisst warehouse oren 15 obout to commence, with populahon of the remaining areos of the warehouse planned for laser n 2015, on schedule We have oko
commenced work on an addinonal setml unit and fraiung centre at our Shirebrook cempus, with complenon anhicipoted for lare 2015 The expnsions will have a ronge of benekts for the
Group, mcluding on improved environment for stoff traning

Our Dxford Street store has now been apen for over 12 months and hos besn welkreceved by both customers and supphers The propenty, which was the former HMY Flogship store,
allows us to trode over four floors, with ¢ 50,000 s ft of retod space Our Glosgow City Centre store has undergone on extension of opproximately 28,000 sq ft, more than doubling
11s prewsous footpnnt and we hove colloborated with Under Armour to offer our customers on exceptional shopping esronment We have also recently acquired the freghold of the

¢ 50,000 59 fi former Pnmark store m Leeds, whuch s expected to open ths summer

We gre corfident in the success of the format used i the stores, which we intend to roll out further

Our Fimess dmwsion now has 27 fully operanonal gyms acrass England Dunng the year the Group purchsed 25 former LA Fitness gyms, and developed on eddinonol two gyms with
seporate retal premises, ensunng that customers can purchase thewr everydoy gym essennals on site

STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS
Strategic Investmends are an msegral part of the Board strategy to explore new oppartunhes to bng our product to morker

The Group enhanced 115 relchonship with Debenhams dunng the year with the purchase of an oddihonal strotegic investment in the business, increasing our beneficial mferest from 6 6%
10 15 0% of the year end date of 26 Apnl 2015, which hos subsequently reduced since the yeor end 1o 10 5% We are cumently tmalling four concessions withen Debenhams stores

SHARE SCHEMES

[ om pleased to confirm that we have achieved the fingl Adwsted Underlying EBITDA torget under the 2011 Shore Scheme and Executve Share Scheme We hope to reward
participohing employees under the 2011 Share Scheme for thewr loyaliy ang mofrvanon by way of share owords The first awsrd under the 2011 Share Scheme ss due to vest later in
2015, which will dstebute ¢ Sm shores to ¢ 2,000 partcipating employees The Group's Share Schermes are some of the mast genesous schemes in the country, and ore key fook n
motivation ond retention

2009 SCHEME 2009 & 2011 ScHEME TARGETS [

2009 & 2011 SCHEME ACHIEVED |:|

2015 SCHEME TARGETS [}
2011 SCHEME

Fris RSO L

I £420m*
Gl £570m

2015 SCHEME

Gy £650m

By £750m

*Prapased revised FY15 forget under the 2015 Shore Scheme Shareholdes approval fo amend shs forget from £480m to £420m will be sought of the AGM on 7 Segtember 2015




To the extent thot o signficont sumber of porticipahng employees elect to sell some or off of thes shares, whulst the Company hos no obligatian to buy back the sheres, the Board will
consider o number of ophans open fo 1, ncluding whether to. (1} implement an on-market buy back of shares pursuant to the outhonty given by shareholders ot the {ompany's AGM

tn 2014, or fu} fund the Company's Employes Benehit Trust so o fo ollow 1t to pequire shores m the market to replace those shares transferred fo particpating employess pursuant to
the vestng

A port of our strtegy to closely afign the interests of our tesm with those of our sharcholders, the 2015 Share Scheme was approved by shareholders of o General Meening in July
2014 The vesting of awards under the 2015 Shore Scheme i condihonal upon the actuevement by the Group of four demanding EBITBA targets, which span between FY16 ond FY19
The owards will vest m 2079 ond 2021, subgect to successful completion of oll four torgers, ond other specific performance condinons The Executive Deputy Choirman, Mike Ashley,
withdrew from the Scheme dunng FYT5 Mike remains fully committed to the achievement of the Scheme’s rargets, but would like the focus 1o be an ensunng that the Scheme aligrs
with the wades Sporis Direct teom, and thesefore chose to wathdrow from the Scheme

As we enter FY16 1t s cleay, and also understood by the market, that planned acqursinons in FY15 dig net hully matenofse Followang ifs fecent rewiew, the Board now recommends

to shereholders o revised FY16 Adjusted Undedying EBITDA target of £420m, rather than the exsshng target of £480m which s now considered to be unreasonably chollengmg This
compores fo the Underying EBITDA of €383m achieved 1o FY15 Al other targets for the further three years of the Scheme cumently semom the some The Board will continue o review
the robusimess of the 2015 Share Scheme on an annual basss

THE BOARD

Dunng July 2014, it wos announced that Charles McCreevy, o Non-Executive Director of the Group, would not be standing for re-election of the 2014 AGM. Charhie, who hod spent oves
threg yenrs with the Group, had extensive alkround business knowledge, with porticulor relevance to Competihon Regulotions 1 would like fo thank bim for bis voluable contbutron to the
Bourd We are in the process of appointing a replocement and hope to make an anneuncement within the near future

i om delighted to welcome Matt Pearson to the Board in the position of Acing Chief Financiol Officer Matt soined the business over exght years ogo and since hen hos gamed on in depth
knowledge of the finonces of the Group Mot hos been leading our Group Finance Team for several years and s therefore perfectly ploced to take on the cddinonol responsibltes of this
tole Further detalks seloting to the recrutment of the Board can be found on pages 37 and 42

CASUAL WORKERS
Much of the commens regarding the Group's use of zera hour conocts has been unfounded and maecurate We comply fully with olf legad requirements which refate to casuct workers,
including sick pay, holiday poy, and freedom to gain othes empioymens Casual workers akso pornicpote in general incentive: schemes

DIVIDEND
The Board hos decded not to propose o dwidend i relonon 1o Y15 The Board remaes of the opinion thot 1t 15 an the best inferests of the Group end is shareholders to preserve finanaiol
Hexibily, foaktahng the pursus of potenhod acquesinan and other giowth opportunities The paymen! of dwidends remamns under sewiew in future years

CONCLUSION
Despite ongoing chollanging marker condinons, and the weather, we yet ogoin excaeded aur targets i FY15 Such success, yeor on year, ts  testoment o the hord work and dediconon
of oll our warkforce for which the Boasd thonk and congratulate them

Dr Keith Hellowell QPM
NonExecutive Choirman

16 July 2015

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING ..

SPORTSDIRECT.com
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Qur business model 1s focused on long-term sustainable growth Whilst we continue fo grow our business in the UK, we ore now keen fo use
the skills and knowledge we have ganed to buld and expand our Sports Retail business ocross the rest of Eurape

1. IDENTIFY

Brand acquisitions & property
erhencemant

4. PROMOTE

Group-owned
hrands

ACHIEVE

Targets &
Group success

2. INVEST

Stare portfalio &
workforce

3. DEVELOP

Wehsite & mCommerce,
enhanced product ranges

Our offenng has developed further in specialist sporfs cotegones and more fashion-bosed
retifing We ore constently refurbishing ond upgrading our stores, in order to pravde our
customers with o compelkng consumer expenence The continued development of our
dedicoted speaalist areos ond on-going collaborahan wath key suppliers such os Under
Armour ond European brands suck os Salomon on t-store concents ore further exorples
of this

Acquisitions ond strotegic investments in related busmesses are an mgortant part of our
straregy Opportunities to develop into new product categomes or motkets, or 1o strengthen
our position in existing aregs, will continue to be considered on a cose by cose basis

We mim to mamtomn our posttion es the markes leader in the Sports Retail sector in the UK,
while olso gaing momentum i our exponsion into Europe The business mode! prowdes
gurdonce for the Group to mplemen an effectve growth strategy fo momtan and develop
the success achreved so for b compares our recent suctesses with our future ambitions 1n
order that we can assess how to progress m the future

The Group hos significant momentum ond we must ensure that our product offenng and
customer proposition contnue 1o grow and develop in order fo retain our curent customer
base and 1o attract more customers n the futuce

Develaping brond owareness 5 o key factor in ensuring a sustamable future, and the
opprognate level of investment in adverising and fechnology ore importont components
in achieving this

{ur intemunonal peesente continues to grow through over 280 brond licensing pormess,
our onfing presente and on-goreg Furopean store openengs The Group’s appountment of
internahonally-recognised celebnnes and sporting professionals os key ambaossadors ako
promotes our brands on ¢ global bosis




OUR STRATEGY

OBJECTIVE [SO FAR
1. IDENTIFY

IN-STORE

Qur Oxford Street store apened n Moy 2014, and our Glasgow City Centre extension wos
corapleted i spring 2015

Across the UK ond Eurape, we hove comhnued to mvest in specialist performance areos and product
collechons, including Kammor ond Sondico [mproved visuo) merchandssing hos enbonced the
astomer shapping experience We have ongoing colloborations with key brands such as Under
Armour, along with Eurapean beands such os Salomon, to deliver entianced mstore merchondssing

- WHAT NEXT?

Dug to the success of the Oxford Street ond Glosgaw City
Centre stores, we are now looking fo rephcate the fock ond
faelin other major markets, storting with our new Leeds
stare, which 15 set fo open i summer 2015

ACQUISITIONS

2. INVEST

The Group fras acquired 25 Former LA Fitness gyms, @l of which are located m the UK.

A wmber of other acquesttions have taken ploce n the yeer, mcuding Gl Watersports, although
the number hos remained somewhaot smaller than anticipated

Dunng FY}5, we opened 39 stoes i the UK, closing 16, and opened o furihier 16 stores i
Furope, tlosing seven As at 26 Apnl 2015, Sports Retarl aperated i 20 countnes in Europe, o5
well as m the UK

Bequssthons remam a hugh pnonty, parhculordy outside of
the UK, which will broaden the cusiomer offenng across the
Group We anticipate that the number of acquisons will
increase over the coming yeor

The Group ntends 20 continug to enhance its stose portfolio
in both the UX ond mrernationatly The Group will confinue
with the strategy to denhfy stroteqic pertners im new

!S’IIORﬁEOI.I o | Qur Oxford Sreet store ond our newly expunded Glasgow Cy Centrestore both now span femiones while expanding aperafions i those counfries
¢ 50,000 sq f+ We endeovour fo rephcote ths i ofher major ahes wheredwse cune;ﬂv :‘""9 “Tll"ese"cte P"l“"i‘]s Gem m‘et“’
expond Sparts Retl operahons sato all the major countnes
I:ren ;fer;slgr:zt:]c;nl rTfI un’ :J;g;eg retall unit on aur Shirghrook campus 55 cumenfly underway, with i the Europeon Economic Area
The efforts of aur dedicated stoff hove been nstrumentol to the success of the Group Bue to the success of the 2009 Share Scheme, partiopating
The 2011 Shore Scheme has been o key toof used in motwation ond refention The torgets hove employees ore further incentivsed by the 2011 and 2015
PEOPLE been successfully nchieved and the scheme vests for partiapants later i 2015 and 1n 2017 Share Schemes

WEBSITE

4. PROMOTE

BRANDS

The 2015 Share Scheme was approved by shoreholders duning FY15 Mike Ashley has withdrown
from the Scheme v order to ensure that the focus remains on aligning fasgets with the wider
Sports Direct team, end not on hes potentiol personal aflocahon

Falfowing successfut taols dunng the year, Click and Collect hos now been lourched in the UK 1n
both Sporis Direct and LSC and hos praved very successful Qver 20% of all UK Sports Retail onlire
orders and over 15% of USC onling orders are now being defivered by Chiek and Collect

We have redesigned our checkout, mtroduang o quest checkout ophon and strecmiining the
checkout process

Customers ore now also able to purchese and redeem gift cards online

Porcutar attention hos been paid to improving the lorguage ond currency conversion an our sifes
for nontEnglish speaking countnes The improvements have led to o significant reduchion i dropped
boskets, most notobly i Fronce and Gsrmany

Fatlowsng nvestment nto our mobde platforms, mobile wisits now equate so over 50% of visits 1o
SPORTSDIRECT com

The Group has continued ta exploit 1ts braads by offenng wholestle and icensing opportunthies,
In oddinon to selling brands i Group retal outlets Wholesale and licensing enables cn incrensed
aren of distribution, following which hrends can reach qudiences which weuld otherwise

femain yntopped

The focus 55 fo remain on interaational wholesale, including the USA, which currentty represents
¢ 40% of the total wholesols revenue

Sports Duracs Rerwl hcensig confinues to graw with 14 stores sow open in Malaysia and 13 open
i the Mddle Eost

bicensing 1 o key drver of the Srands dision 58 new license agreements were signed dunng
FY15, quaranteeing o mimmurm of $Z5m in royalties over the confract pertods

The brand portfolie mereosed durng the yeor through the acqusinon of the Dunlop end Slazenger
nghts tn the Australosio region

Our am 15 to rolf out Tk and Collect ocross cther UK
Group websites

To improve the customer expenence # Europe, we pler fo
introduce dedicated websites end allow cusfomers to use
addionol poyment methads while shopping criine, inchuding
Ideql, Gro ond Sofort

We wil prowide contnued mvestment n the online business
(nling wisits and sales have shown notable mereases year
on year

We plon to introduce o fast poy checkout solution, allowing
customers 10 purchase a lorge number of praducts i a small
aumber of dicks

Expansion of the hentage bronds, including Everlast, Dunlop
and Slazenger, s expeced fo conhnue

Bunlop remains o key focus for expansion, panicularly into
tatagories which have ot prewiously been explored by the
Group, including automotive occessones

Acqusmons of key hrands will remain o high pronty,
mgregsimg our brand portfolio and weakening the posiion of
compentors

Asig Pacific will remaen o main area of focus elang wih
Australasio, expandmy the global presence of the Group

Our well esteblished brands, including Stazenger end dunlop,
will lead the way m the regien

Investment m key Group brands s expected jo conhnue

i orcler to allow products o reach new markers

ond fustomers

EVERYTHING 1S CHANGING...

SPORTS DIRECT vow
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Boord moitors she Group’s performance by reference to o number of Key Performance Indicotors (KPIS), which are discussed i this Chief Executive’s Repost, and also i the Finanaol
Rewiew The most important of these KPis are

52 waeks ended

26 Aprif 2015 o il 2014 28 4pnl 2013
FINANCIAL KPIS
Group revenue £2,832.6m £2,706 Om £2,185 ém
Underlying EBITDA tY £383.2m £331 1m £287 9m
Sports Retml gross morgin 44.6% 47 %% 40 3%
Sparts Retmil ike-for ke stores gross contnbuhon @ +7 4% +10 5% +10 6%
Onbire revenue as a percantage of fotal Sports Retal revenue & 14.5% 151% 150%
lnderying earmings per share 38.9 37 26%
NON-FINANCIAL KPIS
No of Sports Retail stores & 661 679 498
Workforce tumover 18.7% 19 2% 155%
Cordboard recycling 9,526 tonnes 9,230 tonnes 8,893 tonnes

{1 The method for calcuianing undertying TBITDA 1 sef out i the Finanoal Revew

(2) Sports Retoll likedordike contribution 15 defined os the petcentage chonge in gress contbirtion in the successve 17 month penog & fke-foedike store 15 one that hes been tiading for the full 32 moaths in both penods and has not been
affected by o signdiant change such os o matger refurbishment £xcludes <ontnbution 1n EAG and SIG o the poor yeor compoéatve is not o fufl year

(3} Excludes wholesale revence
(4} The method for calculating underlyng eamings per share is set out in the Financiol Review
{5) Exchuding ossociates and shores in the Balte states that trade under fascias other than SPORTLAND or SPORTSDIRECT com




RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Boord has o responsihility to govern the Group 1 the wnterest of the shorefiolders
Commeants ¢nd suggestions of shareholders are oiwys considered by the Board
Where the Board considers that a nsk hos nat been fully mingated, follow-up meetings
will be armanged to ossess e nsk ond formulate mitigation strategies A speciolst
management team of Directors and senior managers hughhght rsks os and when they
become apporent The ream then in tum ossists the Boord in devsing controls to
minmise the Growp's exposure

THE GROUP’S APPROACH TO RISK

The sdennfication and monagement of sk s o conhnuous process, and the Group’s system
of intemal controks and the business continurty programmes are key elements of that The
Group momiowns o system of controls to manage the business and fo protect ifs assefs
with the development of contiagency plans and ropid response to changing orcumstonces
ond does much to mingate the nsks feang the Group  The Group cantinues 16 mvest in
people, systems ond i IT to manage the Geoup's operahions ond ifs finarkes effechvely

=
O

The specialist manogement teams are respansible for the identfication, onalysss,
evolution and mnggnon of the significont nsks appheable 1o ther oreos of business

The feors meet regularly to discuss the identified isks, ong how these should be reviewed
and menitored The Boord ensures that the eppropriote amangements are in place under
which staff con rase ¢oncerns obout passible finanainl or othes impropriety, which ere then
approprately inveshigated

The Boord 1s assssted by the Audit Committee in fulfillag s overview responsibilines,
reviewng the repoming of fingncie! and nonfinanal information to shoreholders and
the qudit process, satsfying itself that oppropnate systems of mtemol canirol and sk
monagement are in place and are seniag 10 idennfy and monage nsk

The Group operates o Retal Support Unit which prowdes strong operoionol ntemat gudit
servces In the Retail devsion, and there ore procedures i place m the Brends divsion to
monitor and control ficensees The Audit Commttee has ako appomted BDO os internal
audit odwsers (see Audit Committee report on page 40)

The extemal ouditors are invited o attend all meetings of the Audit (ommittes, sove for
those parts of any meeting when the Commitiee rewews the performante of the cuditors

The Group's system of intemal cantrol end nsk management and s effectveness s
wontored ond reviewed by the Board, the Audit Commuttee ond monagement, ond ihe
Boord believes that the Group has mainiained throughout the yeor ond up to the date of
approvel of the Annua Report and occounts n effechve embedded system of sntemal
control ond hos complied with the FRC's Risk Guidonee

The systems of intemal controt and nsk management are destgned fo mansge, rother thon
eliminate, the nsk of forling o athueve business objecves

RISK POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Business plans and budgers for each business inchude financiol and strateguc targets agarmst
which performance s monirored Mononng inclides the examination of and changes

ta rolling annual and quartery farecasts, monthly measurement of octual achevement
oqoimst key performance targets and plans, and weskby reviews of performance

The Group has clear procedures for the approvat end confrol of expenditure Strateguc
investment deasons invohving both copito! and revenue expenditure are subtect to formal
detorled opprosal and review according to approval kevels set by the Board Operafing
expenditure 15 controlled within each business wath approval levels for such expenditure
being determmed by the mdsvduol busmesses

There 5 an approved whistle-blowing palicy within the Group The policy wos established
to be utilsed by stoff who wsh 1o roise ony ssues or concerns refating i the Group’s
actrwhnes, ond ol matsers ore dscussed on o confidental bosis

KEY RISKS

CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

The Group’s operohing procedures mchude a comprehensive system for reporting
miormgtion to the Boerd ncluding

« qssessment of three yeors of strosegy plons for business development,
» ceeation and assessment of legal polices, ond

* review of the Group of each Boord meeting, focusing on potential new nsks {such os
key changes in the market and succession plonning)

CONTROL PROCEDURES

Datoiled operational procedures have been developed for each of the Group’s opemting
businesses thol embody key contioks The mplicahons of changes in faw and regulotions
are taken into account within these procedures

FINANCIAL REPORTING PROCESS

The Graup hos n place watemol control ond nsk manegement systems in relofion fo

the Group’s finoncicl reporting process and the Group’s process for the preporation of
consohdoted occounts These nclude dlearly defined hnes of accountoblity and delagation
of quthonty, policies and procedures that cover financiol planming and seporfing, preparing
consohidated accounts, copital expenditure, project governonce end information secunty

The Audit Comemuttee s respansible for overseeing and momitoring these processes, which
ore designed to ensure that the Group complies wath relevont regulatory reporting ong
filing proviions As ar the end of the penod covered by shis Report, the Audi Commitee,
with the pormapanon of the Chief Executve, evoluated the effectveness of the design
ond operatton of disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure thot informanion
required to he disclosed i finoncral reponts s recorded, processed, summonsed ond
reported within spectied ime peniods

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING...

BPORTSDIRECT.com
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

CONTINUED

PRINCIPAL RISKS AFFECTING THE GROUP

The Group has wdentified the followang factars in the followang table as potenniol isks to, and uncertanties conceming, the successtul operation of its business The Group 15, however,
exposed to o wider ronge of nsks than dscussed helow but these are the prncipo? asks that have recently been discussed by the Boord ond Audit Commuttes and are of pnmary concern

AREA

RISK

MITIGATION

SUPPLY CHAIN

The Group operates intemationally so 15
rebant on the successul distabution of
goods from when they are dismbuted by
the manufoctures to when they are sold
in the stores

The Group 5 rekant on monufacturers in
developing counines os the mogonty of
the Group’s products are sourced fom
outside the UK.

KEY SUPPLIERS

The Group 15 subject to the nsks associted with
internohionol made ond ensport os well as those
relafing to exposure 1o different legal and other
stondards Partcular nsks inchuding warkes strikes,
foilure to meet mimmunm code of conduct standards,
and trensport delays for products which could oll
cause substanhiaf difficulhes

Disasters in o oround the foctones of our suppliers
could bnng negative media attention to the Group

The Group requires oll suppliers o sign up to the Group's Code of Ethies /Supply
Paficy which enables the Group to monitor and benchmask the pedfommance of
the suppher 1t allows the Group to corry out inspections of premises to ensure
compliance with the Group’s codes for continity and quality of supply The Policy
extends thraughout the duration of the Group’s contract with each suppher and
allows the Group to conduct inspections of suppher prenses ot random ntervals

Mony nsks reloting to the supply cham, rehence on nor-UK supphers, ond to the
reputation of the Group’s brands ase manoged and minigated by the implementation
of these policres Strong Service Level Agreements and momioiming relanonships
wth ofl parnes snvolved in the supply chain olse mingats thesa nsks

The Group s rekant an good
relotionsheps with 1ts majer
manufacturers, key brands or
brand suppliers

A fnlure 1o replace any of s major manufacturers

or supphiers on commesaally reasonable terms could
have an odverse effect on the Group's business,
operating profit or overall finonciot condrion It may
mean that customers shop eksewhere if stores canaot
supply the required product

The Group follows palicies of forging long-term relanonshups with supphers ond
of utilising two leading supply chain companies to procure much of the Group's
own bronded goods This close relahonshap brings @ better understanding of
the suppher's resources enabling the Group to react quickly to changes in the
internahonok supply morket

Lengthy confrocts aie often used by the Group fo ensure that key monufocturers are
oware of our commiment to them

TREASURY AND FINANCIAL RISK

The Group operates mtemotionally The
magonty of foreign contracts reloting fo
the sourcing of Group bronded goods
gre dengungted in US Bollgrs ond the
Euro, thus leoving exsosure fo foreign
exchange nsk

The Group hos net borowings, which
are pringipalty ot floating interest rales
linked to bank base ries or LIBOR

The Group 1s exposed to foseign exchange nsk ansing
from vanous currency expasures and a strengthening

of the US Dollar or o weakenmg of the Pound making
goods more expensive

Foregn exchange nisk anses when future commescial
transoctions of recognised assets or fabikhes ore
denominated in o currency that is nof e eniiy's
functional currency, os exchonge rotes move This
could sigeuficontly reduce profirability

The Group seeks to magate the FX flucruanons by hedging wia forward foreign
currency contracts which are destgnated as cash flow hedges

The Group also holds ossets overseas m locel currency, and these assets are
revolyed in accordancs with cumency movemenrs This currancy sk 1 ot hedged

The Group 15 cosh generatve ond 15 now torgeting ifs debt fevels to ruhgate mterest
iote nsk ond currently has debt levels of less than 1 x underhyng EBFTDA

CREDIT AND LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group, pnmonly the Bronds diwistan,
provides credst to some of its customens

Funding and liqusdity for the Group’s
operations are provided through
bark foans, overdrafts and
shareholders” funds

The Group could have a credit sk if credit evaluations
were nor performed on gl customers requinng credit
over o certom amount

The Group’s obyective 15 to mantain sufficient funding
and liguidity for s requirements, but ihe avarlabihty
of odeguate cosh resources from bank fgcilihes and
tchiewing continuity of funding in the current finoncrg]
dimete could be o nsk ta the Group mn future years

The purchose of ocqusthions 1o strengthen and
tomphment the Group moy be hindered

Relshonships with supphiers could break down if
we are unabie to pay them in line with our
controctual obligatians

The Group’s key supplers also faca credit nsk ond os such the Group regularly
ossasses the viobiliry of ifs suppliers ang easures there are plans o source from
alrematve husinesses should key supphers fail

Rigorous procedures are in ploce to mitgate this credit sk The Group has o credit
pohicy in place and the exposure to nsk 1s moniigred on an omgoig busis

Credit evaluations ore performed on all customers requinag credit aver @ certain
amount, and concentrahon of eredit msk 1 monoged

Investment of cash surphus, borrowings and denvative invesimenis are mode
through bonks and compames which have credit rahings and investment cnteno
approved by the Board

The Group mitigates hquidity nsk by keeping debt levels low and the current finance
fooity s held with o dub of 13 bonks, thereby spreoding the msk,



SUCCESSION PLANNING

Key ndnaduaks wittun the Group

hove such o level of knowledge ond
expenence of the business which makes
them essential to connaue to further the
interests of the busingss

Notueof disoster, ilness, inry, or the sudden
resignation of key mdviduals could change the
direchon of the Group

Qus departments wark fogether o develop their understanding of each depastment
and of the Group Senear managers work ot graund lavel fo help to ossass the
smengths wirken heir teams and 10 offer development opportunines where
oppropriote This ton be of assitonce when considenng the sutobility of nemgl
candidates for vaconcies

Pramation opportynities, @ competency framewerk, ond reglar apprassals give stoff
0 voice, encourage o sense of responsibility ond suppost career progression

Qur siructured tolent management progrommes, and specialist masterclasses,
encournge mieraal progression wathin the Group

Executive development & important to us and we mim to promote internally rother
than recnnt external mdnadusts who ase unknown to the Group This can be best
seen thsough the recent promation of Matt Pearson fo Acting Chief Fnanciol Qfficer

Qur Share Schemes seek to reward and retam our key members of stoft

The Nemmation Committeg regularly reviews the successton plan of the Group, and
discusses who would toke over roles i key feam members were 1o leave

SPORTS DIRECT com

MARKET FORCES

The Sports Retorl industry = highly
competitrve and the Group cumently
competes of nahonal and locol levels
with o wide vanety of refaifers of
varyng sizes who may heve competinve
odvantoges New compentors moy enfer
the market

The compehhan continues $o place pressure on the
Group’s prong strategy, margs and prohiobifity

The Group hos o discount pnang policy to help reduce the msk of increased
compehion in the wdusty

The Geoup hos o strang property portiolio, and contues to strengthen this by
relocating and improwng stores fo adapt to morket condinons

Anumber of key bronds ore owned by the Group, reducing pressure on morgins
Fhe Group’s focus on ocqumng competitors enables s fo retam our discounted
prcing systems wirhout price Increases from the biond owners

OPERATIONAL

The Group i reliant on the Head Office
and Netional Dstrbution Centre gt
Shiebrook operating without disruption,
along with the uninterrupted running of
the Group’s fleet of vehicles

The majonty of the Group's revenue 15
derved from the UK,

Any disnuption to the Heod Office, Nahonel
Distribution Centre or the fleet of vehicles might
significontly impact the Group's ability to monage
its opershons, distbute products fo s sfores and
maintain its supply chan

Any Jongterm inferiuphon of the Group’s T systems
would have a sigaficont impact on the Group's
operohon, partculorly m the Retml dvision

Terronst attacks, armed conflicts, govemment ections
o1 adverse wegther offechng the rood netwerks
withun the UK could result m o ssgnificont reduchan n
consumer confidence, whech would m turn hove an
advesse offect on soles i stores

The Group has ¢ song business continuiry plan thas s regularly ieviewed to
address oparonong! nisks

The Board 55 confident that ns for os it s prachicel, the msks and urcerfainhies
that face the Group are being monirared and managed and that, where required,
appropriate ochion is beirg taken

The Group constantly monifors the busmess environment aad the nonyse
of the business model allows for the Group to oct swafily under
extaordinary aicumstaonces

The Group 1 extending the Head Office and Nanonal Disimbuhan Centre so that
there s addinonal room for storage and workers, for furure business reeds and in
cose of disoster

CYBER FAILURES AND ATTACKS

Online sales and odvernsing ore key
10 the Group’s stroregy going forward
However cyber attucks ore becoming
more sophusticoted and frequent,
commanding hegdlines and losing
customers’ trust

Repuianional implications #f the attack s reported
to the medi, incuding ¢ loss of sales whils he
site &5 down, aad longer term loss of soles frough
the detenoranion of customer confidence Possible
suschions and penolhes from overseeing bodses,
ond ihe loss of competitive advantage ogaimst
market competiors

The Group hos o strategy and processes n ploce which relate to our [T sequrity
Warking with internnl and exdernal parties, our collesgues conhinuously monitor
our systems to ensure that they ore suffiently stroag 1o deal with ever ingreasing
cyber nsks

Dunng 2014, o review of the IT nisks was completed The review looked o the
resilience of the current systems, highhghting the magor pomnts of concem regording
the Group T systems The mattess roxsed will be worked on over the next two to
theee yeor penod i o follow up monrtonng progremime

Our T and Resks teams have held workshops to ossess the key technology threats
to the Group, ond lock ito where pelicies require updating and amending

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING...
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

CONFINUED

HEALTH & SAFETY

Health ond safety s key across oll areas
of the Group Polires ore mplemented,
n conjuncon with legal standords, to
protect our stoff and customers

The Group's trode morks, potents,
designs ong other intellectual property
nghts ore central to the value of the
Group’s brands

Forennal innes, dstress and fatalities could

result from o fuduze 1o establsh and momeain sofe
emvironments Lock of competence wn health and
safety reporhing could feed to lego¥ clams winch are
difficult fo defend

The Group believes that ifs ficensees, suppliers,
ogents and dsmbutors are m matenal comphiance
with employment, envionmental and othes lows
The wiolotion, or ollegations of o wiolation, of such
laws or requintrons, by any of the Group’s licensees,
suppliers, agents o dismbutors, could lead to
odverse publicity and o dedine in public demand for
the Group’s products, or require the Group to ncur
expenditure or make changes to its supply choin and
other business orrangements fo ensure compkance

The Group may need to resort to hitigation in the
future to enforce its ntellectual property nghts ond
oy Iingation could result m substontiol costs ond &
twersion of resources

Thid parties mey try 0 challenge the ownership of or
counterfeit the Group’s intellectuat progerty

W ensure thot ench Company wathm the Group s fully troned o the sequured
stondords applicable in each requisite country

Traenmg courses are ragularly offesed and staff ore encouraged fo learn essennal
health and sfety techniques

The teom o Head Office ts atways on hand to wisit and assist stores with hiealth and
safety sssues, assess inadents and refer reportoble motters to RDOR Bunng the
year ihe feam hos goined onother strand by creating & team of empleyees which 1s
dedicated to solely dealing with daims ond complaints

The madents within the Group ore reported to the Board reqularly, os are the
legal clasms that anse from these he Baard consider ways o reduce the number
of dums

The Growp has on in-house tegal tearm who hove knowledge of o vanety of
fegal areos thot apply o the Group This ihouse experitse 5 witol in mmgatng
such issties

The lege! team work dosely with extemal consulions to ossist with, and gein
knowledge on, matters outsude ther aregs of experfise

The Group's legal team activefy monitor trode mork applications by other
companies, os well o5 the stock of mval retmless, to ensure that ewr rghts are not
iinnged and where these are infinged, to foke oppropnate achon

The legol team carefully draft oll comespondence to ensure that documentatien
s dear ond legolly inding Draffing remplates ond key pomts are shored so that
knowledge 15 retained within the Group

The Groug's retail businesses are subject
to seasonal peaks The incidence of and
participaton it mejor sporfing events
will hove o particular impoct on the
Sports Retoil business

Psolonged unseasonat waather condifons or
temporary severe weather dunng peak Irading
sensons could hove o materal adverse effact on the
Group’s businesses The Group 15 dependent upan the
store portfola and consumers” spendiag habirs

Lustomer fostes could change and stocked dems
could no longer be sutable for the market

Although unable to mihgate emviroamental condinions, the Group s ble to influence
the retail portfolio and therefore constantly moniiors development of stores ond

the Group’s mm 1o increose the square footage through viable new retail space By
monioring stock levels thioush sales forecasting the Group con manage the peaks
in demand end frading prafiles can be predicted

Bulding sales umis of our Head Office ond National Disinbuton Centre altows us to
tnel and monitor diffenng sales techniques end products, before rolking these out fo
the rest of the Group

Qur tzam keep aheod of the trends, conducting morke! research on our customers
ond manttoning ous competitors Sophistcated orderng systems ensure that items
which sell well sn porticular oregs will be restocked Our strong relohonstup with
supphers ensures thot we cre obile to source key irems af shor aotice, should this
be required




CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT & BUSINESS REVIEW

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

| om pleased to report that, despite the adverse impact on performance of England’s early departure from last year's FIFA World Cup 1n
Brozil ond the unseasonobly mild weather dunng autumn reducing footfall, the Group hes, yet again, succeeded in defivenng another solid

set of resulfs

The Group hos ochieved another year of revenue ond prefit growth in o challenging retod
enwronment, doven by continued expansion bath i the UK and across Eurepe Dunng
the year we kave increased our store portfolio i the UK by 23 stores and have added

a further mine stores to our Eurapenn store portfoho We have olsa confinued fo develop
large city centre format stores

We have olso estabfished o Fiiness dwision i the year, Sportsdirect Fifness com,
compnsing 27 qyms indudimg two combimed gym and refoil sies

| am delighted to announce that the Group has now me the final targer under the 2011
Share Scheme The first award under this Scheme is due to vest later n 2015 end walt
reward ¢ 2,000 partspoing employees far thew hord work and dedicanon The Group’s
conmmued success truly renarotes how imponiant the Shore Schemes have beea in
motwating partiaponts to work towords a shared gool

GROUP

Group revenue mreased by 4 7% to £2,832 6m in the vear This was pnmanly due o
the Sporfs Refadl divsion, where we grew revenues by 5 5% Premum Lfestyle revenue
fell by 3 0%, lrgely due to the closure of foss making stores in the penod

Group gross margin in the year increased by 110 besis points from 42 7% 1o 43 8%
Sports Retml dwision gross margin incrensed by 170 bosis ponts fo 44 6% (FY14
42 9%), while Brands dwision gross mergen decseased o 40 3% (FY14 43 1%)

Group oerafing costs increosed 4 2% to €840 5m (FY14 £826 1m) We contimue to
bialonce revenues and gross margin, while mewmtoming o hight focus on operoting costs
ond os o result grew Group underlying EBITDA (pre-scheme costs) for the yeor by 15 7%
to £383 Zm {FY14 £331 1m) Within this underying EBITBA, we mcreased the Retal
dragion EBITDA by 16 0% to £349 1m (FY14 £300 9m) while the Bronds division
EBITDA ncreased by 12 9% to £34 1m (FY14 £30 2m}

Excluded From underying EBITDA 15 0 £10 1m (FY14 €13 9m) charge in respect of the
2009 and 2011 Shere Schemes This charge hos been token centrally and, except m note
4 1o the Annual Report, 15 not reflected 1 the dwsional (Refark and Bronds) numbers m
this report

For the year, Group underying profit before tax increosed 20 5% ta £300 3m, pmanly
o5 a result of the £52 1m increase in EBITOA {pre-scheme costs) Underdying EPS for the
year ncreased by 71 2% 10 38 9p (FY14 32 1p)

et debt at 26 Apnl 2015 was £59 7m (27 Apnl 2014 $212 Om), which s 0 15 fimes
teported EBITDA (27 Apal 2014 0 66 hmes) Reporsed EBITDA ncludes realised foreign
exchonge gains losses in selling aad odmmnistrahon costs and the Shere Scheme charges

REVIEW BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

RETAIL REVENUE:
52 weeks ended
76 ke 2015 27 dord 2014
(E'm) {E'm}
Sports Retad 23986 2274 4
Premum Lifestyle 207 6 2141
Totol Retuil revenug 2,606 2 2,488 5
Lost of soles (1,456 6} (1,427 3)
Giass profit 1,149 4 1,061 7
{5055 morgin pescentage 44 1% 42 6%
BRANDS REVENUE:
52 weeks ended
26 Apri 1015 27 il 2014
{&'m) (')
Wholesals 1933 1852
Licensing #31 323
Totol Bronds revenue 226 4 2175
Cost of sales {1352) {123 8}
Gross margin 912 937
Gross margin percentoge 40 3% 4311%

SPORTS RETAIL

Sports Refoll revenue has grown in the period as we conhnye fo nvest in product range
ond availability, icreasing the proportion of “hetter’ end “best” Group branded products,
aphimise hoth our 1rstore and web offerngs end further mvest i our store porfalio

Sposts Retwl sales grew 5 5% to €2,398 6m (FY14 £2,274 4m), drven luigely by
growth in the UK, offser by oweak winter sports season ocross Europs ond odverse
foreign currency movements Sports Retall gross margin for the year increased by 170
bosis pomts 20 44 6% (FY14 42 9%) This ncrease s pnmanly chiabutoble to oa-going
investment in our “better and hest” product sanges, further enhanced by effiuencies gained
by our strong supply chawn dscephines

Safes 1n the second holf of the year were up 2 6% 10 €1,167 ém (FY14 H2
£1,138 3m) Gross margins for the second half of the yeor improved to 44 4% (FY14
HZ 42 5%)

Sports Retul ike-for like gross contnbution, which excludes onling, ncreased by 7 4%
masking the sexth consecutrve yeor of growth in this K1 (FY14 +10 5% / F113
+106% /FY12 407% / FYT1 46 8% /FY10 +3 7%) Sports Refott fkeforlike
contrbunion i defined os the percentage change in gross contnbution 1n the successive
12 manth penod A hke-forfike store 15 one that has been troding for the full 12 months
i both penods and hos not bezn offected by o signdicant chenge, such s o mojor
refusbshment The number of stores included i this year's KPl s 432 {FY14 339}

{13 Exciuding EAG ond SIG a5 the piot year composmtrve ts not o full yeor
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Sporis Refail operating costs increased by 9 0% in the yeor to £715 2m (FY14

£656 3m) compared to 0 5 5% wcreose o sules and ¢ 9 7% mgreose in gross profit due
to the full ear smpact of proporhonally hugher cosss n our recently acquired Furapean
businesses Operahing costs m H2 incrensed by 4 &% 1o £3461 4m (FY14 H2 £345 5m)
compared to 0 2 4% increase in sales ond o 7 7% mcrease in gross profit

Store wages were up 13 1% n the yeor fo £239 2m (FY14 £211 4m) butos o
percentage of sales mreased only to 10 0% (FY14  3%) due fo the annuaksed

effect of new store apemings combingd with the full yaor mpact of progortionally higher
costs n our recently ecquired European businesses and reduced sales due to o difficult
winter sparts season in Furope Sports Retail store premises costs ncreased by 9 5% fo
€211 Om (FY14 £192 7m), due to mvestment in new sfores and the full yeor effect of
comparatwely higher costs im our new European businesses Other operating casts were
up 13 9% to £280 8m (FY14 £246 6m), ncreosing o5 o percentoge of sales to 11 7%
(FY14 10 8%) due to costs in our recently established Fitness dision

The currency impact on operating costs of the change m the Euro Steding exchange in our
European businesses rate was a gom of £15 7m (FY14 @ loss of €5 &m)

Undertying EBIEDA for Sports Retadl wos £356 Bm (FY14 £321 3m), on increose of

11 0% for the year This increase was dnven by 0 £94 2m merense n gross profit due
to the growth m stare contubution and online sofes, offset by the £59 Om in¢rease

operating costs

The Group’s retwl businesses performed stronghy in o difficult economic environment Qur
reteil model, offening outstanding vale to eur customers, remaars restient, both in the UK
and mtemahonally Throughout the year, we conhinued to focus oa offerng our customers
the most comprehensive product range, the hest ovotlability and volug while minimsing
agershing costs os o percentuge of gross sales

Online revenue has increased by 14 4% from £335 4m te £383 8m in the year, dnven
lorgaly by the successful launch of Click and Collect n the UX dunng the second half of
the year, which now occounts for over 20% of olf UK online orders This performance is
excephional considenng we chazge £4 99 for this service: Online Soles represantad 16 5%
of Sports Retail sales (FY14 15 1%), excluding wholesalz sales

Qur mobilg site continues to drive sales and the Group was recently ranked  the top four
retailers i the FISE 100w terms of motule wabsie performance, oceording to o recent
study relecsed by The Seazch Agency* Mobile traffic now accounts for aver 50% of af
enline visits We have akso re-designed our checkous, mirodueing & guest checkaut ophon
and streomlining the checkout process

We hove worked herd to improve the customer expenence 1n Euroge, widening the
longuage and currency convarsion ophions on aur sites for non-Enghish spesking countres,
and gong forward, plan fo introd:xe dedicated websites for our European businesses oad
additional payment methods including Ideal, Giro and Sefort

Follwng successiuf tnals dunng the year, customers re now able to purchase and redeem
gt cards onlive We are oo working towords the introduction of o “fast pay” checkout
system, allowing customers to purchose a larga nueber of products 1n o smoll number of
dlicks

The division has canfinued to expand, with the development of Sporstirect Frmess

com, compnsing 25 standalone former LA Fitness gyms and an addimonal two new buld
combiried retd and gym spaces A further two gyms in St Helens ond Dundee ore plonned
for early outumn 2015 Membership confinues %o grow and we hove already surpassed our
full vear torgets

* The Search Agency UK's Mobde Fxpenence Scorecord FISE 100 Companes — hitp //go thesearchagenty om/
mobileexpenence-scorecartftse-100-2015

We have contmued to invest in staff raning, with o key focus ths year on our “Home
Grown™ Tolent Monogement progromme, Customer Service Trainmg and Management
Induchon Dunng the ygor over 58,000 hours were invested into trining ond developing
our workforce A greot deal of this traning took phace af our Training Academy on our
Shirehrook compus, which is the only trawnmg centre in she world supported by both

Nike and Puma We ore commitied to the continued development of our staff, lways
aiming fo promote internally wherever possible oad dunng the yaor rn our first Greduate
Recrutment Programme, “Tolent Bonk’, where groduates ware ploced in aur Finance and
Ecommerce teams for exght waek summer placements and offered the apportunity to
compete for a permanent role, with the best being rewarded

Phose Three of the development of our Notonat Distrsbution Centre i Shuebrook, the
constructiont of on eddinonal ¢ 700,000 sq fr foorpant warehouse and office faclity, &
now well underway, with completion scheduled for late 2015

We have worked hard to enhance and invest in our store portfolio dunng the yeor, with o
particular focus on lorger aity centre stores Dunng the yeor wa relocated our Oxford Straet
store fo the ¢ 50,000 sq |t former HMY store and have completed o ¢ 28,000 sq ft
extension of our Glosgow store which includes o store In store concept asen with linder
Amour We hove recently lso acquired the fraghold of the former Pumark store in Leeds
Works are cumently underway on this four floor, ¢ 50,000 sq Tt store which 1s due to
open this summer

Dunng the yeor we opened 39 stores i the UK, closmg 14, and have opened an oddinonal
16 stores i Europe, closing seven 12 out of the 16 UK closures were relocahans

mto larger and better configured spoce 428 of the LK store foson are sow bionded
SPORTSDIRECT com, an increase of 27 from lost yeor (FY14 401)

Penod end square-footage increased to ¢ 4 75msq B (FY14 ¢ 4 5m) w the UK and
remomed ot ¢ 3 Om s fr @ (FY14 ¢30msq ) acoss the rest of Europe

(17 Due to diffening methodologees, 1his implies a ronge between 4 Smsq £ 50msg ft
{2) Due to diffenng methodologees, thes implies o 1ange between 2 Smsq & 3 Smsq ft

UK STORE PORTFOLIO™

Tapd 2015 27 hpud 2014
Stores ot Year £nd 440 417
Opened 39 32
Closed 16 11
SPORTSDIRECT com foscins 428 40
QOther 13 17
Areo (sq ft) ¢4 75m ¢4 5m

{1} Exchuding Northen treland

In the 52 weeks to 26 Apnl 2015, rent reviews have been agreed on 33 stores, of which
26 stores were ogreed of mil ncreose: OF the remaining seven stares the averoge nrease
n rent wos 13 87%, giving o total average increqse over the 33 stores of 2 88% {0 57%
ornual equivaleat) There are curiently 52 rent reviews outstarnding with o further 42
foling due m FY16 Qur lease expiry profile over all leasshold stores (xcluding Litywhutes
Ficcodilly) 15 now 4 6 yeors, including 37 stores with controctual expines or breok dotes
withn the next 12 months Thes significant emount of Aexbifity wethin our portfolio

allows us to centinue to momitor ond adagt our format to the sapidly changing multk
chonnel emvironment

In the curvent finanewnl yeor, we are targenng to open betwaen 30 ond 40 stores, ¢ 30%
of which are expected to be refocations We ore also torgenng o re-hit ¢ 306,000 sq ft of
refoil space across the UK



INTERNATIONAL STORE PORTFOLIO"

PREMIUM LIFESTYLE
Premum Lfesiyle soles decrensed 3 0% to 207 ém (FY14 £214 1m}, due to the

26 4 2015 27 ki 2014
At m 5 chosure of lossmaking stores in the year Premmm Lifestyle gross masgn for the yenr
n decrensed by 150 basss pomnts to 38 8% (FY14 40 3%) dus to online deararie of legocy
Belgum 43 44 stockmthe yenr
(2
Estone 2 0 Premum Lifestyle operoning cosls decrensed by 17 3% to €88 2m (FY14 €106 7m) due
Long® 13 13 1o the continued ravonalsation of the USC and Republic busmesses and synesgies guined
Lithuorua™ 12 12 by the consohdation of key head office funchions i Fonnels, Cruse and Van Midert and
Porhgl 7 TS the megronon of the dismbuhon funchion
Slovema 15 15 The Underying EBITDA foss for Prermum Ufestyle decreased o €7 7m (FY14 £20 4m
Poland 10 7 loss} as we began to see the benefit of the re-structunng of Republic i the pror yeor
and raonalisation of the other businesses We wll see furthes benefits of this in the
France / b commg year
Czech Republic b 4
ol P Online revenue m the dmsion mcceased n the year, dnven lorgely by improvements i
olond 8 b sk ovailability and system improvements We saw the benefit of the integration of
Cypns é S the dwsion’s eCommerce plotforms with the Group's IT systems and the founch of the
Hungery 5 4 Fonnels com and USC mobitle platforms i the pror yeor We olso successfully lounched
UK Chick and Collect in BSC dunng the yeor ond over 15% of all USC online orders ore
Slovakun 4 3 now defivered vo Cick und Coleet
Gemony 3 3
Iinemboug 7 2 We conhnue to strengthen our relohonships with key shird party suppliers
Spain ! 1 Arthe year end, the Premum Lifestyle division traded from 103 stores undes four
F—— ) mawn fasaos
Totat 221 02 2 dpd 2015 27 hord 2014
{1 Exchodmng Repubdic of keeland & Icelond UsC 86 %0
12) knchides cnly stores wath SPORTSDIRECT com ond Sportlond fasnics (Cruse 10 10
Van Milders 10 9
Al of the obove stores ase operated by companies wholly owned by the Group, except I
Portugal, where the Group owns 50 1% and Estania, Lorw and Lithugnia whera the Group Flonrels com 8 8
gwns 6 0% Dunng the year we have expondd our Europeon siore porifalio by e Other 9 ?
stores and have entered one new country As  result we are now actwe n 20 countes Totol 103 124

across Eurcpe including the Republic of lrelond and ketand

n Austnio, we hove continued 1o elocate ond upgrode the §ormer Sparts Experts stores
which hod been prevausly rebranded to the SPORTSDIRECT com foscio Qver the coming
yeor we will rebrand key Megastares to the Uilywhites foscin, replicaing our UK ciy
tentre store formar aceoss the rebranded stores in cofoboration with key mternaionol
brands such os Salomon

In the Balnc states we have already opened two stores in Estonin under the

SPORTSDIRECT com fascao and plan ro open twa further stares a Lithuarie and one store in
Lehvo undes the SPORTSDERECT com Fasco We have olso continued to wnvest in relocating
ong re-fitng the stores trading under the SPORTLAND foscie

Our siateqy remarns to entify parmers in new temtanes while continuing fo expand our
opemtions in the countnes where we coirently trode For Y16, we ore taigeting to open
between 20 and 30 new sores across seven counines

The Group hes o 50% shareholding in the Hestons chom which eperates 15 Sports Direct
stores m Narthem lrelond and 27 sports stores i the Republic of Irelond We also own o
40% shareholding in the Sports Diret busiess i Icelond

Locol managament confinue o work hard o ensure thot all new ond exsstmg stores
Eurape are commitied fo staving towards the operotional efficiencies and stendards that
exist across gur UK sports stores

BRANDS

The Group’s brand portfolia includes o wide vanety of world-fomous sport, fasion end
Wfestyle brands The Group’s Retal dsian sefls products under these Group brands in

its stores, and the Brands division exploits the bronds thigugh its wholesale and licensing
ucinanes The Brands dvesion continues to sponsor @ vanety of preshigrous evenis and
retoins o vaniety of globolly recognised, ighprofile sportsmen and women os

brand ombossedors

Brands division totel ievenue increased by 4 1% 10 £226 4m (FYi4 £217 5m)
Wholesale tevenues were up 4 4% to €193 3m (FY14 €185 Zml, nduding growth in
the challenging UK morket Froding in the US market was i ine with expectatons ond
continues o represent ¢ 40% of total wholesole soles

Brands gross mergin deccensed by 280 bosis pomis to 40 3% (FY14 43 1%) Wholesale
gross mavgis fell 310 bosis pomts to 30 1% (FY14 33 2%) fargely due to o shift m the
sales mu towards lower margin fines

Licersing revenues i the yeor were tp 2 5% 1o £33 1m (FY14 £32 3m)

Dunng the year we signed 58 new licence agseements, covenng multiple bronds, product
cotegones and geographies, with mummum contracted values of $25m over the ffe of
the ogreements At 26 Apnl 2015, the Group has 401 license agreements worldwide®™,
acrass 264 hieensees, with contracted minmums of $305m over the remaming Iife of
the ogreements

(1) Includes consolidation of ogreements. sgned m paor yeors.
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Longer tesm, we snll regard hicensing as the key driver of Bronds dwision profitobiity ond
tentral fo the overalt growth of the Bronds business The key growth areas are expected
to mchude Australasio ond Asso Pacific with the ocquisition of the Dunlop ond Slozenger
brands n the region dunng the year This combimed with growsh in the Amencas should
compensate for o more challenging icensing londscape i the UK ond Europe, os Sponts
Retorl conhnues to expond i these ermtones

Operating costs decregsed by ¢ 7% o 257 Om {FY14 €63 1m} benefiting from the
consolidotion of our hack office furchons i the prior vear As o result of cost sovings,
underlyng EBITDA mcreqsed by 12 9% 1o £34 Tm (FY14 £30 2m)

We continue to focus on developing world-class products thot ore endorsed by feading
athletes on the field of ploy We expect o spend hetween £10 ond £20m on odverising
ond prometional ¢osts 1n the coming year

WORKFORCE

The success of the Group has forgely been crested by our ¢ 27,000 strong workforce,
whose dedication and commitment has been sustomed over many years Therr enthusiosm
ond ‘one team’ attitude has assisted the Group to succeed where many other retoilers
hove farled The Board s extremely grateful for the time that our workforce hos taken fo
develop ther skills and expemse We promote staff traning whergver possible o enable
them to be the best thot they con be

The 2009 and 2011 Shore Schemes have been fundomental tools in the motvanon and
incentrisation of porhicpating employees Under the 2009 Share Scheme, ¢ 27m shares
vested with those portipants Subject to sohsfactory persanal perfermance, o further

¢ 21m shares are expected fo vest under the 2011 Share Scheme

The 201 Share Scheme Adpusted Underying EBITDA targets (hefore scheme costs),
relote to performance berween FY12 and FY15 AR four torgets hove now been met, and
subsact to the indwidual employee’s sasfactory personal performance, the shares are
due to vest i 2015 and 2017 Under the 2011 Shars Scheme participating employees
ore ehigible for awards on a pro-rata basis depending on their length of serce with the
Group Awards under the scheme are granted af esther 100%, 75%, 50% or 25% of the
participont’s annok base pay Subsect fo the pedormance ctena bemg fuffilled, < Sm
shares are due to vest in 2015 and ¢ 16m shares ore due fo vest n 2017

An odditonol thres mifkion shares are due fo vest with ont Executve Diactor and fwo
members of senior monagament in 2017 under the Exacutiva Share Scheme, subject
to perfarmance cntena being fulfifled The Executive Share Scheme parformance targets
misrar those to be opplied to awards under the 2017 Share Scheme

&s o resulr of the successes of previous schemes, the 2015 Share Scheme has been
devised to encourage fusther outstanding employee performance for those who ore
imted to parmopate The Scheme will prowide for the grant of aikcost eptions over up

to 25m shares The veshings are dependent on sieetching performance cntena spoaning
berween FY16 and FY1% With anginel EBITDA inrgets (before scheme costs) of $480m
for FY14, £570m for FY17, £650m for FY18 and 5750m for Y19 when the Scheme
was approved, the Scheme has the posenteal o not only motivate partipants, but olso fo
create ¢ further substantial increase i shareholder velue

The Group intends 1o propose an amendment to the FY16 Adusted Underkying EBITDA
target under the 2015 Share Scheme, which will be reduced from £480m to £420m
All other torgets for the further three yeors of the Stheme currently remam the same
Thes chonge will be put to shareholders os on ordinary resobuhion ot the Company’s AGM
in September 2015

CONTRACTS ESSENTIAL TO THE BUSINESS
OF THE GROUP

The Group hos long-establshed relohanships with Nike and adidas, the major supphers
of thud-party branded sporting goods, and considers thet centinued supphes from tese
companies are el 10 the business of the Group

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS
The {orporate Responsihility Report 1s on poges 28 to 32 end o reiew of the ssessment
of the Group’s impact on the envirenment 15 included m ths report

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group designs clothung oad some footwear for sale in stores ond hos arrngements
with supphers for the reserch and development of goods for the Brands dviston

OUTLOOK

Trading since the year end has been n line with manogement’s expectofions, and
undemins the 2015 Share Scheme's proposed sevised FY16 Underlying EBITDA target of
£420m The Group’s performonce continues to benefit from o number of fpcioss incuding
investment i product mnge ond availobility, with an increased emphasss on ‘better”

and “best” Group branded products ond the optimisoton of our in-store and web offer,
enhanced by the introduction of Click ond Collect m the UK We nlso conhinue o invest in
our store portfolio, with te rollout of further large formar aty centre stores

Dave Farsey
{bref Executive

18 July 2015




FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Financral Statements for the Group for the 52 weeks ended 26 Apn! 2015 are presented n accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU

SUMMARY OF RESULTS
52 weeks ended
24l 2015 27 A 2014
(£'m) (€ m)
Revenue 2832 6 27060
Undertying EBITDA 3832 311
Undertying Profit Before Tox 3003 2493
Reported Proit Before Taxahon 3134 2395
Pence per share Pence per shate
Reported EPS 06 308
Undertying EPS 389 321

The Durectors believe that undertying EBITDA, undsrymg profit before tax ond underying
egmings per share provide more useful snformation for sharehiolders on the underying
performance of e business than the reported numbers and are consistent with how
business performance & meosured internally They are not recogmised profit meosures
under IFRS and may not be directly comparable with “odusted” profit measures used by
other companies

EBITDA 1s eommgs biefore investment inrcome, finance ncome and finance costs, 1ox,
deprecishon ond omortsetion and, therefore, ndudes the Group's share of profit from
assocoted undertakings and joint ventures Undertying EBYTDA 15 calewlored es EBTTDA
before the impact of foreign exchonge, ony excephional or ather non-trading dems and
costs relnting to the Share Schemes

EBITDA AND PROFIT BEFORE TAX

EBITDA (S'm) P81 {5 m)
Operating profit 29546
Deprecishon, amortsahon and smpairment 67 8
Share of profit of ossocated undertakings 30
(excl 7V adjustments)
Reported 366 4 3134
Share Scheme 101
Excephonal items 30 30
Profit on disposal of investments (12 6)
Renksed FX Joss 37 37
1AS 39 FX fuir value odwstment on forword 79
Cunrency confracts
Underlying 3832 3003

Undertying 52 week FY15 grofit before tox excludes

{1} exceptional items whick decreased profit by £3 Om,

{11} profit on disposal of mvestments which ncreased profit by £12 ém,

{iii) realised foreign exchange losses which decrensed profit by £3 7m, and

{1v) IFRS revaluahon of foresgn currency contracts which increased profit by €7 Zm

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The Group manages the impact of currency movements Mrough the use of forward fixed
rote currency purchose and sales controcts The Group's policy is to hold or hedge berween
zero ond Fve years of antiapated purchoses in foreign curiency

The renlised exchange loss of €3 7m (FY14 £1 8m gam) iduded i odwnssiration costs
has ansen from

0) accepting Dollars and Euros af the contracted rote, and

b) the tronsiation of Dollor ond Eurs denominated assets and labilines at the penod
end rate or date of realisation

The exchonge gain of £7 2m {FY14 £11 Zm loss) icluded i finonce mcome,/costs
substontially represents the reduchon n the mark fo-market habikty mode (under (FRS)

for the Group’s unhedged forward contracts os at 26 Apnl 2015 A number of the forword
coniracts oufstending ot 24 Apal 2015 qualdy for hedge aceounting and the forr value
quin on fiese controcs hos been credried 1o equity shrough the Consokdated Statement of
Comprehenswve Income The Group hes sufficient USD/GBP controcts to cover efl purchases
i UK Retail for FY16 The Steding exthange rate with the US Doflor was $1 680 ar 27
Apnl 2014 and 51 502 at 26 Apni 2015

Grven the potential empact of commodity gnces on fow matenal costs, the Group may
hedge certamn nput costs, ncuding cotton, crude ofl and electneaty

FINANCE COSTS
52 weeks ended
2AI2005 20 it 2014
&'m) (&'m)
Interest on bank loans and overdrofts (67) (7 5}
interest on other loons 02 (0 6}
Intarest or: retirernestt benefit obiganons (0 6) 06
Forr value adpstment ta forwerd foreign exchange
{1z
(onfragts
75 (19 9}

The decrease in mwterest poyoble 5 o result of the decreosed use of the revolving credit
faciity ond repayment of debt inheated from ocquired comparves

The prior year loss on the fur value of forward foreign exchange controcts arose under
IFRS os o result of marking to market ot the penod end those contracts shot do not qualify
for hedge accounting
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EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
52 weeks ended
WA 015 7 ek 20N4
©m (£'m)
Paofit on sle of freghold properhies 103
Impairment and aecelernted depreantion aad (133) 55
omorhisgtion
(30 {55)

The impasrment ond accelerated depreciohon ond omortsation refotes to o change n the
eshmated useful [fe of certain tangible and mtangible assets and imparment agoinst
goodwall n the year

The prolit on sale of freefold property indludes the sole of o freehold warhouse for
£21 2m, realising o profit of £17 3m

TAXATION

The affective tax cate on profit before tax in FY15 wos 23 0% (FY14 25 0%) Thistote
reflects depreciakion on nor-qualifying ossets ond overseas earmings being taxed gt o
hugher rate

EARNINGS
52 weeks ended
26 hprl 2015 27 honl 2014 Chonge
(pence per shore)  {pence per shuie) )
Reported EPS (Bosic) 406 308 38
Underying EPS 389 321 nz
Weighted average number 592994371 585513597

of shares {actuol)

Basic eomings per share (EPS) s calculuted by dwiding the somings attributable o
ordinary sharehoidars by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
dunng the octual financial peniod Shares held in Treasury and the Employee Benehi Trust
are excluded from this figure

The underlying EPS reflects the undertying performance of the business comparad with

the pnor year and s colculared using the weighted aversge number of shares 11 s not o
recognised profir measure under IFRS and may not be directly comparable with “odjusted”
profit megsures used by ather companies

Tha items adjusted for amwing at the underhying profit after tox and minenty mherests i
os follows

52 weeks ended
26 At 2015 27 Agrl 2014
(Em) {£m)

Profit after rox 2404 180 2
Post tax effect of adyustment tems
Profit on disposal of fisted investments {28) (40)
Impairment of goodwil 03
Fair velue odustment fo forword foreign (125 84
exchange controcts
Realised loss/ (gan) on forward foresgn 79 {14
exchange contods
Profit on disposal of freehold prapernes 7
Impowrment ond occelerated depreciohon and 102 41
omorhsahion

Underdying profit after tox 2303 187 &

DIVIDENDS

The Bogrd hos decided rot to propose o ddend m relotion fo FY15 The Board feels that
1t remains i e best nterests of the Group t preserve financal flexibilty, fsalizating the
pursuit of potential acquishens and other grewth opporfuities The poyment of devidends
remains under review it future years

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Durng the yeor, copitol expendituse smounted to £100 3m (FY14 £69 Tm), which
includes expenditure on licences within intangible ossets and construchan of our
Shirebrook warehouse

ACQUISITIONS

The Group made o number of smaller ocquisinens during the year inchuding the purchase of
25 former LA Fitriess gyms

STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS

Dunng the yeor the Group disposed of ¢ 1 5m shores in I} Sports Fashion ple but ot
the yent end continued to hold an 1 ¥ 09% stake w I3 Sports The farr value of the
Group’s holdings at 26 Apnl 2015 wos £140 8m (27 Apnl 2014 £104 Im)

The movement in the fair vlue of the shares held has been recognised directly in
Other Comprehensive [ncome

In June 2014, the Group acquired on interest i ¢ 7m shares in MySale Group ple,
representing 4 8% of the wssued share capital of MySake

In September 2014, the Group entered info & denvatve agreament referencing
23,000,000 shores in Teso Ple, representing & 3% of the ssued share capual of Tesco

In October 2014 the Group ocguwed ¢ 56 shares n Debenhoms ple for €33 2m,
representing 4 6% of the issued shars capital of Debenhams This stake was sold i
Hoverber 2014 ond the Group entered nto a denvative ogreement referencing ¢ 74m
Debenhoms shares, equivalent to & % of the issued shere capital of Debenhams

0 23 January 2015 the Group termmated on existing Debenhams denvative agreement
entered nto n January 2014 and ot the same time, entered info ¢ new dervanve
ogreement referencing ¢ 128m ordinary shares of Debenhams (represanting 10 5% of the
issued share copital of Debenhams)

As af 26 Apnl 2015 the Group hod an interest n 15 0% wnterest in Debenhoms”
ordinary shares

These stakes allow us fo develop relahonships and commercial partnershups with the
relevant retaders and ossist n building relononships with key supplers ard brands

The farr volue of equity denvative agreements 15 mcluded within the dervative financiol
assefs batance of £92 2m



CASH FLOW AND NET DEBT
Net debt decreased by £152 3m from £212 Om ot 27 April 2004 to €59 7m of 26 Apad
2015

The analysis of debt ot 26 Apnl 2015 wos os follows

8 hpd 2015 27 hpal 7014

&m (T'm)
Cesh ond cosh equnvalents 783 1510
Borrawings (138 0} (3630
Net debt {597} (120

On 25 November 2014 the Group utlised the accordion ophion under its £688m working
capial focfity As o result, the workng capifol facikty hos been increased from £688m to
£738m The factity s ovmnlable until September 2018 and s not secured aganst any of

the Broup’s fixed ossets

The Group okso has 0 £250m working cepital faclity with Mike Ashley whuch can be
drown down on request Thes focdity was agreed ot market terms gt its ncephion and s
not secured against ony fixed assets At the yeor end no balance wos due

The Graup continues to operate wall within its banking covenants and the Bogrd remoins
comfortoble with the Group’s avallable headroom

CASH FLOW

Totaf movement 1 as follows

WAl 2015 17 hprl 2014

{&'m) {€'m)
Undzrtying EBITDA 3832 311
f::rr:i {loss) / prohit on forward foreign exchange a7 18
Texes puid {7717 (557)
Undertying free cosh flaw 301 8 2772
Ivested in
Warking capital and other {64 8) ain
Purchase of own shares
Acquisihons {including deb) (38 (144 7
Net proceeds from / (purchase of) uvestments 41 {4 6)
Net copital expenditure {79 1) (69 1)
Fiance costs and other financing octhanes (59 {72
Decrense / (Ingseose) in net debi 1523 (580)

The m¢rease i working copital i partly 1o support the growth of Sports Reteil and the
orline business and partly due s the timing of poyments cround yeor end

PENSIONS

The Group operntes a number of dosed defined henefit schemes in the Dunlop Slozenger
companies The net deficat i these schemes decregsed from 15 4m ot 27 Aprd 2014 10
€14 9m 01 26 Agnl 2015

Matt Pearson
Acting Chief Fingnornl fficer

16 luly 2015
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Corporate Responsibility 15 central to our vision to be on dustry leader Qur established Corporate Responsibility framework focuses

on five key areas People, Health and Safety, the Environment, Customers and the Communrty Sports Direct hos developed Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs) to ensure we deliver on our commitments These KPIs are further discussed i this report and in the Cheef
Executve’s Report and Business Review, and are based solely on our UK operations, unless expressly stated

OUR PEOPLE

The Group employs over 27,000 people, across 19 countnes and vanous sectars, from
Spon, Fashion, Lifestyle, Gyms and Brends, ond our people are whot maokes the Sports
Durect Group such o suceess

Our whole people ethos revolves around *Right Person, Right Ploce, Kight ime” and we
are comnutted to the continued development of our people to meet cur future growth
plans Nurtunng our people o reach ther full potentia! and promating internally where
ever possihte hove been tools that hove been used by the Group for over the lost 30
yeors ond re fundomental to our contining success

ATTRACTION AND RETENTION

As 0 Group, we hke fo train and retn our siaff to ansure that valuable knowledge
remains within the busimess The Group uses o number of incensves to retom our
people, mclading regulardy holding employee opprasals, fo see the oreas where we, as
an employer, con improve We find thot regufor approisols also highfight the knowledge
gaps which our employess have, ond allows us 10 offer stoff traning which wall develop
their enderstanding

Dunng FY15 18 7% of our UK soloned stoff fefi the Group, o decrease from 19 2%
FY14 We estimate that itvs figure will remain reloively low dunng the 2017 Share
Scheme vesting penods

Dur Share Schemes are uhlised to atieact, motvate ond incentrvise our people and
patential future employees We hove found thai creating o shared gool hos improved
employee sotsfachion levels

Store Masager stahility with Sports Direct 15 currently siting of 92%, this 1s an increose
of 6% on the FY14 figure Assistant Maneger ond Footwear Manager stabifity currently
sit of 86 5% and 90 3% respectwely, which 15 an incrense of 6% and 4% across

thg posions

SALARIED STAFF TURNOVER SINCE FY10

e
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PERFORMANCE & REWARD

We reword the hord work of our porticpating employees with the Shore Schemes The
Share Schemes are dependeant on the achievement of predetermined undertying EBITDA
torgets, os well as satisfactory performance of the ndiadual employes

The targets for the 2011 Shore Schemes were

7017 Underyng EBITDA of £215m - Achigved
2013 Underlyng EBITDA of £250m - Achieved
2014 Underhng EBITDA of £260m - Achigved
2015 Undeshyng EBITDA of £300m - Achieved

All four of the 2011 Share Scheme targets have now been achieved Undar the 2009
Share Scheme ¢ 27m shores in fotal vested, and a further ¢ 21m shores ore expected
to vest under the 2011 Share Scheme

The Group olso has severol policies and systems n plage to ensure stoff welfore 1s
monitored ond mantamed These ore laed out m the diogram below

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY
& DIVERSITY POLICY

Ty

TAILORED

RIGHT TO A
EMPLOYEE
HANDBOOK TRADE UNION
STAFF FORUM
GRADUATE RECRUITMENT

During 2014 we son our braduote Recruitment Progromme, “Tolent Bank’ The eight
week programme offered graduates placements n our Ecommerce and Finance feam
with the opportunity o complete prajects within the Group ond compete for rewads,
and the apportunity of o permanent role af the end of the progromme The scheme 15
pand, with intemns working on projects simutor to those i the work environment The
progromme ensures that we ore brngiag in aew talent and the Group 15 constontly
evobving with new ideas and ways of thinking



DIVERSITY

Drversity within the Group 1s essennal ond we befigve this plays on importans role
a successful business At olf imes we Iy to ensure that our people meet the dwersity,
cultures and values of our vaned customer bose

Our Boord curently hos o 14% femole rapresentation, wath further derails being

shown on poge 33 We ore m the process of loaking to recrunt another femals for the
Boord, although we cansider that the necessary skills ond expenence are of poromount
importance, with diversity being of lesser signficance

Femafes make up 32% of our semor management team While we appreciote thot
work could be done fo ensure that the fiqure s more baolanced, we are sohished that the
team possesses the appropnate balonce of skills ond knowledge As posiions become
ovailable the necessary level of consuderotion wall be gven to ensonng dversity within
the team

Qur overall UK workforce base consists of 46 4% females, proving thot discimination
for foctors including gender will aot be toletated within the Group The low 15 paremount
when we secruit employees and we om fo ensure that both mole and female
canddotes are provided with equal opportunities to apply for and work in all posinens
ocross the Group

A BREAKDOWN OF GENDER DIVERSITY:

Male Female
Drrettors [ 1
Cther senics managers kY 17
Al UK workforce 11,450 2,899

TALENT & CAPABILITY DEVELOPMENT

In the Jost yeor we saw the launch of ur new competency framewark, known os the
“Suceess Factors ' The seven Success Factars prowide the behawiours that lead to great
performance i ndwidued 1ob roles within Sports Direct ond mclude the quolines ond
skils that help peaple 1o be successful In shars w's what our *best performers do” and
they descnbe “how we need fo be’

We hove worked on embedding the Success Foctors in fo all of our peaple pracuices
since launch in Noverber 2074 Fustly by infroducing new recruiiment tools and
proviing our store manager populotion n the UK with competency based

Interview traming

Secondly, we lounched our new annual appraisal across UK Retal, Head Office,
Warehouse and Tronsport Ench diwsion hos 6 Success Foctor framework of ifs very
own Our people review and ogree performance within their onnual opprosol ond set
development gools to achieve m the comung year

With the itroduction of the Suceess Factors we have creoted o mechansm of
identfymg and developing arernal talent across the Group fo support our future
growth plans

Qur teams have a vonety of development opportunities usmg diferent methods

We encoutoge growng within one’s cument ol or toking on new chaflenging tasks,
Jeameng from others, supporting indhaduals i realising shew potentiol ond providing
forma! traning opportunities

KEY HIGHLIGHTS.,
Toral workforce (total Group) 27,207
Hours tvested i traming 58,000

DEVELOPING OUR PEOPLE — TRAINING PROGRAMMES

The airn of our Stoff Traming and Development Department 15 to use the Intemotional
Troming Centre to prowide the best, state of the art focifities for ows team to flounsh
nto champions Qur goal 15 to give every member of our teom the opportunity lo be
insprred, snmuloted, motwoted, ond empowered We know that it tokes every single
ieam mamber fo make a difference ond improve the performance of the business

We hove continued to focus on the need o prooctvely develop our team's competence
bose and leadership copabiites in order to meet the rapdly chonging requirements

of the Group Traiming 1s on areo m which we hove continued to iovest, and i FY15
alone, over 58,000 hours were mvested mto training and developing the team ot
Sports Direct

We ore commutted to continug offering o great panfolio of trining courses, the mojanty
of whnch are housed w our very own facilines The portfoho hos continued to grow os it
hos yeor on year with three areos recenang more emphasis

+ “Home Grown” Tolent Management Programime
» (ystomer Service Troining
+ Monogement Induction

We have an sntemaonional approach to traimng by odopting our praciples 1o those in
the countries In which we trade Feoms from: Auséng, Estomig, (zech Republic, Duba,
Malaysia, France, Portugal, Hollond, Cyprus, Switzerand, Kuwart, Belgi, leeland,
Hungary, Slovensa, Slovokia, Poland hove all ortended sessions

“HOME GROWN” TALENT MANAGEMENT PROGRAMME

The Home Grown Tolent Monagement Programme allows us 1o place the right
person in the right position ot ihe right time. It 5 o structured pragramme which
shows staff that outstanding performance can lead ta further opportumities fo progress
within the Group 1t helps reton tolented and key wdsnduals, which in furn reduces
Tecrtment Costs

Qur tafent manogement actwities gre open to the majonty of our workforce, with @
focus on those who consistently show highpotentiol It s part of eur culture to develop
high-potertial employees o grow into future Group lenders, ond 15 @ method which we
have used since day ane We beheve that prodecing o cormon standard of behoviour
for those in leadership roles will improve the fikelihood of the Group achiewing future
goals, and enable vs o retain real ralent, by allowng 1t to flounsh

The Programme encourages our workforce 1o better themselves each ond every doy

At she end of the Programme, prowiding the indnidual has proved to be warthy of
opportunaty, key positions will be offered to these who hove shown thot they ore ready
to take the next step m tew careers

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING...
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CONTINUED

CUSTOMER SERVICE TRAINING

Dunng she yeor our customer service progromme has continved to ploy o pvolal role
when workiag with Sports Retail store stoff The troming model has continued to be
used by Store Managers, theough a combination of seminars and elearing

The “Sales through Sernce’ Madel (STARS} remforces the key elements of successful
tustomer Service

e Smile

* Tolk

* Ak

* Recommend
* Sole

The traiming works in comunction: with our “5 Star Comimission Scheme”, and oims
10 ossist growth expectatons by showing stoff how developing thewr behanours can
arovide o better service to customers ond dive sales

MANAGEMENT INDUCTION

New and existing managers hove attended the fwo week sesidential induchion
programme, which 15 based at our Shiebrook compus The programme consists of

a mixture of shop floor based framing and clossioom centred octvines, with typical
subects mcuding meschondising, admunistrohon, delivery processes, health ond sofety,
shop closure processes, product raiming, ond retarl business skills

HIGH PERFORMING MANAGERS

Our ehte group of high performing opemtional manogers are offered trintng wio work
based schemes which look to further develop ther skills The trmining schemes mclude
topics such os effective leodership, team engogement, performance enhancement and
manogeng through change, with the achwehies based on real wosk situchons We have
found thot the sining mokes an immediate difference o the problem solving, onolytcal
and inter personal communication skifls of those whe hove been frained

INTERNAL PROMOTION REFRESH PROGRAMME

Members of the retl team who are put forword for internal promation ore inwited to
ottend the Operafional ond Manogenal Refresh Progromme This 15 o fve doy residanhal
cousse that consists of shop floor operatonel troming combined with style and behawour
modutes cavering communication, leadership and deasion moking

BRAND TRAINING

Robust trainirg programmes to infarm and tram staff an product mnovahion and brand
irhotives continue Thes ensures that the links between Sports Diredt and the mojor
brands are stronger than ever

Sponts Darect 15 stll o heavy user of Nike Sports Knowledge Undergrayad (SKU) and
continue o be one of the front runners in terms of pescentage complefion warldwide
SKU prowides another eleaming oppartunity for the Sports Direct teom which ollows
stoff to gom essennal foundotion knowledge on Nike Products This foundanion
knowledge s then token one step further on the Nike Training doys held oi the Sports
Dwect Troining Acadermy The days are hosted by Nike Experts (EXINs) ond toke the
foundation knowledge from SKU to o hugher fevel with interaction and involvement
The Mike Graduate Scheme then encourages those who attend the training day fo
transfer thew learning to the tesm in-store By doing so they gam the recogmition of
becoming o Nike Grodunte within thew store Sponts Direct works excluswety with Nike
on this excephonal troining inihatrve

Sports Direct works with adidas and Puma to provide bespoke traimag mihatves fo
support the continued growth of odidos and Pumo producis Through 2014, many ieem
members aitended speciohst adidas sessions, which focused on product knowdedge ond
selling sklls More dates are m the diary for 2015 to support and capture the mein
product releases and new inngvations m sporting technologies

FOOTWEAR MASTERCLASS

Amed ot managers responsible for the footwear department in ther branch, the
Footwear Mostercloss s o three day residentiol course which focuses on one of the key
deportments in o Sports Direct store Typicok subjects covered include merchandssing,
staff efficiency, best practice, health and safety, policees, ond procedures

E LEARNING

It s impostent thot oll staff are engoged with who we ore and what message we wani
to gve 1o customers, and we believe that delivenng effective tduction traiming 15 key
to this Without o proper induchion, there 1s the nisk of staff ot understanding
compliance 1ssues of pokicies, low productmity and poor motwaiion, poor cusiomer
service and los! soles

Recently wa implemented o new, interactwe induchion pragromume that would create
pride i Sports Direct and ensure consistency and structure i foundation roimng
The mduction progromme s avarlable to oll UK Retm! stoff, imed af engoging new
storfers ond re-energising exssting colleagues

Sponge UK, o speciahst eLearning company, hove been engaged by the Group fo
develop an anline induction that corplements the exishing foce-to-face training thar the
Group offers The curent modules focus on the four mon oraos, being sofes ond service,
heabth and sofety, merchandising, and day to doy operanonal iformatien

These areos ore the first in-o plonned suite of courses that will cover all aspects of the
Group's acinty

4s 1115 importont for stoff to be able to occess the learning on the ge, the cowrse hos
heen destgned to work on tablets and smartphones, os well os deskrop computers

The induction programme 15 one of the very first Adapt eleormng coursas, ond we have
17,000 users who currently feel the benefit of this

HEALTH AND SAFETY

As the Company continues to grow there has baen increased focus on creating o
conststent method of evaluaning health and sofety performance Going forward we ore
fooking to set targets and monitor our performance

In relation to the UK workferce we have caleulared the figures per 100,000 hours
worked using o 12 menth solling average The nember of ccuidents mvalviag the
worehouse workforce as of Apnl 2035 was 5 9, compared so 2 8 at Apnl 2014
increased footfoll ond decreased workspace due to ongoing bulding wosks, have both
contributed towards the ncrease The number of accidents mvolving the store, office and
drstibution workforce hos remoimed stonic with 2 5 as af Aprd 2015 and Apnl 2034

in relahon o the generol public we have colcutated the figures per £10m siore fumover
using 0 12 monith rolling average The number of accdents involving the general public
had decreesed over the course of the year and was 3  as at Apnl 2015, compared 1o

47w Aprl 2014

Over the course of the yeor there hove been no environmental prosecutions or
workeloted fatalibes

ENVIRONMENT

We recognise thot we have a responsibility to manage the wmpact our business has on
the emvironment, ond we ore commutied o reducing this both now ond i the future

We continue fo comply wath the Govemment’s Corbon Reduchion Commtment, and hove
wdennfied key orens where we can make o difference, in parficular energy usage in our
stores, transport and woste monogement

We are continuausly aiming so reduce our carbon footpnnt The single most significant
element s elecmaty, which makes up B4% of the footpnit The corbon footpent spread
oeeoss 4l UK sites 15 detailed 1n the chort opposite




CARBON FOOTPRINT ANALYSIS 1 APRIL 2014 - 31 MARCH 2015

- Flectcrty 84%
- Dresel 12%
. Other 4%

The growth of our Company has increased the number of our stores ond therefore the
absolute GHG emissions Our chasen intensiry 1oho of electnartyelated emissians per
£m revenue hos mcreased by 15 9%, 11 5% of which s due to a change n DEFRA's
conversion factor, the remoinder due to the mclusion of @ number of newly ocquired
fitness centres which are more energy consuming and therefore have this effect

GREENHOUSE GAS (GHG) EMISSIONS REPORTING

Reporting perfod" 1 Apil 2074 - 31 March 2015

Baseline year M2

Consolidation Caerahonal controf

approach

Boundary All UK enthes ond fauilities either owned or under operahonol

summary control were mncluded Emissions from ow conditioning and
refngeration units ore exchded due to the cost of daro
collection These are expacted t0 be o naghgible % of scope
1 emssions

Consistency Other thon the emissions declared for the penod 1 Apnl

with Financict 2014 — 31 March 2015 to be in¥ne with the CRC Energy

Stotements Efficiency Scheme, there are no wconsistencies with Finanaiod
Statements

Emission factor  DEFRA (Moy 2013)

dota source

Assessment The Greenhouse Gos Protocal and IS0 14064 1 {2006} We
methodology have used the 2014 UK Government’s GKG conversion factors
Materiolity Matenahty was set of Group level af 5%, with dll UK focilities
threshald estimated fo contabute >0 5% of total emisstons inchuded

Intensity ratio Emissions per €m revenue

{1} The smesions declaind aio for the pored 1 Apnl 2014 = 31 March 2015 12 be mn na with the (RC Enetgy
FHhrency Sl

Scope | GHG emissions are calculated based on the purchased quontities of commercil
fuels using published emission foctors Scope 2 GHG enussions are pmanly cakulored
from metered electneity consumphion ond published erssion factors

(07 equivalent factors are used which ensures we have reported on ofl of the emssion
sovices requied under the Companies Act 2006 Reguluhons

Group UK Only UK Only

Yeur 2015 2015 2014

Scope 1 C0%e emissions 14,129 12,801 11,206

Stope 2 (0%e emissions 114,335 82 455 64,747

Totof Scope 1 and Scope 2 130,464 95,256 75,953
0% emissions (Tonnes)

(0% Emissions {Tonnes/Em) 461 423 368

This 15 the second ysor of mondotory reporting of this dote To prowde analysis egainst
previous years we hove shown comparatve doo for elecmay-related emsssions, which
accounts for 84% of our GHG emissions m the curcent year

The toble below details Electmaty vs Revenue and shows o pro ota mcredse of 15 9%
ocross the yeer

Yoar 2015 2014
(0% Emussions from electnaty (Tornes) 80,160 63,393
(0% Emssions from elecinaty (Tonnes/Tm) 356 307
Hectnerty v Sales Tumaover Index (2012 100) 11746 10} 5
{1) Mot mchuding non-UK revence, in line with the (0% emessions veported.
WASTE REDUCTION

We ore achvely reducng the amount of waste we send to londfil and segregate waste to
ensure that we recyde os much os possile

THIS YEAR WE RECYCLED:

6,127 urats of elecincol equipment (2014 7,099 unus)
94 tonnes of wasts peper (2014 78 tonnes)

9,526 tonnes of cordboard (2014 9,230 tonines)

235 tonnes of meto) (014 147 tonnes)

618 tonnes of ploshic (2014 558 tannes)

Al stores now vse biodegrodsble comer bags and provide the aphon of o “bag for lfe”
Thrs s actvely promoted wn-store through fugh levels of staff engogement

Looking ahend, we wilt confinue our commitment fo minimise woste and improve energy
efficiency ncross our stores

CUSTOMERS

Customer service 15 ot the forefront of aur busiess We aim to prowide customers with
an enjoyable expenence both in-stare and online and ensure all our products are sofe
and fit for purpose

Monitonng customer soisfaction ond responding to quenes 1 o continuaus process
All wniten complaints are recorded, 1nclugiag an analysis of the nature of the complamnt
so that trends can be ossessed and appropriate action taken

We hove an online customer contact form that reduces the time it takes for our
customers to contoct us ond increases the volume of contoct Online communication hos
reduced the amount of time it rokes for us to respand to quanes thereby increasing our
sarvice levels, while reducing the print and postoge costs for both the Group

ond customers

We are confinuously working to improve cusionter service af ol levels wathin ihe Group
from the retod stores, Head Office and through to our website

EVERYTHING IS CHANGIXG..
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CONTINUED

COMMUNITY

SUPPLY CHAIN

We are commutted to responsible busingss practices m our own business and i our
supply chain We continue to procure merchandise from manufacturers who hove proved
to uphold ethical employment and trading prociices, and we hove o stct Code of Edhucs
thot we require every supphier fo adhere to The Code provides for the foir tregtment of
workers, ensunng ¢ sofe emvironment n occordonce wath the locol and notional fows
where workers ore treated with respect ond pard faidy for what they do The code

also ensures there 15 no child labour and no use of illegol means or matenals i the
produchon of goods

We have longstonding relatranships with our supphers who hove demonstrated thot therr
work practices are consistent with Sports Direct’s stondords Approximotely 40% of our
turment supphers hove been working with the Company for 10 years or more We have
worked with two leading supply chain compantes m Singopore and South Koren for o
number of years |Jsmg their locol knowledge and expenence helps benefit the busmess
ond the communities n which they aperate Both businesses have the iughest socrol
ond bustness ethics code which aligns with oue own Lode of Ethics, the BSC) Code of
Conduct (which 15 based upon the United Nations Declaration of Humgn Rights) and the
Secial Accountability 8000 (SAB00D) Code

Sports Direct relies on those supply chain companies to inspect the premuses of all
suppliers ond manufocturers Fraquent mspechons g7 camed out randomly 1o ensure
that goods meet our quolity stendards os well os ossessing continved comphiance with
SAB00O ond our Code of Etics We cense immediately to work with suppliers who do
not meet our cnfeno

We camply with an internationally recogrised list of chermicals thot are banned for use
infobrics The supply chain companies conduct random tests on fabnc which are then
token to o recogmsed loboratory for quality testing and ta ensure that banned chericals
ore not being used

CHARITY

Year on year we dedicate money, clothing ond equipment to worthy chonties, to
ensure that spont can be enjoyed and opprecated by ofl backgrounds Sport 15 not only
important to leading a fit and healthy iestyle, but should olso be seen os fun Qur
dedicotions go some way towords ollowing sports to be enjoyed by ¢ vaniety of unikely
sportsmen and women

KARRIMOR

Kammar became the official clothing and equipment supplier to the chaniy feom
"Wovesdhope' The seven man squad succassfully completed the challenge of o kfetime,
towng the Enghish Chonnel for theee great chanhies, Sowing Faces, The Roya! Morsden
Cancer Chority ond Sald Cancer The aowice team were fully equipped with Karamor geor
10 toke on this gruelling venture, with the o of reising £30,000 Congretulations to
ihe team on thew ouistanding achrevement

SLAZENGER “CHANCE TO SHINE’

Slozenger s the exclusive cricket equipment supplier to the country's most recognised
gressroots ¢ricket development programme, ‘Chonce to Shine” Eech project provides
structured conching and o compenhion programme for o group of schools who would not
have otherwse had the chance to participate n the sport

By 2013, the progromme hod reached one thurd of ofl pnmary and secondary schook
amouniing to almost 7,000 schools and has supported two millcn young people,
almost ha¥ of whom ore gids Over £600,000 worth of encket equipment has been
supphied by Slezenges to enable the programme to run successfully

DURLOP

Durlop works fogether with its sponsored professional golfers Lee Westwood and Darren
Clarke to supply clothing 1o ther “golf schaols” These ore yunior ployer development
schemes whith prowde qualified conchang end mentonng 1o youngsters

Over £40,000 worth of cloinng hos been prowided thiough sponsorstip to the sthemes
so for

LONSDALE

Lonsdale 15 the Official Equipment ond Fight Sports Apparel Supphier for the RAF and the
Royal Navy We are the proud sponsor of the RAF annual Nowice Chomptonships, Fhe
Lord Wakefields

At a grassroots level, Lansdale 15 also o sponsor of the England Boxing Lonsdale Golden
Gloves School Championships and prowides 50 pairs of golden gloves, worth £2,000 to
the finghsts free of charge

EVERLAST

Everlost supports o vanesy of organisahions throughout the vear, including both
sports-onented and chantoble programmes A lengstanding supporter of the most
preshgious amateus boxing competibion i the US, the New York Golden Gloves,
Everlust 1s the official fight glove ond apporel spansor The orgoniseon celebrated
ts 88th year n Apnl

Since 2006, Everlast has olso served os a proud supporter of The Breast Canger
Research Foundotion® (BCRF) Each yeas, Everost donates o porhon of the sale
proceeds from sefected pink producs to help the foundahion prowde fuading for dinscal
and genenc esearch Lost yeor, Everlast donoted $57,433 to BLRF's reseaich efforts
o find 0 cure

ANTIGUA GROUP

Anngua supports ¢ wide vanety of sporfs related and chanty related events throughout
the yeor These nclude The Phoenw Children’s Hospstal Annual Golf Clossic, The
Scottsdate Charros Foundation, The Jerry Colongelo Prostate Concer Event and The
Salvation Army

Antigug 15 olso heavily mvolved in the piomotion of Jumor Golf in Anzora and argund
the country Asnguo hes spansored “The Anhigua Junicr Tour”™ i parmership with the
SWSPGA for over 20 years ond ls supports Girls Golf, The First Tee ond The Juntor
Golf Associntian of Anzona In recent years, Antigun has helped 1o create the Anhguo
Nanonal High Schoal Golf Invitahonal which invites teams from all over the United
States to porhcipate

The Strotegic Report was approved by o duly outhorsed Comemitiee of the Board of
Directors on 16 July 2015, and signed on its behalf by

Oave Forsey
Chief Executive

14 July 2015



THE BOARD

® AUDIT COMMITTEE o NOMINATION COMMITTEE

DR KEITH HELLAWELL QPM # »

NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN, CHAIRMAN OF NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

APPOINTED: 24 November 2009

COMMITTEES: Nominaton ond Remuneration Committegs

PREVIOUS ROLES: Prior to jowung the team at Spoats Birect internationcl ple, Dr
Hellowell spent aver 40 yeors n public secior manogement beng o former Cheef Constable
of two Botish pokice forces While working directly for the Prme Manister between 1998
and 2002 he wiote and coordiated the Uited Kingderm national and mtemahonal
ontrdrugs pohicy Dr Hellowell has been involved 1n the prvate sector since 1998 when
he yoined Evans of Leeds, o fully ksted property company Since then he hos served on
the Bonrds of beth Dofken ple ond Stenence Limited, subsidiones of the French company
Veoko Env He was Non-Executve Choirman of Goldshield Group ple, 0 markefinged
phamaceuncal and consumer health compeny, from May 2004 to s sale n December
2009 He has hald o number of otfier NonExecutive Board posifions m prvate companies
incuding sectors such as vehicle monufactunng ond IT

PRESENT ROLES: Dr Hellowell 1s currgntly o Non-Executve Diractor of Mornce ple, o
Singapore-besed focities mancgament company and o Director of the Super League team
Huddersfield Gionts He aksa runs bis own management and fraining consultancy compony

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: Dr Hellawell has worked n both the public
ond pvarte sector for aver 50 years Throughout this ime he bos bealt up o wealth of
expenence which he hangs to the Group to ensure the successful and effective operation
of the Boord

MIKE ASHLEY
EXECUTIVE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN
APPOINTED: 1982 (founden)

PREVIOUS ROLES: Mike estoblished the business of the Group on leaving school in
1982 ond was the sole owner untl the Group’s fishng 1n Morch 2007

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: Mke was the founder of the Group and hos the
necessory sklls for formuleting the wsion and commesaial strotegy of the Group With over
30 yeoss in the sports reto business with Sparts Direct he s invaluable to the Group

DAVE FORSEY
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
APPOINTED: 1984

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: Dave has been with the business for over 30
yeors, dunng which ime he has acquired significant knowledge ond expenence of the
sports refll business In conunchion with the Executive Beputy Chawman, he agrees
stategy, oppropriate obactves and poliaes for each of the busiesses Dove hos everoll
responsibility for the doily management of the Group

MATT PEARSON
ACTING CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
APPOINTED: 04 lune 2015

PREVIQUS ROLES: A groduate m Maths, he quolified with Tenon, new part of Baker
Tily, 1n 2004 He subsequently yoined Emst and Young, now £Y, m Notingham whese he
worked as on guditor hefore joiming the Geoup

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: Mott pined ihe Group in fune 2007, shortly
after i lsted on the London Stock Exchange, and has since worked dlosely with the
Executrve team ond the Audit Commiriea in hus role os Group Fmaniol Consroller
Mett 5 o quaized Chartered Accountont, wath substonnal knowledge of oll finenel
aspecrs of the Group

® REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

SIMON BENTLEY s e«

SENIOR INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, CHAIRMAN OF
AUDIT COMMITTEE

APPOINTED: 02 Morch 2007

COMMITTEES: Audit, Normination and Remunerohon Commuttegs

PREVIOUS ROLES: Simon qualified es o Chartered Accountont in 1980 and in 1587
jowned Blacks Lessure Group Plc whera he was Chawrmen ond Cheef Executive for 12 years

PRESENT ROLES: Sumon chaws ¢nd s on the hoord of ¢ funge of compentes and
orgorusahons Among these, he 1s Charman of the hair brand Umberro Gionnini, & the
prncepal owner and Chauman of the leading mabile AT operator Cosh on the Move,

s 0 Superasary Board Durector of Global Home, a designer and manufacturer of indoor
fumiture for retorlers, bosed in Viemam, and s Charman of Yod Yashem — UK Foundahon

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: He has lengthy expenence of the sporting goods
industry, ond mantuins the racent and relevant expentence necessory to be Chairman of
the Audyt Committee

DAVE SINGLETON e »

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, CHAIRMAN OF REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

APPOINTED: 27 Qciober 2007

COMMITTEES: Audss, Nominghon ond Remuneraion Commttees

PREVIOLS ROLES: Dove spent 25 yeors with Reshok Internahonal Limited He
stapped down n Aprl 2007 howing assisted with the successhul mtegration of Reebok
followang ts acquisinion by adidas Group in January 2006 For exght years he was Vice
Prasident of Northern Europe Region & UK and then was Semior Vice President of Europe,
Middle Eost & Afnco

PRESENT ROLES: Dove 15 Chairman of Bolton Lods & Gurls Club, Chairman of Bolton
Community Lesure Trust and o Tustee ot Bolton Wanderers Community Trust

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: Dove hes on extensive senios management
record ond brngs voluable expenence of migrnanional sports brand operations

CLAIRE JENKINS o 0 @
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
APPOINTED: 25 May 2011

COMMITTEES: Audss, Nomunation and Remunerafion Compmiitees

PREVIOUS ROLES: Claire’s most recent Executive role wos as Group Diector
Corpornte Affairs and o member of the Execstive Leadership Teom, responsibée for the
company’s sustomabihty ond communicohons achitzes, ot Rexam ple, o leading globol
bevesage can makes Pnor to thai, she wos ¢ member of the Monggement Commuitee of
internatanal tobaceo company Gaflaher Group ple {acquiead by Japan Tobocco in 2007)
where she was responsible for investor relahons and Group plenning Cloire hos also
gained corporate expenence in vonous consulfing roles ond at Lamg & Cruickshank, and os
0 Non-Executve Director of Retro Clossics Fund

PRESENT ROLES: Clore s Charrman of Amvcus, and o Non-Executive Director of Medio
For Development

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: Claire hos excellent olkound business expenence
and, m addien, hos particulor comorate govemance end commumicetion skills
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DIRECTORS” REPORT

The Directors of Sports Direct Interanonal plc present their Annual Report and Accounts for the yeor ended 26 Apnl 2015

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Chief Execuve’s Report on pages 21 to 24 provides o detoiled revew of the Group's
current actwittes gnd porennal future developments tagether with factors Ikely to affect
future development, performance and condinions There 1s akso  able of the prnopal

rsks and unicertonties kely 1o offect the Group The finanaial pasition of the Group, its
cash flow, bqudity position and borrowing foclines are desenbed m the Financiol Review
on pages 25 to 27 The Corporate Resporsibity Report on pages 28 1o 32 reports on
environmental matters, mchuding the impact of the Group’s businesses on Hie eavieonment,
the Group's workforce, ond on socigl and commuruty issues

The prmapal achaties of the Group dunng the year remoined unchonged ond were

o retling of sports ond lexsure clothing, footweor and equipment;

o wholesale dsinbunon ond sale of sports and lessure dothing, footwear and equipment
under Group-owned of licensed brands, and

¢ licensing of Group brands

Further mformanon of the Group’s pnnapal actwities s set out in the front of this
document and m the Chief Executive’s Report on pages 21 1o 24

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR AND DIVIDENDS

Revenue for the 57 waeks ended 26 Aprl 2015 wos £2,832 6m and profyt before
tox was £313 4m compored with £2,706 Om and £239 5m in the por year

The trading results for the year and the Geoup’s financial posiion os of the end of the
year ore shown in the attached Financiol Statements, and discussed further m the Chief
Executve’s Report ond Business Review and m the Financial Rewiew on peges 21 fo 24
and 25 o 27 respectively

The Board has defermined not to recommend o dewdend this year

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONTROL
The authorsed shae capitel of the Company s £100,000,000 dmded nto 999,500,010
ordinory shares of 10p eech ond 499,990 sedeemable preference shares of 10p each

Further informotion regarding the Group's issued share capitol can be found on poge 77
of the Fnaniciol Stetements

Details of cur Share Schemes ore ako set out on page 77

There are 640,602,369 ordinory shares of 10p m ssue and fully paid of which
42,137,508 re currently held in Treosusy

There ore nu specific restnictions on the transfer of shares, which ore governed both by
the general provsions of the Aricles of Associanon and prevailing legslation

The Directors are not awaie of any ogreements berwaen holders of the Compony’s shares
that may result i resmehans on the transfer of secunmies or on voting nghts

The Directors were outhonsed to allt shores i ihe caprtal of the Group up to an aggregote
nominal amount of £19,948,829 (bemg approximately one third of the then sued
share captal} for the penod expirng of 9 September 2015, the date of the 2015 Annual
General Meenng

In iine with guidance from the Associohon of Bntish Insurers the Company wos ako
graated authonty to issue o further third of the ssued share copito! to ¢ namimal omownt
of £39,897,658 (being opproximately 35% of the wsued share capital} m connechon
with o nghts ssue

A funher outhonty to allot shares vp to o maximum nominal volue of £2,992,324
(bemng epproxmately 5% of the then sssued shore copital) os  stotutory pre-emprion
nghts did nat apply, was also approved

The authoniies expire at the close of the next Annual Genesal Meeting of the Company,
but o contract o ollo! shares under these authonties may be made prior to the expiry of
the authonty ond conctuded in whole or part after the Annugl General Meeting, and of that
meening other authonties will be sought from shareholders

The Group was authonsed to make market purchases of ordinary shores of 10p each
i the Company of up to o maxmum aggregate number 59,846,484 representing
10% of the Compony's ssued ordinary share capnal of the 2014 Annual General
Meetmg The above cuthonty expires ot the dose of the next Annual General Meehng
of the Company

SHAREHOLDERS
No shareholder emoys any special control nghits, and, except s set out below, there are
o tesichons in the fransfer of shares or of vating nghts

Mike Ashley has entered into a Relationshup Agreement with the Compony Under the
terms of the Agreement Mike Ashley undertook that, for so long s he s entitted to
exerase, 07 to control the exercise of, 15% or more of the nghts to vote ot general
meenngs of the Company, he will

« conduct all fransachons and relationships with any member of the Group on arm’s
length terms and on a normel commeraal bass,

exerise his voting nghts or ofher nghts o support of the Company being menaged n
aceordance with the Listing Rules and the prnciples of good governance set out in the
UK Corporate Governanice Code and not exercse any of his voting or ather nghts end
powers to procure any amendment to the Articles of Associchion of the Company,
othes than through fus interest in the Company, not hove ony interest in ony business
which sells sports opporel and equipment subject 1o cartain nghts, after notifcation 1o
the Company, to acquire any such interest of less than 20% of the business coacerned,
ond centain other hmited exceptions, without recemving the prior opproval of the Non-
Executive Diractors, and not solicit for emgloyment or employ any semior employee of
the Company

*

The Company has heen advised that the following parties hod o significant direct or
indurect shereholding i the shares of the Company
PERCENTAGE OF ISSUED

HUMBER OF ORDIMARY SHARE CAPITAL

SHARES HELD WITH VOTING RIGHTS HELD HATURE OF HOLDING
Mike Ashley © 330,000,000 55 14% Indirect
Emgﬂ::‘s' bon  g34m,250 563 Indvect
Odey Asse 29,852,065 45% Indrect

Mancgement

{1) ik iy bokds The shomes thuenh et torperies, scerely MASH By Limibed omd MRAGH Holfings Linied, whih hed 303,507 #40 (50.71% of the

bud excivery shors copicl of the Canpany) ssd 26 492,540 (4 43% of e bsowd ecflory shoay casteol of the Compemy oraory shores mepactily Thes
figuns ees @1 11 Jomary 2015 Deing the kot cate on which tha Compaay aas noffied of o change In the pementope of thoms

{2 Thesa Bz oot 23 1 30 Rk 20715, Dt th koor o com wich B oy wes aofied of o chengs 1o thy poroeeoege of v
£3) Thew Pgurms e s o 15 oy 2015 Doy the bost o om whih the Comomy was soefied of o chemga o the peiveage of sboms.



SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importane of mamntommg good reletionshups with suppliers aad f 15 Group
policy o agree opprophote feeros end condihons for rts tramsoctions with suppfiers (ianging fiom
standord wntten ferms 1o mdwviduolly megatited contracs) and for paymen fo be mode in acrerdance
with thesa terms, prowided the supplier hos complied wth tts obligotians

CONTRACTS ESSENTIAL TO THE BUSINESS

OF THE COMPANY

The Chief Executie’s Report on poges 21 to 24 detoiks iformation about persons with whom the
Group has contioctued of other omangements ond ars deemed essemticd or mosenal fo the business of
fhe Broup.

TAKEOVERS

The Directors do not belteve thot there are eny significant contradts that moy change in
the event of 0 successful takeover of the Company Detarls of the impadt of any successful
takeover of the Group on the Directors” bonus and share schemes are set out in the
Dwrector's Remumeraticn Report on pges 44 fo 52

SHARE SCHEMES

Derols of the Executive Shore Schemes are set out in the Directers” Remuneration Report
on page 45 and detadls of the Shore Schemes for paehapating employees on page 28 of
the Corporate Social Responsibifity Repart

STAFF INVOLVEMENT

The Group currently has @ ¢ 27,000 stong workforce in s stores, offices and warehouses
The contriburans that key employees have made to the Group’s cccomplishments have
played a wital role, and the overwhelrming dedication shown wos the decding fector in
encouraging the Group to propose o third Shore Scheme

The 2009 Share Scheme vested in August 2012 and 2013 The 2011 Share Scheme 15
due fo vest lorer n 2015 and m 2017

The 2015 Share Scheme was approved by shareholders at o General Meeting which
took ploce on 2 July 2014, wath the EBITDA targets for the Scheme sponning between
FY16 ond FY19 The Scheme differs from the previous two Share Schemes as eligibality
to pamicipote i the scheme 15 apen to both employses ond Executive Directars, es
dergzmuned by the Boord

The workforce 5 natified of announcements and major chonges in the busisess vie
Compazy news emals and our intrenet, os well os informanion being fransmitted through
lsne managers Training programmes and nduction courses provide the warkforce with
appoerturines to keep up o date with the lotest developments of the Group Qur annual
conference offers them on opportumity to mix with teams wath which they wouldn's
ordinonly mix, to Jeasn about the Group’s ospirations, and fo keep up fo dote with the
larest chonges 1n the Group This 15 o ful doy event and ako has o ronge of ocinhes
1nilored to the specific area in which eoch indmadual works

Further informotion on relationships with our peaple can be found in the Corporate Socic!
Resporsebufity Repost on poges 28 to 37

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

The Group's recruitment policy 5 to match the capabifines and tolents of each spplicant

to the appropnate job Foctors such as gender, race, religion or hefief, sexual omentahon,
age, dsability or ethnic ongin should be ignored and any decsion which s made with
reqard to condudates should be wvespectve of these Discommation v any form will not be
toleroted under ony croumstances within the Group

Applicotions for employment by dsabled gersans are given full and four considesmion for ol
vacancies, ond are assessed n accordance wath thewr particulor skills ond abelines

The Group does ol thot s procticable fo meet its responsibilines towards the troiming ond
employment of dsabled people, and to ensure shat troming, career development ond
promotion appartunihies are available to ofl

The Group mokes every effort to prowide coninuryy of employmest where curent
employess become disabled Attemts are mode in every crcumstane fo prowide
employment, whether this ivobves adopting the cument yob role and remameng n the
sume job, or maving o & mare approprate job role Job retraming and job adaptation: are
ust swo exomples of how the Group works in the mterests of its woekorce fo promote
equal opporturities 1n order that en indmidual's employment within the Group moy
contimee The Group volues the knawledge and expertse that employees hove goined
throughout therr nme with us, and therefore does not wsh to lose

vlued employees

With the aim of achieving our terget of 25% female representation on our Board, we ore
octvely seeking applications from femole: potential Noa-Execuhve Directors

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
The Group designs clottung and some faotwear for sale in stores and hes omangements
with supphiers for the ressorch and development of goods for the Brands diviston

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL DONATIONS

Dunng the year, the Group mode chonfoble cesh donanons of £117,000

(2014 £147.000) m the UK Mo pofincal donohons were mode (2014 nil) There hove
been o number of further donations of sparting equipment made to worthy couses, ond
these are set out on poge 32

DIRECTORS
Detalls of cusrent Directors, dates of oppointment, therr roles, responsibilings ond
significant externol commitments ore set aut on page 33

Alihough the Compony’s Atticles of Associotion require retirement by rotatiant of ons third
of Drectors ench year, the Group has chosan 1o comply with the 2012 UK Corporate
Govemance Code and of each Annuol General Meenng oll of the Directors wilf retice and
stend for reoppontment

tnformetion on service contracts ond detolls of the interests of the Oirectors ond therr
fomikes 1n the share copitel of the Company ot 26 Apal 2015 end at the date of this
Report s shown 1 the Directors’ Remuneration Report on poges 48 and 5t

Copies of the senvice contracts of Executive Dwectars ond of the oppointment letters of
the Chorrman ond Non-Executive Darectors are ovafloble for inspechion of the Company's
regustered office dunng norma! business hours ond ot the Annuol Generol Mesfing

Mo Director hos 6 duectorshup m common or other significant links with any other Director
(except  the cose of the Execunve Directors holding directorships of subsidtary componies
of the Group)

DIRECTORS’ CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Board has formal procedures to deol with Disectors” conflicts of interest Dunng the
year the Bonrd reviewed and, whese appropniate, approved centn situottonal conflicts of
interest that were teported o it by Directors, and o regster of those siuahional confhicis

s momtoined and reviewed The Board neted any tansochonal confhicts of inferest
concerning Durectors that arose and were dedhred No Dwector took part in the discussion
or defermunatien of any matter n vespect of whuch he hod disclosed a transactional conflic
of interest

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING...
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CONTINUED

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

The Group has granted the Directors with Quolifying Thurd-Porty Indemnity provestons
withm the meoning given 1o the term by Sections 234 and 235 of the Compames Act
2006 This 1s m respeci of labilies o which they moy become loble m thewr capacity os
Director of the Company ond of any comparny within the Group Such indemnites wese i
force theoughout the finanaial year ond wall remaim m force

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2015 Aol General Meeting will be held on 9 September 2015 ot Unit D, Braok
Pork East, Shirebraok, NG20 BRY The Meetng will commence af 11am The Boord
encourages shareholders to otfend and parhaipate in the meeting

GOING CONCERN

The Group’s business actwahes, together with the factors ikely to affect s future
development, performance ond posinon are set out in the Business Rewew on pages 21
o4

The fingnaial pasihon of the Group, ifs cash flows, liquidity posttion and barrowang faolities
are described i the Finanaal Review on pages 25 to 27 in addihon, the Fmancigl
Statements include the Group’s objechves, policies ond processes for monoging ifs capital,
its fingnaol nsk management objectves, derails of ifs finonciel mstruments and hedging
actvines, and its exposures to credit nsk and Equidsty nsk.

The Group 5 profitable, highly cosh generative ond has considerable firancial resources
The Group i able to operate comfortably within its banking facilites and covenants, whnch
qun until September 2018, ond & well placed to take odvontage of strofeguc opportumhes
0s they onse

As 0 conseguence, the Directors beheve that the Group 15 well placed fo masoge is
business nsks successfully despite the confinued uncertain economic outlook

The Group’s forecasts and prosechons, taking account of reosonable passible changes
trading performance, show that the Group should be able to operste withun the level of the
current facility

Hoving tharoughty reviewed the Group's performance and huving made sustoble enquines,
the Directors are canfident that the Group hos adequate resources to remain in opesafional
exstence for the foreseeable fture On thus bosis, the Duectors continue to odopt the
going concem bosis fer the prepazation of the Aanual Report and Financil Statements

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

A statemend by the Auditor can be found on page 56 detading their reparting
responsibiities. The Directors fulfi thesr responsibibies and these are set aut in the
responsbility statement on page 53

AUDITOR

Gront Fhornion UK LUP hove expressed o willingness to continue in office In accordonce
with Secnion 489 (4) of the Comporues Act 2006, resolutions to determing remunesation
ore fo be agreed ot the Annual General Meehng

By Order of the Board

Cameron Qlsen
Company Setrettry

16 ity 2015




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group 15 committed to high standards of Corposate Governance The fallowing sechon will detail how the UK Corporate Governance

Code has been apphed durning the year

CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION

| am pleased to ntroduce the Corporote Governance Report, which confims shat for
the yeor ended 26 Apnl 2015, the Group hos comphied with the 2012 UK Corporate
Governonce Code

Duning the yeor we have seen a chonge in the Board's structure os o result of the
refirement of Charles McCreevy in September 2014 Since the retrernent of Chorles we
have been acively looking to recrurt @ further Non-Executve Director

Dunng our continuing search for Non-Executive Directors, we ora octwely encouraging
applications from women The Group hopes to achieve Lord Davies” target of o 25%
representation of women on our Board by the end of 2015

The Geoup's lnck of a Frsance Director dutng FY 15 was o motter which wos questioned
by a number of our mvestors, and | have previously reporsed that we were aware that
the posthon was unusun] for mest FISE 100 Companies Throughout the recrutment
process we felt that we bt o number of hurdles which hindered recruriment, includsng
thot our Group Executives are some of the lowest paid Board members i the FTSE
100, ond that the remunerohon package can be conceived os unoppealing However
the culture of the Group 1s poyment os reward and the teom 15 oworded forge bonuses
for outstonding ochievements Furthermare our smalk Executive team work for o Jorge
amount of thesr ame from the Group Heod Office n Derbysture However the mojonty
of expenenced Execunves ore concentrased in the south of the country, and many find 1t
difficult to consider spending large amounts of the week working oway from home

Throughout the year we focussed on oppointing a Fingnee Director, and n doing so

we have tried to adapt our culture and offer applicants finencial packages to meet
therr expectations i the short term However i daing his we hove had to be mindful
thar there s farness ameagst the Board and that the culturs of the Group 15 met eroded
We feat that our culture aad pay strotegy hos been key to our success fo dats,

and changing this for o porhular candidate could have on advesse effect on our

futwre progress

However, s hme moved on we noted that a strong mterral candidote hod assumed
many of the responsibtities, so we hove oppointed Matt Pearson as Acting Chisf
Financicl Officer Matt has been with the Group since 2007, having mihaly jomed as
Group Fironcial Accountant Mot hos shown great loyalty ond promise, ond having
warked his woy up the renks we feel that he will be a valued addihon to the Boord

Theoaghot the year the Baard hos octively engaged with shazeholders through venious
meetings ond lengthy watten correspondence Bourd members have trovalled to o
number of lecations n order to communicate with shareholders, ond hove sought
quidance from our Company Secretonal team when necessory The Groun's approach
o mvestor relosions wos indered recently following the end of the fixed-term controct
post of Director, Striteqec Development However ot oll nmes the Group endeavours

to promats harmanious relationships with savestors, ond looking forwasd we aim fo
forge even stronger mvestor relasionshigs by utiising the skalls and knowledge of

Mot Peorson

The 2014 UX Comarate Govemance Cade has been discussed by the Boord, ond will
be embroced once 17 opphes to the Group We ore oware that two of the key aims
are to promate accauntabiity ond impsove alignment between business decisions and
shareholder mterests

In an etfort to look towards fully integrating the Code we hove recerved specific
guidance from externgl bodies We hove mzially focused she appheation of the Code
on ks reperting ond temuneration, and we ore working on the broader applications

Key topics of discussion throughout the year have imduded recrutment, legel motters,
expansion oad corporate govemonce matters Additional details of the Group's strotegy
can be found on page 15

4s Chawman of the Boord ! feel honoured to be surrounded by fellow members who ore
50 passionare about therr rotes The Boaid 15 comemitted to maintmining the prnciples of
goveinance, by octwely questioning, chollengeng and endeavounng to understand the
Executive Throughout the yeor one-to-ong meedings have been held berween Executive
ond Non Executive Board members m order that Non-Executve Board members ¢an gain
o fuller understanding of what 1s taking place in the Group

COMPLIANCE WITH THE UK CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The averal responsibility for the Group's nsk management and internal centrols systers
sifs with the Board This i an ongoing process whnch refates fo the entification,
evaluanion, manogement and monitonng of signicont aisks This comphes wath the UK
Corporate Govemance Code

The Board 5 subject fo the UK Comorate Governanice Code, which wos wsued m
September 2012 Fhe main principles of the Code are

LEADERSHIP

EFFECTIVENESS

ACCOUNTABILITY
REMUNERATIONS

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board has reviewed the Company’s cosporate govermance pracesses and pohces, ond
has concluded that dunng the 52 waeks ended 26 Apnl 2015 (the year) the Company
complied with the provisions of the Code

THE BOARD

The Boord consists of the Non Executwe Chaieman, Xesth Hellawell, the Execuive
Deputy Chairman, Mike Ashley, two other Executive Directors, and theee further
Non Executwe Dectors The nomes, skills and short biographies of each member
of the Board are set out on poge 33

The size ond composiion of the Beard 1s regulary reviewed by the Board to ensire thot
thera 15 the appiopnote bolance of skills and expenence

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The role of the Boord s to ensure the overclt long-term suctess of the Group This s
uchieved thraugh the seview, development ond implementation of the Group's strategy
The Boord olso mamiains responsihility for corporate responsibility, occountability and
to ensure effective leadership 15 detegoted to management for the doy to day running
of the Group ond ensures an eppropnate strategy 1s w ploce for succession planning

The Board has @ progromme i place to enable it to discharge sts responsibility of
providing effective end entreprenaunal leadership to the Group withia o fromewerk
of prudent and effectve consrols

The Board plans to mee? on o formal basts six imes dunng the yeor with up to four
oddihonal stroteqy meefings ot convenignt tmes throughost the yeor when broader
issues conceraing the strategic futuse of the Group will be discussed The Board wall
megt on other occasians s and when the business demonds Dunng FY15 the Bogrd
met on 13 occasions
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CONTINUED

A detoled ogenda 15 estoblished for each meeting, and opproprite documentaton is
provided to Directoss in advance of the meehing Regulor Boord mestings provide an
agenda shat will snclude reports from the Chief Executive, repons on the performance
of the business and curent frading, reporis on meetings with nvestors, reports from
Comutteas of the Boerd and specific proposals where the approval of the Board

15 sought The Board will monitor and question manthly performance ond review
onfiopeted sesults

Presentations are also given on business or strategic issues where appropriate, ond

the Boord wall consider ot least onually the strategy for the Group Minutes of the
meetings of Cammitiees of the Boord are circuloted to oll members of the Board, unless
a confhict of interest anses, to enoble all Directors to hove oversight of those matters
delegated to Committees, and comes of onalysts” reports and brokers® nates ore
provided to Directors

In on effort o secure the long-term future of the Group, the Boord hos created ¢ gh

performance culture within the Group by dewising stretching Share Schemes es well o
0 share scheme for senior members of management Areas discussed include investor
relanons, hurmae resources and health and sofety The Boord olso raceves updates on
oreos mcluding nsk monogement ond miemol control systems

it 15 the responsibility of the Directors to ensure that the accounts are prepared ond
submitted Having assessed the current Annual Report, along with the accoents, the
Duectors confiem that, token os a whole, they are for, bofanced ond yaderstandable
The Directors da confism that these documents provide the necessory nformation in
order for sharehofders to assess the Group’s performence, business madel and strategy

KEY ACTIVITIES
 Ensuring the Jang-erm success of the Group

* (Considenng the oblgetions 1o shareholders and other stakehalders

 (onsidenng the effect the Group’s achvihes have on the envsronment ond community
In which it aperates

+ Mamtoming o hsgh business reputarion
+ Maitoining relohonships with supphiers, customers and te widar community

Thers 15 a format schadule of marters that requre Board approvel they ere maters that
could have significant strateqic, fnenciol of reputanonal effects on the Group os o whole

MATTERS RESERVED FOR THE BOARD
» Sets hudgers

* Monitors and reviews strasegy and business performance
 Approves ocquisitions, expansions info other regions / countries
* Appointments and removal of Boord members

» Suceession planning

« Qvarall responsibiity for nternal contsol and nsk management as descrbed on
pages 40 to 41

THE CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The dwrsion of responsibilities between the Non-Executive Chairman, the Executive

Deputy Chowman and the Chief Executive s in waiting and hos been agreed by the Board
However they work closely together o ensure sffective decsion-making and the successful
delrvery of the Group's strategy

The Chairman s responsible for keadership of the Boord, ensuring ifs effectveness and that
oll Directors are able ta play o full part in the achwines of the Company He ensures that
the Directars receive accurate, hmely ond cleor information

The Chasmon offates effechve communication with shareholders and ensures thot the
Board understands the wiews of major mvestors, ond s avollable fo provide advice and
support to members of the Executive tepm

The Executive Deputy Chairman 1s 6n ambassador for the Compony He tokes the leod
n the stretegic development of the Cempany, formuloting the vision ond strafegy in
conunchion with the Chief Executive

The Company hos entered into & Relahonship Agreement with Mike Ashley, the Execuve
Deputy Chowman, whose whellyowned companies, MASH Holdings Limited ond MASH
Beta Limited, currensly hold approximately 4 43% and 50 71% respectively of the issued
share ¢opital of the Company (excluding treosuey shares} This agresment s descnbed in
the Dwectors’ Report on page 34

The Chuef Executive 15 rasponsible for the runming of the Group's business For the delvery
of the stroteqy, leading the management team and implementing speafic decisions
mode by the Board to help meer shareholder expectotions: The Cheef Executive reports o
ench Board meeting on olf matenal matters affecting the Group's performance: No one
wndwiduol hos unfettered power of decision

Grven the structyre of the Board, the fact that the Chairman ond Cheef Executive roles
are futhifled by two separate wdnvduaks and the terms of the Relationship Agreement
with Mike Ashley, the Soard believes that no indrdual or small group of indrdsals can
domnate the Board's decsion making

THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board conststs of three NerExecutve Directors and the Chowrmen The role of the
Non-Executive Directors 15 fo understond the Group m its enirety and constructively
chaflenge strofegy end monagement performance, set Executive remunerction levels ond
ensure §n 0ppropriate succession planning staadegy 15 in place They must okso ensure they
are satwsfied with the occuracy of hinongial snformaion ond that thorough nsk management
processes ase i ploce

The Non Executive Directors have excelfent expenience from o wide range of sectars
The Non Execunive Directors ossist the Board with issuas such as gevernance, internat
control, remunerafion ond rsk management

Swmon Bentley 15 the Semor (ndependent Non-Executive Director He supports the Chairmon
and Non Execunive Diractors ond 15 avadable to sharsholders if they have concesns

THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - EXTERNAL APPOINTMENTS
NorExecutive Directors ore requued to disclose prior appoinimants and other sigaificant
commiments to the Board ond are requsred to mfarm the Board of ony changes to or
udd:honal commitments Details of the Non-Executives Directors” extemal cppointments
con be found on page 33

Bafore accephing new appaimtments Non Executive Direciors ore required fo obton
appraval from the Chawman, and the Chairman requires the approval of the whole Boord
It 15 essentigl that no appoirtment causes a conflict of interest or (eopardises

the NanExecutva Directors” commiment and ime spent with the Sroup in thexr

exishing appointment

THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - INDEPENDENCE
The Group cons:ders the NorrExecutive Directors to be independent i accordonce with the
2012 UK Corparate Govemance Code

fach year the Boord evolugnians consider the indepandence of each Board member
The most recent evalugtions did nat highlight ary Diractors who lacked independence
Although the Board hos remained constont for some time, the longest-serving member
of the Booed has been with the Board for exght yeors, this bewg less than the mine year
pencd affer which independence moy become queshionable




EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS -
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Board hos set procedures to deol with Directors” conflicts of interest thar onse:

{unng the year the Board rewewed and, where appropriate, approved cerfam siuahonal
confhicts of interest thas wera reported 4o it by Directors, ond o regster of those sirughonal
conflicts is mantained ond seviewed The Boord noted ony sonsachonal conflits of
mterest concerning Directors that grose and wese declased No Director ook port n

the discussion or determinghion of ary matter in respect of which he hod disclosed o
sansachonal conflict of interest

EXECUTIVE AKD NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - RE-ELECTION
The Group complies wath the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code and alt Directors offer
themsebves for re-elechon every yeor

The Boonrd has determned that olf Directors must pui themsefves forward for elechon

or reelechon ot the 2015 Annual Generol Meeting to comply with the UK Corporate
Govemance Code Reting Directors moy seek resppomtment ff willng and eligible fo

do 5o ond if 5o recommended by the Nomiaation Commuittee All Directors appointed by
the Board are appointed ofter consideranon of the recommendafions of the Nominatien
Comrtfes, ond those so oppomted must stand for reappountment ot the following Annual
General Meeting

Detals of Executive Dsrectors’ servce conteacts, end of the Chawman’s and the Nor
Exacutve Directors” apgomtment letters, ave given on pages 48 to 49 Copies of service
contmacts and of appantment fetters are ovadoble for nspection ot the Company’s
regstered office dunng normal business hours and of the Annual General Meetng

EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE - TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

All newly oppoted Directors are prowded with on induction pregramme which i tored
o thewr exishing skils and expenence The Board is informed of any matenal changes to
lows and regulations offecting ihe Group’s business

All Diectors have access to the advice ond senices of the Company Secretery, and each
Duecror ond each Board Commsttee may take ndependent professionat edwice of the
Company’s expense, subject to pror nohfication to the other Non-Executive Directors ond
the Compony Secietary Appropriote Directors and Cfficers Insuronce s mainfoimed by
the Company

EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS -
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The prachices and processes of the Board are evaluated on o yearly bass, vatf the most
recens evoluahon being led ntemally Following evaluahons the feedback obrained 1s
considered and the Board act on the learrungs which have come to hght

Dunng 2014, she evotuptions were led extemally, by ysing an evaluator selected by
the Boord, NIMD erporote Servces Limited, which s o speeialist consuttancy fed by
Migel Dovies

BOARD COMMITTEES

To ussist the Boord with the dues, there ore thiee prncpal Bonrd Committees, bemg
the Audit Commitree, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Commuttee

The Committees ore governed by terms of reference which prowde deroil of matters
delegated o eoch Committee and the authonty they have to make decsions Full terms
of reference ate aveloble on request and an the Comipony's website

Atrendance by Directors ot Board and Commitiee meehings duning the year and the tofal
rumber of megtings thot they could hove attended are set out 1n the table below All
Dwectors attended oll mesnngs of the Bogrd ond of Committess of the Board of which
they were members unless prevenied from dong so by pror commitments. The Board &
sonshed that cumrently no one Director exescses o dispropornonate mfugnce

Beard Beard Aodit Rexmwetin  Hoeinetion

b Uil Moy Mosiys Wesogs
Ketth Hellowell 575 7/8 3/30 474 12
Mike hshley 575 4/8 1/4
Semon Beatley  5/5 &/8 3/3 A4 22
Dave Fosey 575 B/8 3/30 4/4m 2/20
Dave Singleton  5/5 B/8 3/3 44 22
Clors Jenkins ~ 5/5 8/8 33 474 21
mﬁwm 25 28 TR, 1

(1) & number of Audid Coremetion Ramenerotion (ommedtes ond Hommngtion { ommtiee moatings wers sttendad by Boord membess
who west ol meembess of the Cormattaes. The Booed members caceined uliendad thets mestings of the ivdation of the (ommties
members

{2} Mostrgs atiended by Thorles Rclvwawy up umll b iateerment on 10 Sapteenbes 2014

The meenings whuch took place throughout the year were o mixture of both scheduled
meefngs, for generat marters, and unschediled meetings, for more usgert matters

All scheduled meesings were oitended by off exwsing Committee members Following
unscheduled magtings all absent members were subsaguently gwen the eaportunity to
review the informotion ond endorse or question the decsions made Ties ensuied that oll
members could have therr theughts recarded, even though fhey weren't avalable dunng
the megting iteff

Immediotely following two unscheduled Board meebngs Stmon Bentley gave opproval
vinemail Kesth Hellowell also gave telephone approval mmediotely following one
unscheduled meating which he was uncble to ¢rtend These ohsences were unoverdgble
due o other pre-plonned commutments by the Direciors Despite the relohve shor nohte of
many of the unscheduled meenings, attendance tevels by the Boord hos remaimed high

There were  number of meetings throughout the yeor which were solely for
NortExecutrve Directors ond the Choirman Mestings alsa took place which were
attended by Nor-Executive Dizectors without the Chairman These meetings enabled the
Non-Executive Directors to discuss matters which they perhaps could nak distuss with the
Executive Drrectors and /or the Non-Execuive Chowman presant
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CONTINUED

AUDIT COMMITTEE
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 2015

Dear Shaseholder,

| am pleased to present the Audit Committee Report for the 52 weeks ended 26
Apnl 2015

The Audit Commttee hos an important rote to ploy n effective reporting to our
stokeholders and ensunng hugh standerds of quolity ond effectveness in the extemol qudit
process This year hos seen the introduchion of many changes fo corporate reparting

This seport provides on ovenniew of
o What the Committee hos done dunag the year, and what is planned for 2016,
o The effechveness of its ocinhes,

« How it hos ossessed the effectveness of the extemal eudifors, mchiding ensunng their
independence, ond

« The Commuttee’s apmeon on the Anrual Report when viewed os o whole

MEMBERSHIP

The Audit Committee compses me as Charmas, and oll of the Non-Exequtive Diredtors
Biographical details of each member are shown i the Board of Directors” profifes on
poge 33

MEETINGS

The Commuttee met three times dunng the year and attendonce ot those meetings s
shown on poge 3% within the Corporaie Govemonce Report At the invitation of the
(ommnttee members, the Group Choinan, Ciuet Executive and the Acting Cheef Financiol
Officer attend Commirtee meetings, o5 do the externol and internal ouditors After eoch
of its meenngs, we met with the externol ouditors, in each cose without the presence of
Executive Directors or manogement Jn oddition | meet with the auditors os and when it
s needed

THE MAIN RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE INCLEJDE:
® Assisting the Board with the discharge of its responsibilizies in celation 1o wtemal and
extemal oudits and controls

* Agreaing the scope of the onnual audit and the tnnyaf audss plan and monitorng
the same

Rewewing oad manitonng the mdependence of the external ouditars onc reiotionships
with them

+ Agreemg end momtonng the extent of the aor-audit work tha may be undertoken
« Reviewing and agreement of the exteral oudst fees

* Momitonng, making wdgements and recommendations on the financied reporting
process and the integery and clonty of the Group’s Financial Statements
 Reviewing ond monitonng, throughiout the year, the effectveness of the internal conirol

and nsk manogemsent pohcies and systems in place, ncluding a rewew of the octwaties
of the intemel oudit funchon

* Monitonnag the audit of the annual and consolidated accounts inchiding a review of the
Letter of Representotion, Audit Findings report ond engagement letters

* Reporhng to the Board on how it hos discharged s responsibiliies and the
effectiveness of the Audit Committee

WHAT HAS THE COMMITTEE DONE DURING THE YEAR?
* Moaifored the effectveness of internal controks, and olso considered the current
economi cimate ond is fikely impact on the Group

= (onsidered the reappomtment of the auditors
* Reviewed arcounting policies, presentations and the Financial Stofements
* Reviewed iis own efferiveness

INTERNAL CONTROLS
4s one of the fostest-growing resoiless with ropudly expanding overseos ond mtemes
operatiens, we have many complex operatienal asks to manage

The audit rewews led by the long established Refad Support Unit hove led the way,
through therr audits across the refail operations each year, m providing comfort over the
efficiency of controls over the operational procedures ond systems which help to generate
and regart the rumbers within the Financiol Statements, and will coatinue fo do so

Conscious of the rate of growth, ncreasing complexity and the increase in responsibily
thol we os an Audit Committee hove in reviewang the intemal controls throughout the yeor,
we oppomted BDO lost yeor as internal oudit odwisers BDO have speaalists expenenced

in puditing the strategies and plans put in place to mihgote ks to further strengthen the
control eavisgnment

BDO hove conducted a reveew of our key nsks, and, in consultohon with us, hove
developed o strategic audit plan to provide assuronce to the Audit Committee regording
the monogement of these key nsks over the nex! three years Ths plon wos presented to
the Audit Committee, and has been approved and ogreed os o defarled annual programme

The Cometies hos delegated responsibiity from ihe Board for considering aperanional,
finonciol and compliance nsks on a regulor bosis Information an the Group’s opproach to
mtemna control and ask management s set out ta the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 37 to 43

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

On on ennual bosss, the Committes considers the reappomntment of the ouditors and then
remuneration and makes recommendohons fo the Board The ouditors ore appomted eoch
yeor at the Annual Genero! Meefing The Committee consider the fevef of service prowded
by the auditors and thewr independence

The Committee hos recommended the reappaintment of Gront Thornton UK LLP for FY14

The Committee took o number of factors into occount in s ossessment inciuding but not

Imited to

* The quahity and scope of the planning of the audit n ssessing nsks and how the
extemal auditors plonned fo evolve the cudit to respond fo changes in the business,

» The qualiy and nrneliness of repors peoided 1o the Comminee and the Boord,

o The level of understanding demonstroted of the Group’s businesses and the
retoil sector,

e The objechvty of the extesngl puditors’ wews on the controls around the Group and
the tobustmess of challenge and findings or areas which required management
judgement, and

+ Aseview of external reponts published, for example by the FRC, in respect of
Grant Thornton

The Commutee’s wiew following this assessment was posinive w elosion to thewr evaloanon
of the work of the exteraal ouditars and they felt that high standards had
been mamtained

After soking mio account ofl of the above foctors, the Commitiee concluded that the
external auditors were effective

The Commties helieves ther independence, the objectnaty of the externa! oudit and the
effectveness of the qudit process is sofequosded and remains sirong This 1s disployed
through thew robust iternal processes, therr continuing chollenge, therr focused s2porting
ond ther disasssions with both management and the Audit Commitiee

To maimtam the objectrty of the audit process, the extemal ouditoss are required fo rfote
gudit partners for the Group oudst every five years and the current lead partner has been
m ploce for two yeors Under the 2012 UK Comorate Governance Code, audit services
must be put to tender ot denst every ten years o else we must expian why we hove not
done so Our current ouditors, namely Gront Thorton UK LLP, have been n place since the
Isting in February 2007



In light of the above our cursent mtention 1s 15 put the external audir services to tender for
the audis of the penod ending Aanl 2017

The Commuttee hos approved o policy on the sngegement of the externat oudiors for nos-
audst work, n order 1o ensurs thot the objectwaty of the ouditors” opiion on the Group’s
Fuancal Statements i not or moy not be seen o e imparred, and hos established o
process to momitor compliance

The extemal ouditors may cany out certain cotegones of non-oudit work thot hove eithes
heen pre-approved by the Committee or the Boord, dependsng on the nafure and monetary
vatue of the serces to be prowided The policy also prohibuts the ouditors cuditing thesr
own work and making menagement deasions

The policy sdentified three categonies of potential work

AUDITOR AUTHORITY TYPE OF WORK

Work the ouditor may not provide s~ The work inchudes the preparation of srccuniing

completing the task could create o entnes of Financiol Statements, T systems design

theeat to dependence and inplementation, monogement of projects and dax
plarning where the outtome would hove o matenol
mpoct on the Finanowol Stafements or whaea the
outcome 15 dependent upon occounting treatment

Wosk the ouditor moy undertake with  Corporaie hinance services, ocquisthon due diigence,
the comsent of the Chamman of the management consultancy ond secondment of staff athes

Audit Committee thon for the preparation of accounting entries of Financol
Stafements
Work the auditor mey underioke These are servaces that the owditoss moy prowide as the

work s clearly ouditseloted and there 5 no potenticl
theat 1o independence, mckuding regulotosy reporting
and nching os reporing oecountants The Compeny &
satishied that is policy folls within the requirements of
the Audiing Practces Board

The Commitiee reviewed the nature and extent of nor-audit fees expended on
teansachons, pensions ond tox advisory serwices, tax complience, the rewew of the half
yeor igpors ond other ossuronce reloted services, and the Committee concluded that the
sofeguards sef gut obove were sufficient so os not fo compromise ouditos independente or
objecaty

REVIEWED ACCOUNTING POLICIES, PRESENTATIONS AND THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Following the revision 1o the X Corporate Governance Code, which appfies 1o financicl
yecrs commencmg on or after 1 October 2014, the Board asked the Committee to advise
on whether the Annuak Report ond Finoncie! Statements, token s o whole, wese fai,
balenced and understandable ond prowded te nformotion necessasy for shareholders to
ossess the Group's business model, siraregy and perfosmance The Commirtee ceviewed
the pracess for grepenng the Annual Report and Accounts

This process nchuded the doflowing key elements

o Review of new raqulanons and reporting requirements with externok advisers to dentify
addionat nformation ang disclosures that moy be apprognate

» Preparation of o detailed hmetable and ollocation of diaftmg responsibulity to relevant
mtemal teams with review by an appropnate senior manoger

« Pravision of on explonaron of the requirements of “forr, bafonced ond undesstandable™
10 thosa with drofting responsibifity

 Monitonng of the mregaty of the Financal Statements end ether nformation provded
1o shoreholders to ensura they represented o dleor and occurste ossessmens of the
Group's fmancial performance and position

 Review of sigaificant finanaial reporftng ssues and judgements contoined in the
fmonggl Statements

« Review of oll sections of the repor by relevont extemal advsers

* Review by the senior monoger warking growp respossible for the Annua Report process
* Intenm progress review of process and report cantent with the Audut Committee

 Revew of o poper presented to the Committee, which sef out to review the contents of
the Annwal Report ond substanfate why it prowided o fon, bolanced ond undersiondable
wview of the yeor under review

The Commuttee reviewed the Annual Report ond has confirmed it s fair, halonced
ond understondable

FINANCIAL REPORTING
The Commutiee’s review of the intenm ond full year Fnoncul Statements focused on the
followng orens of significance

* Risk of froud in revenue recogmtion — The Commuttee have reviewed the revenue
recognition policies for oll motesol revenue streams They hove also reviewed ond
considered e audn findings and the overol] contiot enwronment in place srounding
the recognition of revenue and & satsfied that revenue has been comecty recogrised m
the Financial Statements

* Denvatve finoncial essers — The Commuttee has rewewed the valuation of contmcts
for diference assets os at 26 April 2015, the accounting treatment of fax value
movemenis on these contracts and the related disclosures ncluded n the Financal
Starements The {ommittes have conchuded that the volustians hove been reasonably
reflected i denvative finanaa! ossets, that appropncie eshmates have been opplied
ond that these have therefore been comectly treated ond odequately disclosed in the
Finoncal Statements

* (omying volue of ventory the Commuttee hos reviewsd manogement's paper seffing
out the busis on which the inventory provision i colculored ond s sofisfied with the
rensonableness and conssstency of model apglied ond thut stack is beld at the lower of
«os1 ond net renhsoble value

« |ntangibles imperment assessment  the Commitiee considered the key udgements
includmg the discouat rate, long-term giowth rate, and the projecred future cash flows
of each coshgeneratiag unit to whch goadwill s allocated, bosed upon fnancal
plons approved by the Boord The Commuttes s satshied with the methodology and
assumptions used, and the conclusien that the Group's mtangible ossefs are not
mpasred

The Audit Commuttee s sofsfied with the level of ngor apphed by the external quditors in
addressing these arens os part of the audit proceduses

REVIEW OF OWN EFFECTIVENESS
After undertaking o rewew of s own performonce she Commirtze cancluded thot 1i hod
been effectve i dischasging the obhgations entrusted to it by the Board

Simon Bentley
Chawman of the Audit Committee ond Sentor Independent NonExecutive Director

16 July 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CONTINUED

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Brographecal details of each member re shown n the Boord of Directors profites on
poge 33

The Remuneranon Committee consists solely of Non-Executive Directors who ore
considered independent The pumose of the Comattee 1s to asswst the Boord fo ensuie
that Executive gnd Noa-Execunve Directors receive appropriate levels of pay and benefits
A key pnonty s 1o ensure that remuneration pohicy s oligned wath stiategy fo achieve

the longrterm success of the Group The Committee ensures that i complies wiih the
requements of regulatory and gavernance bodies ncludmg the UK Corporate Governonce
Code whulst meeting stakefoldes, sherehotder and stoff expectaions

THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE INCLUDE.
= Determining the Company's policy on Executive remuneronon, mcluding the design
of bonus schemes ond targets end payments made thereunder
 Determinig the levels of remunerahon for the Chaisman and each of the
Executive Directors
* Monitorng the remuneration of senior management and making recommendgions in
sespect thereof
= Agreaing any compensohon for loss of office of any Executive Director

The Remunesohon Comumittee meets of feost three imes o year and met an four occosions
dunng FY15

A report on the remuneranon of Directors appears on poges 44 to 52

WHAT HAS THE COMMITTEE DONE DURING THE YEAR?

* Worked on the Shore Scheme, including announcements and essessing the kkebiheod
of achiewing targets ete

+ Rewiewed and opproved the Directors” Remunerchion Report contained on pages
41052

Full derails of Birectors” semuneranon ¢an be found in the Remunerotion Report on
page 50

Dave Singleton
(hawrmon of the Remunarahon Committee

16 July 2015

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

in my role as Chasman of the Nomemation Commnittes, | enswre that the Board remains
competent, balanced ond effective These goals are achieved m o number of ways,
ncluding moniorng the succession of the Boord, reviewing its performance ond
denifying ond neminating suitable condidotes to fill Boord vocanaies

Biographical details of each member are shown in the Boord of Directors” profiles
on page 33

Dunng o review of the skills, expensnce ond dveesity of the Comemines, 1t was
secommended that Cloire Jenkins should woin, on appointment which she hos
duly accepted

The aim of the Comattee 1s to ensure that the Board remaims bolenced, knowledgeahle
ond gwverse in order that it 15 able to fully meet the needs of the Group Gorng forword
we Qim0 conanye o marage e transinion of the Boord, i pacticular the addihon of
new Non-Executive Directors, through meetiags with condwdates (hosh o1 interviews ond
ot networking events), consulting with other Commuttee members regording therr views
on the surtabidiy of candidates, ond discussing the key requirements of the Group with
Boord membess

The Nominohon Committes will mest ot least once o yeor ond will olso mest when
appropnate The Committee met formolly on two occosions duang FY1S However the
Nammation Committes met mformally on o number of further accosions dunng the year i
order o discuss the apposntment of o replacement Finonce Director and o Non-Executive
Duattor(s) Al of the Nominohon Committes members are Non-Executive Directors and
considered to be ndependent

THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE INCLUDE:

* Reviewng the leadershi needs of the Group, loaking at both Executives and
Non-£Exetutives

» Reviewing the composition, structure and size of the Board, ond makng
recommendahons to he Board of adpsiments that are deemed necessary

* Grang consideration to successton planming for Directors, toking into account the
challenges and oppostunities focing the Group and the skills and expertise thesefore
ngeded on the Boord

* Ensunng thot Durectors are aware of what s expacted of them

* Formally documenting the appoimtment of Directors

* |dentifying porentiol candidates for sentor posts, and moking recommendations to the
Board o3 ond when necessary

The Board hos established & Momingtsn Commuttee to ensure o formal, ngorous and
transparest procedure for the appoiniment of rew Diectors to the Board

The Nominahon Committeg: also defermines succession plans for the Chairman: and the
Chief Executive who are not present at meehngs when the motter s discussed Suceession
plans ore revewed by the Nominonon Committes at keost ance ¢ yeor

Dave Farsey, the Chief Executive, will usually attend meetings of the Nomsnation
Committee, unless the Nomination Committee 15 dealing with matrers refating to him of
with the appointment of his successos

WHAT HAS THE COMMITTEE DONE DURING THE YEAR?

* Assited with the search for @ Finonce Director and recommended the appointment
of Matt Pagrson

= Faciitated the seorch for o Non-Executive Director ond reviewsd the steps token
fowsrds making an appointment Candidates met with members of the Committes 1n
order that the Commuttee were able fo form o conclusian regarding recommendotions

+ Reviewad the fop management stiucture n ploce Made recommendations ¢s to
changes which may be required n oides to skengthen the position of the Group
in futuee

* Retommended and appointed onother NoreExecutive Director to the Committes

¢ Met with cormorate governance hodies and rewewed ihe feedbock given

The Board believes that the Board ond ifs Committees os currently conshituted are
working well

Dr Keith Hellawell GPM
Chewman of the Nemumation Commuttee and Chomman of the Board

16 July 2015




UK BRIBERY ACT

The Group has on agpraved poficy m place which wos created followsng the introducion
of the UK Bbery Act As o result of the Act, all policies end procedures hove been
reviewed to ensure that they comply with the Act snd mensures ere m ploce fo prevent
statf bewng offered ond / or accepting bnbes

BUSINESS MODEL

Ouw busmess model, winch sets out the bosts on which the Compeny genesntes o
preserves valug over the longes term, and the shateqy for delvenng the abjectives of the
Compony, con be found of pages 14 ond 15

WHISTLE-BLOWING
There 5 o formal whesile-blowang palicy in place for stalf who wish fo roise issues or
concerns relating o the Group's actvtres on 0 confidennial bosis

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recogmse the importonce of communicaing wath shareholders Thirs s done
thraugh the Anaual Report ond general meetings, ond announcements All Directors ore
ovadoble of, ond folllowng the Arnual General Meenng when shoreholders have the
opportunity 0 osk questions

The Chowman and the Chief Executive regulody meet wath the Company’s imstitutional
shareholders to discuss the Group’s strategy and financiol performance within the
constraints of iformation already ovailoble to the public All otfer board members ore
also nviloble to meet with sharsholders, os ond when required

The Company’s corporate website s on important teok of communicotion, which should

be used s the first port of col for shareholders The sue holds ol London Stock Exchange
announcernents, together with downloadable investar presentations, shore pice charts and
brand informonon

Duang the yeor members of the Boord aad senior management have met with
shoreholders in order to discuss thew quenes The meetings hove been considered an
opporturisty ot only to secognise the marters which ore of imporiance to shareholders,
but also for shareholders to recognise how the Group aperates The shoreholder meefings
thot have token ploce dunng the year nchude foce to face meenngs, ndmidual ond group
conferance calls, ietters ond emoils

REMUNERATION
The Remunerahon Comamittee 1s responsible for determintng and reviewaing remunerahon
policy and setnag remuneration levels Sez Remunezation Report on goges 44 to 52

SHARE DEALING CODE
The Group has adepted the Model Code os published in the UK Listing Rutes

All those deamed to have ‘wsider wformation” must seek consent prior fo any degling
whatsoever in the Group’s shores

The Executiva Directors must ofitain prior conseat from the Chasrman or the Semor
Independent Non-Executive Durecior The Chauman requues consent from ihe Chigf
Execuive o the Semor Independent Non-Executve Duecior, and eny other employees
with ‘sider nformation’ must gaint the pror conseat of the Chief Executve or Company
Secretary before degling in the Group’s shares

Detatls conceming the share capeot structure of the Company can be found i the
Director’s Repart on peges 34 10 36

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The key features of the Group’s sysiem of mtemal control and sk mancgement systems
m relotion to the finoncio! reporting process ond the preporation of the Group accounts ore
set out below or cross-referred to other parts of the Asnuol Report where relevant

The Board of Direciors hos overall responsibifity for determining the noture and extent

of the signiicant nsks it &5 walling to take in achieving iis strotegic objectives and for
mawtainig soud nsk monagemest and intemal cantrol systems, and for reviewing their
effectiveness The sk manogement pracess ond systems of internal control ore designed
to mannge rather than ehwmate the nsk of foflure to achieve the Compony's objectives

It should be recagmsed that such systems can only prowide reosonsble bt net abschute
assurance agonst motenol msstatement or loss

ASSESSMENT OF BUSINESS RISK

A system to dennfy, ossess, and evaluate business nsk s embedded within the
manogement processes thigughaut the Group Strategic nsks ore regularly reviewed by
the Board and its Committess Risks reloting to the key ochvities within the subsidiory
operpting uuts are assessed conhnugusly

Further defoils of the nsks ond uncertinnes relating to the Group’s business, and how the
Group seeks o minigate these, <an be found on poges 17 to 20

By Order of the Board

Cameron Olsen
Company Secretory

16 huly 2015
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Deor Shareholder,

On beholf of the Boord, | om agowm pleased to present our report on e cemuneration
strofegy end policy of the Company of the end of yet another very successful year We himly
believe thar this confinued success & strongly connected with the mtvoduction of our Share
Schemes 1 2009 and 201, and now our 2015 Shore Scheme The schemes are designed
fo encourage, recognise and reward ouistording performance and to drve shoreholder value

The remunesahon pobicy of the Company s afigned to its commercial stategy for long term,
consistent ond profitable growth The remunerotion packoge for Semor Executrves s highly
weighted towords performance-veloted remunerahion, pad mostly in shares, and us design
s conststent with fhe reward philosophy for the wider workforce This stiotegy s reflectve
of on extremely strong Executve and employee performance cufture and o reward ethes of
“One Teom”

The Company phlosophy s that Executive remuneraion should be simple, tronsparent and
directly support the defivery of the business strategy and sharchalder retums The Exequtive
Directors’ basic selones hove been defliberately set at o level welt below the lower quanile
of o busiess of the size end complexty of the Group Indeed Dove Fersey's salury hos
remained the same since 2002 and agoin will not increase i FY16 Also, the Senior
Execuiives currently enjoy a0 addihonal benefits from the Company

The Executve Directors do not recenve on annuol bonus Rather, to dive sustoined long-term
business perfarmance, mstead of granhng smoller awards on an annuot basss, lorger upront
awords ore granted which only vest f significant and conssstent growth s defivered yeor

on yeor Annual performance fargets whech must be hit ensure o focus 15 momiained on

a consistent ond dong-term profitable growth strategy The extended hme hanzon for the
vestmng of awards for the 2011 Executive Share Scheme s six years (in 2017) and for the
fult vesting of the 2015 Shara Scheme it ts also sx years (in 2021)

(lzar, gublished and stretching onawal performonce toigets must be fully sohshed before

any of the shore awords vest Aigned to the Compony's high performonce wwtture, the Share
Schemes ore designed or the bosis that awards should vesi mn full for achieving siverching
targets (e with an - all or nothsng” vesting schedule) rathes than prowding for a lower level
of veshng for meeting o threshold torget nsing to full veshag for acheving the stiefch targers
{re uscoled vestmg schedule) Becouse the Executwe Directors” remunerahion opportunity
15 highly werghted towards performance-related semuneration which will not vest i stretching
performance targets aligned with the business strateqy are not met, they share nsk with

the shoreholders The size of these pedormance-only owards should be considered i this
context

The Rernuneration Committee firmly believes that this simple and very tronsporent share
meentive Sramewaork is totolly aligned with both the Company strategy for growth and its
performance culture We olso believe that this strategy has directty drven the hestonc out
performance of stssich targets anginally ser by the Commitiee by further ohgning Executve
and employes semunerohon potental o increased and on-going shareholder valug This
wcreased share value incentive hos also led o o further “Yifing of the performance bar” for
future awards

There 1 no doubt thak the incephon of the currert remunerahion sirotegy 1n 2009 hos dearly
led to strong shureholder volue ncseoses dunng o difficulr economic peniod, ond of has
provided a strong platform for the on-gomg and long-term suceess of the Company

Dunng FY14 the Remunerohon Committee re-assessed the shoreholding quidelines for
Executive Duectors and determined thar the Executive Direciors must now hold o minmum
of 50,000 shares while they remam employed by the Compony Dove Forsey's shareholding
on 24 Apid 2015 meant thot he sofisfied the quidebae As on acting Board member, Mott
Pearson 15 not cmently requmed 10 satefy the shorcholdng guideling If hs oppomimment
becomes permanent, Matt Pearson would be expected to cequire the minmum number of
shores over o reasonable nme period determined by the Commitee

On 2 July 2014, we wes pleosed to announce thot the rsoluton to gpprove the 2015
Share Scheme was passed, with o mojorty of shareholders efigible to vote on the resoluhon
votng v favour (the Executive Directors elected not o vote) and it was then included m
our Remunerotion Pohcy which wos approved by shareholders ot the (ompony’s AGM in
September 2014

Urdes ihe 2015 Shore Scheme oll employees (including Execuive Directors) who ore
determined by the Board os efigible wha meet the qualifying condinens oad pedormance
cnteno os determuned and agreed by the Remuneration Commuttee and the Boord will be
able to parhapate The terms of the 2015 Share Scheme prowide for the grant of nrkcost
options over up o 25m ordinary shares i the Company {amounting to approximately

4 2% of the wsued share copital of the Company) Senior Execuive grants are imited to
o moamum of one mallion shares each The vesting of oy aphons would be condionel
upan the ochievement by the Company of four Adpsted Underying EBITDA targets {before
scheme costs) set by the Comemittee [f these performance targets ore ofl met, 25% of
any award would vest following the announcement of the Company's oudited results for
FY19n July 2019 and 75% of the oward would vest following the announcement of the
Compony’s audited results for FY21 n July 2027 When the Scheme wos approved the
Adjusted Undedyig EBITOA targets (hefore scheme costs) were {1} FY16 £480m, (i}
FY17 €570m, (i) FY18 £650m, and (v} FY19 £750m

Speabwally talored 1o Company culture and our growth stotegy we continue o review

the robustmess of the Scheme The Remunerotion Committee considered these forgets

10 be extremely siretching, dependent an strong organic growth and fo o degree on an
aggressive ocquistions stroteqy However, as we enter FY16 1t 15 clear, ond oko understood
by the market, that ploaned acquisiions in FY15 did not fully metenalise As such, the
Commttee believes the FY16 Adjusted Underymg EBITDA tonget of £480m fo now be on
unregsonably chollenging one Followng its recent review the Committee now recommends
tu shoreholders o revised FY16 Adjusted Underyng EBITDA farget of £420m This compares
o the £383m EBITDA actieved n FY15 (i e the delvery of ¢ 10% growth m one year) Al
uther torgets for the further three years of the Scheme currently remen the same As noted
in the FY15 prelieranary results announcement, the Remoneranon {ommuttee walt continue fo
review the robustess of the Scheme on an onnual basis Whilst the Committee considered
there to be some leeway for makmg such an adwstment withan the Scheme wles without
shareholder opproval it decded thet ths chonge should be put to shareholdess os an ardinary
resolution of the Lompony’s AGM in September 2015 Furthermore we have olso added o
provision for cawbock to fhe scheme {in oddition fo the exising malus provssion) fo enable
the Compony to recover bonuses paid persuont to the Scheme for 12 months post veshing n
the event of senous hnancict miscondutt by any Executve Director

In our Remunerohion Policy we also indicoted that Mike Ashley, despite being eligible to
participate in the 2015 Share Scheme, following discussions with the Committee informed
the Compony that he did gt wash ro parhipare i the 2015 Share Scheme and as such
the Committee deaided to make no ward to Mike Ashley under the 2015 Share Scheme
Subsaquently the Committes has now formally removed the ability of Mike Ashley to
participate in the Scheme

I addition Miks Ashley mformed the Company and the Commuttee thot he did not expect
any shore bosed incentve scheme to be proposed to shareholders m relation fo hrs role as on
Executve Diector winle the 2015 Shore Scheme 15 in ploce He remans fully commutted to
achieving the strerching torgets of the Scheme 1t should be nated that Mike Ashley bas not
recened ony remunesaton from the Company since before the public offenng :n Februery
2007, no: has he portoipated in sither of the Executve Shore Schemes

It remains our 1ntennign to continge with the exsting mansparent, highly parformance-geared
remuneranon policy for ous Executwes, ¢ low salary, no annugl bonus or additional
benefits, and the 2015 Share Scheme ollows us to continye on s path

Dave Singleton
Chawrmon of the Remunerghon {ommittee

16 July 2015




DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY
Thes part of the report sets out the Company’s Directors’ Remunerahan Policy, which, subsect fo shareholder appsoval, shall toke bnding effect from the date of the 2015 AGM
The Policy 15 determined by the Commuittes. For ense of reference, s port of the report highlights where the policy differs from the policy approved by shareholders ot the 2014 AGM

FUTURE POLICY TABLE
The table below descnbes each of e elements of the remuneration package for the Executive Directors
ELEMENT OF PURPOSE / LINX TO OPERATION MAXIMUM PERFORMANCE MEASURES CHANGES
REMUNIRATION | STRATEGY TO $OLICY
APPROVED AT
THE 2014 AGM
BASE SALARY Foond wloromtt of e irrescion | Boss seoeis mva noumolly sviewred eneelly ered hove ot bees weamed | Atough sciumes for Exmulies Diectors {athen thon Maky Mot eppltable. o derges.
package whee e beionce of sace 20007 dohly who doss nol currerdly ecows  schory wnd Mt
fired and venchls emeneaion Poocan whe has been eppoizied s so.acing Bl meobe)
e b e oo gy | 2 Y o st oy e by o s o oo sef ot 5150 00 s 2007 e Lompty torrs
of longrienin peotieble geowth end decetion 4o 18 salcnes & ¢ bvel cocxerranale wilh other
mlfiacs the {ompony ezression compares. of o udkn size and (oeaplenty v the (ompoty
phadosophy o getng 1ewod lo Mot Pacrson's solry will bo sevewed durmg § 116 1 ke
pasiotznarc e weh o shomy) of mk oucourt of ks soke o3 e octng Boced membed o i e
betwaen [xaeutme Desctors. apponimend barmes pemooesd.
o hessinklon. Sainms koo new Expeutwe Duectors will bo sat o occordonca
with tha Commstien § pnooch b iecaiment ecrzmehon,
1 descrbed on poges 47 fo 48,
BEKEFITS Mol applabls ki aneat Tt | The axect Exects Desxion. do ol e siry addtwr! beedis. Wikakt the B {ommtten has not sef v thechte | Nob applcobia. o chonges.
[ Thers & cuenily no miention ko chongs e whikt the Exscutve Share | enaimrana kevel of benefits Exutve Diectons moy meenve
Scheme end 2015 Share Scheme s o plce. the (ompany retoms dscrefon 1o sel benefit o1 @ kel whach
e D { armemstteg e y
Berelits maty be peovsded 1n lina with mecket peocie s o mcast o omr agursi e
Ersntve Deacion icdeyg rdo ectount mdvikol coermieryes. $uch traxtet e I st e ooy sty o e (ompy
benedids may macuda iekocation expemses.
RETIREMENT Twmde. besedts o | The £ vactive Deciors oro ectitled 1o parxpese 71 o stakehobies porsaon | The curoed moxmaxn employer contrdubon 19 the skkahokdes | Hol apphcobla Mo changes.
BENEFITS scnt axxd selom rdedioks of the | schema on tho sems bass & other amployees. pemsion sheme 6 1%
e eed o e busress The { cenpany retoers the discration 10 sat st benefts
{irckshog pemaon conltiaons end/o o sairy sxpltent
w v of 0 persion conbution) for any Erecutive Descioes
1 sxcoudonca with he Comestios 3 approoch ko moaatment
as described on poge &7
ANNUAL BONUS | Wt cpplcehle es Exsatyn Dsacions | Tha Comnerattes hos datermed thet no aonuc! boress schema will b W arua borus opporuety for o Exacutia Dimcios who | Mot applkebds for 5o long on Exmentiv Ha changes.
do ool pasicpale i on aonual oporziad for Executive Directors whiles the 2015 Shase Scheme 5 mplca. | partcipates n the 2015 Shaza Scheme Eor 1a long e that Dexhons do not partipale n en eonual
bonus schama. Schoma & in plcs 1 that Schema i not m phce (o axomple | borars scheme.
ans of e Adpsted Underng EGETTA Ksgets & i mal 53
ot s et it Sl e} Do Comaen 1y | Lrmene ot e epomrod
aweed an enonal bonus pportundy of up to 200% of bass be assessed ogumst one of mods Mt
solry The Commuties will not qwoed such o borcs apportundty deteamred by the Commeea 1d Irked o
end grant an awosd under the Exexuine Share Scherm o the Company’ stiegy with te weghting
st b0 bl etwaan the mehics delsrmmed by the
The srcsod Sonus opporunsy for e newly racastsd Comemime. Borunes will be detaraned
Exesune Dvacios will be 181 i nccordencs with the detwoon (% ond 1075 of the maxmum
Commeies s epprooch K secaAteal resmunes ohon &5 eppoiiuely bsed on the Commated’s
descibed on poges 47 1 48 ol the cpphxoble metics
{ONG-TERM. To meogrse ond reward cutsdondng { 2015 Shars Scheme 1015 Share Schoce Stremherg perfoimance lomets o sel The Adpsied
INCENTIVE PAY [ pedormanca of the Executves and  § The 20015 Shaie Schame was appeoved by shareholdars of o General s over na maxe tn 25 mébon sharss may be granded | eflecting he buvmess prordes it Underhymy EBITDA
{2015 SHARE 10 diws rdechng Giog EESTDA | Maeng of e oemgony in uly 2014 Awoeds may be grosed uodsd undei e 2015 Shar Schema. undenin Geoup skadegy Toget for 2016 has
SCHEME ARD e with Gioup stretegy end abgn the Scheme 1o Exacrtve Dvackoes on an ored (o more haquent) bt been omendad liom
EXICUTVE | D et s | v acono i o oo Y A QU0 B8 | e e s oo 2015 Share Sherme e | HE 5200
SHARE SCHEME) | mterests of shossholdess i bongng | upfiont awoeds whech only vest i signficont and oelert giowth 1
b dedmzd vl may b el e Sehecn Connpriny’s shere spal) may be owrceded 30 cuy Exectve | subwsct bo setshocloty persons pedosnence | Awards o now
ekt ey el v et i vl b g D0 Decs (s ke by who oy b vy oy s d o oy s | st o
B b Compcay ey Ererts Dot deg e pend bt whuh 2 popsd s | oy pupotion 1 o 215 Shoe Scearel U BT ke (e scheme | crebock povsions
Duncioes Reruzesston Folcy sholl epply wih reving subga! 1 e 1osts) 00 et
satnlochion of the EBITDA tosgets sef out o the 201 5 Shasa Schaens Executive Share Scheme
ocsred ove o perwd of kuw b ymon, 15% o en ewnd 1 subyect | 40 awad guertad 10 on Exacuivn Dmecor under e Y16 E4200
o0 harthen defal penod sch thot 1t willvest i 2020 vath 25% Tueutn Shoro Scheme dumg e pesod for whh g 5 FIY17 £570m
vestng b 2019) proposed the Deeckoes. Ramumesstion Pobey shall apoly woudd | Y18 £650m
be over o moxmum of Im shores (subsad ko such edpstment [ V19 £750m

Kte ke Ashlay wicemad the Commttee el ha wished to withdiow
From the sheme the {ommdtas fumally smoved hen

Uswested Awrgade aie byt 10 gk, poovsices, such that the Commetes
has the dscreton to radxe concel of mpess kribes conditom on e
awhs B b averd of 8 et mesiaterend of e Company's muils
rrgiernl feike of ik roogament of senous repukyionol dornge.
Ulebock provanee gue the { ommstins éoiieion 1o recoves ecxuos pod
¥ Erocuta Dvscis ot g 1o 12 ecnthe. et veskng s the event of
senus finoool macondurt.

Execetive Share Scheme:

The E ocuive Share Schesme wes epproved by shrwehokiers o the bl
Genesol Mastiyg m Sepiembar 2010 The ( oenomatiee may groat further
wwaahs undes ths Schem i the 2015 Shove Scheme 5 ot m plxce (ke
excrple f ona of the Adpsied Undedbying $RITDA taehs & rof met so
st ewouts. orades the 2015 Shore Scheme kpre}  Niks Rebioy & not
ehghin 1o be groned mwirds urder the [xadvs Share Scherme.

Anay wwd grocked e e Exscutive Show Siheme would be subect

o ks and hwhxck povoioes on o ronpabls basss 10 thess thel wil
cpely 10 e onked urodes the 2015 Shom Subeane.

as the (ommetten desesmes o raftect oty dingn i e
Compony's shore copeal

Fou thess purpeses “Mpsied Undedying
TBDA meets Urdedying EBIEDA =
wporied m the (onpony’s pblished
accounts. fou dhe selowverd yeot itel such
adysimenss os the {omrades

onsaders. egpeoperie. These perfeemonce:
oedibons moy be enerded i ectorlencs
with the rles of the 2085 Shus Scheme 83
eppmoved by sharebolders m hdy 2014 &
fucther refered o on page 45,
Execotive Share Scheme:

ooy oword gozted wdet e Fracuten
Shere: Stheme weold be subd o sheichng
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED

The table below sets out on averview of the approach to remuneration for the Choirman and Non-Executve Disectors
PURPOSE / LINK TO STRATEGY APPROACH OF THE COMPANY

Charrman and Non-Executwe Directen fees The Coramittee’s Remunetatzon Policy m respect of the Non-Execuitve Dectors s fo pay annual Fess

which reflect 1he responsibulities and duties placed upon them, while ako hoving regard fo markes
Frowide an oppropnate reword o attract and retain Oirectors of the colibre requued for the business | prociwe

NoirExecutve Diractors recews o fixed annual fee
NamExecutve Directots do not parttuspata m any bonus of share schemes

Non-Executive: Directors may be eligible for benefits such as the use of secretonal support, trovel costs
or oiter benefits that may be oppropnote

INFORMATION SUPPORTING THE POLICY TABLE
Pror to the introduction of the 2015 Shore Scheme, awards were gronted fo Executve Directors under the Executve Share Scheme (ne award held by on Executive Director remauns
outstanding under the Executwe Share Scheme as referred to on poge 51

Other than where the 2015 Shore Scheme & not m place (for example, if ase of the Adusted Undedying EBITDA torgets & not met so that awards under the 2015 Share Scheme lopse) or
where an oword s 1o be granied in connection with the recruitment of on Executwe Diector os refesred to on page 47, no further owards wall be granted to Executve Duectors of the Company
under the Executve Share Scheme dunng the penod for which thes policy opplies

The Commuittee may amend the terms of the Exetutwe Share Seheme, the 2015 Share Scheme or any owords gronted under them within the scope defined n the les of those schemes
(induding 1n the event of o vanatios of the Company’s shore copitel o o demerger or speciol dwidend which may, 1n the Committee’s opmon, offect the cument or future value of shores) ond
may eledt to seftle awoeds under those schemes n cash

EXPLANATION OF PERFORMANCE MEASURES CHOSEN

For the 2015 Share Scheme, underkyng Group EBITDA 15 chosen becouse it s o measure that prowides a smple and transporent basis on which to meosure the Company’s performance
over the longer term and o prowide alignment wath the Compony’s business strategy |a oddition, the Commitee considers if to be o robust measurement of sustmned esmmgs growth for
shoreholders This megsurement hos been conststently and publicy used by the Compony os o performance measure simce the floatation in 2007

In respect of each refevant year, the Comaittee will adjust reported underlying Group EBITBA os it considers oppropnate Underlying Group EBITDA is collated pror to ony charges relaning o
any share scheme(s) outstanding at the sefevant ime

In accordance with the noles of the 2015 Share Scheme, serformance conditeons may be amended or subshiuted if events occur (such as o change of shasegy, o matenal ocqusinien or
drvestment of o Group business or o chenge i prevadiag marker condinons including the non-marenalischon of planned acquisiions) whuch cousa the Cormettae to consder that o subshtured
or omended pedormance cond:hon would be mare appropnate and would not be motenally more or less dfficult to sonsfy thon the ongingl performance condihion but for the eventm
queshon As noted m the FY15 prelimnory results onnouscement, the Committes will continue o review the rebustess of the Scheme on on annual bosis, and the targets moy be odusted,
in accordance with the Scheme rules and this Policy, f events occur, as referred to ohove

EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCES IN REMUNERATION POLICY FOR OTHER EMPLOYEES

The Company has o forge number of employees with different respansibilities and diffanng Jevels of semonty Reward pofures for employees other shon Executive Directors re determined
by reference to grade, rofe, performance and ather relevant foctors The Committee daes not consult with the wider workforce obout the remunerahon policy for Directors Howevey, the
Committee has reviewed the salanes, oiher cemuneration and other empleyment conditions of senior ang middle managers throughout the Group, ond has taken them into gecount in
considenng Durectors’ solunes aad the creation of new mcentive schemes 1 order to crente o sense of commor gurpose and shanng of success |ndeed, m order to refleat the Company’s
“One Teom™ ethos, the 2015 Share Scheme opphes to both Executives and employees determined by the Bagrd os eligible who meet the quolifying condinons os detersmned ond ogreed
by the Commttee and the Boord on the some bases {incheding the performonce condinons)

ILLUSTRATIONS OF APPLICATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY

The charts below set out an lustrahion of the policy for 2015,/16 in line wath the future pokcy teble above The charts prowide an dustrahion of the totel remunerotion opportunity that
could onse under three different levels of performence Mo chort 15 mncluded for Mike Ashley, who does not receve any remuseranon from the Company and does not porhicspate n any
share scheme

Fat the purpases of the adyaent chart, the following essumptions have been mada

250 DAVE FORSEY

' FIXED PAY 2015 SHARE SCHEME
é 2000 Mnimum remunerahion Base solary of £150,000 No veshng
g 150 Pedforenance 1n ne with expectafions  No employer pension contribition No vestmg, becuse rewards under the
£ Lo {5 Dave Forsey has apfed out of Frecutve Shore Scheme vest on on
& the {ompany’s stakshalder “all or nothing” basis for ochievng the
E w0 T ™ pension scheme) wpper end of streich irgets.

0 Maxmnum remuseration No benefis (os no benefits wete See nate below™
Maarem Performazce m fine Mo provided 1o the curment Exscutve
Pedomoe  wih expectatons Pariomnance Dieciors in FY13)

O Bose sakory, berefits & pension #7015 Shore Scheme

“Fed the pugoses of s chart, i s boon essined et Dave Forsay s prunded o awend owe 1 cellon shetes. 2 sefrnd io e the poliy 12l on poge 45 [he value of the ewamd & shen caloulosad bused on o shose prce of £7 37 (bemg e prce €1 e cesa o busness o
1 Jody 20015 when ths seport wits o by the Comnon) en ore quams of s vk 3 dem shows, egeeserting the eerion 1o prerd ane s el the 2015 Sheza Schetoe, the westng of whxh will be subect o EBITDA parlorecs et eotated aven 0 pesmd
of boxa broncel yoors (Y16 1VA7 Y18 60 FY191 The westrg of en cwesd s conetion] upon the acivevesment by the Cempany ol f lour [BIFT sgets wde the 2015 St Schesne.



MATT PEARSON

For the purposes of the adjacent chan, the following assumphions hove been mode

Total remunemtion (€000}

FIXED PAY 2015 SHARE SCHEME
Minimum remunesofion Base salary of £60,000 Ho vesting
Peformance in ing with expectotions  An empheyer pension contnbution of Mo vesting, becousa rewords uader the
1% of salory Exetulive Share Scheme vest on an
“oll or nothing” basis for achieving the
upper end of stretch torgets
Maoomum remuneration No benefits (os no benefits wete See note below*
e Perforrmonce i line Haomem pravided 1o the cument Exetutive
Perbimance  with expectations  Perbomonce Dnectors m 2014/2015)

8 Gose sokry, benefits & penso I 2015 Share Scheme

* ¢ octng Bood membaod thes. charl reflects Mat Poceson s terms end conditions extsing ot the e of hes nerm eppoutment  The chost thesedors ossumas he s granted on eweed over 50 000 shares consisterst with b (uemant porkoge. Tha vabe of the award 5 then

cokuioied bosed on @ shors poxe of 7 37 (baeyy the poce f the closs of bussess on 14 Jdy 2015 when e sport wos

appred by e
wsing of whach wal be subpec! o EBFTTM pecontaes deagp. musrsinsd ovs & porcd of doen narend yoans G106 F7 FY18 e FT1Y) Tho vesting of oo wwond 1 condionad upon ihe ackeovecond byt Cormpary of ol boun EBITOA ety undes i 2015 Shose Scheme.
o moted on poges 800 Mttt Puarson s salory end the lovel of ewod undes B 2015 Shose Schorme will bo terweand by e {eensation dug FY16.

APPROACH TO RECRUITMENT REMUNERATION

When ogreetng o remureration package for the appaintment of 0 new Exequtve Director, the Commttee will apply the following praaples

» qiven that the high geanng of rewerd for performance over o long penod and o low basic salary may result i o “cash flow” ssue for any new Executve Direcior, the mtention 1s o
move the Director appropnotely and in o timely manner onto an equol footing wth ather Executive Directors,

« the packoge will be sufficient to otiract the cofibre of Diector required to deliver the Compamy's skotegy,

o the Committee will seek o ensure that no mare s paid than 1s necessary, and

= the next Annual Report on remunerchon, the Committee will explain fo shoreholders she rationale for the asmangements implemented

The Comrmuttes will ardwory seek to mplement the remunertion package in accordance with the elements referred o in the pabcy toble on pages 45 and 46 The Comminiee refains
discretion to moke opprapriate remuneration decisions outside tot policy inchuding the abiity to grant awords under the Execunive Share Scheme to meet the indwidual arcumstances of
the recruitment, subject io the hruts and porometers of the reartment iemunerohon sechion of the Directors” Remuneronon Report

{ommettes) and one quoter of e vl 8 Ben shown, the méeasion ko great rd urlen the 2015 Shors Scheme, the

ELEMENT APPROACH

Buse solory and | Aligned with the policy set out i the policy table on page 45 4 the naw Executive Director pestiapates in the 2015 Shore Scheme ot the same level os exsshing

benghts Executia Directors {othes than Mike Ashley)

Retrement Aigned with the policy set out n she policy eble on page 45  the new Executive Director porhipates n the 2015 Share Scheme Otherwiss, up to 20% of salary

benehts patd fo o pension arrangement or poid os o supplement te base salary i keu of o pension arrangement until the new Executive Director joins that scheme

2015 Share The Remuneration Committee’s intention 15 for o newly-appomted Executve Director to poriepate in the 2015 Share Scheme with on aword of up 1o 1 milhon

Scheme shres (subject to such odjusiment os the Commitee determines fo reflect ony vanation in the Company's share copital} (12 up to the maximurn level referred to
in the palicy table, but caduced o reflect the new Executive Direcior’s shontened penod of service)

Varable In recogrution of the fact that o newdy appointed Executive Durector's aword under the 2015 Shore Scheme would nor vest unhl 2019, the Committes may aword

remuneration | o newly appointed Execuve Disector an award over up to | million shares {subject fo such adustment as the Commiitee: determines io reflect any change in the
Compony’s shore copitel) under the Exacuve Share Scheme or o simifor scheme, the vesting of which would be subject to the same performance conditrons os
apply 1o exssting awords under the Execumive Share Scheme or othes stretching performance condihons determined by the Comemittee
[n addihor, unti such time s the newly oppointed Executive Drector participates in the 203 5 Share Scheme, he or she moy be awarded on annual or donger term
incentive opportunity of up to 200% of salary per enaum

Moomum The moxmum level of vanable remenerohion that may be awarded to ¢ new Execuine Direcior s

vanable

emunerhon | @ € award overup fo | millian shares (sublect to such adpstment os the Commuttee determmes to reflect any change in the Company’s shore capital) under the

2015 Shase Scheme {hut reduced to reflect any vanoble remuneration awarded os referred to 1n (c) below),

b &n aword over op to | million shores (subject fo such adpstment as the Commitee defermmes ra reflect ony change m the Compony’s shore copital) under the
Executrve Shore Scheme or a simitor scheme, and

¢ until such time as he or she pameipates in the 2015 Shore Scheme, an onauol or longer ferm incentve opportuntty of up to 200% of solory per anaum

Inench case, the value of eny buy-out arangements (described below) does not count towards the maximum

4
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED

Lompensanon | The Commatiee may make ewords on haring an externol condudate to buy-out the remunerahion armongemens forfeited an leaving o previous employer |n domg
for forferred 50, the Commuttee will hove regurd to relevont foctars including ony pedormance condinons attached fo such orrangements {ond whether such condinons were
armengements | achieved), ihe form of those arrongements (e g cash or shares) ond the nmefrome of such arrongements

While such awords are excluded from the maximum level of vanoble remunesetion referred to below, the {ommitiee’s ifenfion ss thet the volue oworded would
be no higher thon the expected value of the forfeited arrangements Buy-our owards will be subject fo forferrure or clawhack on earty deparnure, with 100% being
subject to forferture f the Executeve departs wttun 12 months of joining, and a sfiding scale down te 50% if the depariure occurs within 12 and 24 months of
foining, of the Commitiee’s discretion

Relocation costs | if necessary, the Company will poy appropnate relocation costs The Cammuttes wifl seek to ensure that no more i pard thiea 1s necessary

Any share owards referred to in this sechon will be granted as for os possible under the Company’s exshng share schemes 1f necessary and subject, where relevent, to the limuts referved
to ahove, awords may be granted outside exishng share plons es permiited wnder the Listng Rules, which allow for the grant of awards to facitare, m unusual arcumstances, the
recrutment of an Executve Direcior

Where o posttion s filed wternally, any omgoing remuneranon obligatiens or outstonding vonable poy efements shall be ollowed o continue according to thewr subssstng ferms

The remuneranion package for a newly appainted Non-Exequtive Drector would normally be w line wish the policy set out n the future pohcy table abave for Non-Executive Directors

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND POLICY ON PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE

The Company’s poliey 15 for Executive Directors to be employed on the terms of service contracts which may be ferminoted by edher the Company or the Execufive Director on the gving of
not less than 12 months” notce

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Detatls of each current service contract are set out below
CONTRACT DATE UNEXPIRED TERM / NOTICE PERIOD PROPER LAW
Mike Ashley 11,/02/2007 12 months England & Wales
Dave Forsey 11/02/2007 12 months Enplond & Wales
Mt Pearson 14/06/2007 8 weeks Englond & Wales

The principles on which the detesmination of poyments for loss of office will be approoched are summansed below

Payment i keu of | The Compary may ferminate on Executive Director’s employment with immediate ffect by making o poyment n hew of nohee consisting of

notice
» bosic salary for the nonce parod,

o (f the Executive Director particpates n an aanual bonus scheme, o pro-rated omount reflecting completed months of service n the year of termmation
assuming on torget performance,

« either the cost of prowiding other benefits (ather than pension and bonus) that the Execunive Director would hove been ennfled 1o dunag the nofice penod
ar an emount equol to 10% of base salory (or olrematively the Company may contue fo provide benefits for the remainder of the notce penod thot would
have applied)

However, n accordance with the current policy o5 set out in he policy table on page 45, na annual bonus scheme o1 benefiss are currently offered to Executive
Durectars

Annual bonus In accordonce with the current policy os sef out i the policy fable on poge 45, a0 annuol bonus scheme s affered to exishng Executive Disctors Were on
Executrve Director to participate in an onnual bonus arrangement, whethes o award o bonus in full or m part i the event of o terminakon of employment
would be at the discretion of the Comsurtee on an endwidual basis and dependent on o number of foctors, ncluding the crcumstances of the Executve Director’s
departure ond hus contnibution fo the busiess dunng the boaus period in queshoa Typreally bonus amounts would be pro-rated for time in service to termingtion

2015 Shore If o parfectpont m the 2015 Share Scheme or Executve Share Scheme censes employment before the performance conditions ottaching to an award under that
Scheme and stheme are saftsfied, the oward wili lopse [ the participant ceases employment ofter the pefformance condihons are satshed but before the veshing dates os 0
Executive Share result of his death or ony other reosen determuned a the discrefion of the Committes, the award will vest, i the case of o reason other than deoth, the extent
Scheme of vesting wil be determuned by the Committez o1 its absolute discrenion taking o account the time thot has elapsed between groni and cessation

Other poyments The Remeneration Commettee reserves the nght to moke addinonal ex payments where such payments are made in good foith n discharge of an exssting
legel obligotian for by way of damages for breach of such on obhigahon) or by way of setlement or compromise of any clom ansing in connection with the
terminghon of a Durector’s office or employment In oppronate circurmstances, poyments may ko be made i respect of lagal fees Were the Compony

to make an aword on recreniment of an Exeqive Director to buy out semunerahien grrongements forferted on leaving o previnus emplayer then the legver
provistons for that award would be determuned af the tme of grant




fn the event of o chonge of control of the Company or other relevant comarate even, unvested awards under the 2015 Share Scheme ond the Executive Share Scheme will lopse unlgss
the pecformance conditons are satisfied and the event occurs between saisfachon of the condinons and the veshing date, 1 which case the oward shefl vest In the cose of the 2015
Shore Scheme the extent of vesting shall be determined by the Committee faking imto accouns the peniod of time that hos elopsed berween the grant date ond the date of the selevont
event and i the cose of the Executive Share Scheme the owords shell vest m full unless the Committee determines otherwise

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Nor+Exequtive Directors enter mto on agreement with ihe Group for o penod of three yenrs, other than the Chaiman whosa agreement continues until termingted i accordonee with
fis tesms The appaintments of the Non-Executive Divectors may be fermincted by esther porty an one month's wniten naince aad e accordonce with the Aricles of Association of ihe
Compony Termination weuld be smmediote wn certan cwrumstances (indluding the bankrupicy of the Non-Exequtive Drector)

NosExecute Diractors do rot and are not entiled 1o partcipate i any bonus or share scheme

NomExecutwe Directors ore subject 1o confidentiolity undertakings without fmutation n ime NorrExecutive Directors ore not entitled fo recewve any compensahon on the termingon of
thew oppomtment

Detols of the letters of appomiment are set out helow

POSITION DATE OF LETTER OF APPOINTMENT
Kesh Hellewel Non-Execuive Chorman February 2010
Semen Bentley Non-Execulwe Director 15 uly 2014
Dave Smplefon Non-Executve Director 15 July 2014
Clare Jenkins Hon-Execuive Drector 15 July 2014

PAYMENTS QUTSIDE THE POLICY IN THIS REPORT

The Commattee retains discreon to make ony remunergtion payment or payment for loss of office outside the policy 1n this report
» where the terms of the poyment were ogreed before the policy came wto effedt,

o where the terms of the payment were agreed of o hme when the relevant mdwduel wos not o Durector of the Company and, i the opion of the Commutiee, the payment was not in
comsiderntion of the wdandual becoming o Directar of the Company, of

10 sotsfy contraciuol commitments rode under legocy remunerafion amangements

For thesa purposss, “paymenis™ wncludes the satistaction of awards of vanable remuneration and, in celanon o an oward over shares, the terms of the payment ore “agreed” of the nme
the oward 15 granted

STATEMENT OF CONSIDERATION OF SHAREHOLDER VIEWS

The Committee consults major shareholders ond representative Groups where oppropnote cencesming remunasation matters

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
Thus part of the Directors” Remunarohion Repart sets out the actual payments mode by the Company to s Dicectors with respect to the penad ended 26 Apni 2015 end how ous Driectors’
Remuneration Policy will be apphied 1n the yeor commencing 27 Apl 2015
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED

SINGLE FIGURE TABLE {(AUDITED)

The aggregate remunersiion prowded to ndniduals who have served as Directors in the period ended 26 Apnl 2015 s sef out below, along wth the aggregote remunernsion prowded to
indwiduals who have served os uectors dunng the por financia! yeor

DIRECTOR SALARIES AND FEES  OTHER BENEFITS BONUS LONG-TERM PENSION TOTAL
INCENTIVES
FY15 14 15 A4 FYi5 Fii4 FY15 FYHd s Y14 s 4
£000 £000 £060 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 5000 000 £000  £000
EXECUTIVE
Mike Ashley
Dave Forsey 150 150 56,6100 4,760 150
NON-EXECUTIVE
Kesth Hellowell 155 155 - 155 155
Smmon Bentley 50 50 50 50
Dave Singlefon 50 50 50 50
g)hurles Mclrewy 223 50 223 50
Clare Jenkms 50 50 50 50

(1) Represants the v of on awesd over 1 000,000 shares urdes ths Fxacute Showa Schema dus 1o vast m 2017 subyert o consined employment. Fir thtse purpesss the vabe of o sher i £6.41 baing the avesage thars pice over the suarter hom 26 Jeruary 2015 i 24
Jpud 2015
(2) Chades Ml bervy resignesd boen the Boced on 10 September 2014

NOTES TO THE SINGLE FIGURE TABLE AND IMPLEMENTATION OF POLICY IN THE YEAR ENDING 24 APRIL 2016
BASE SALARY AND FEES

Bosa solones are normally reviewed annuslly n the review n FY15 the Comaitea decided not to alter Executeve Directors salones The Commttee hos decided not to merease Dave
Forsey’s solory n FY16, which hos been at the some fevel sice 2002, and which 15 set 2 o level well below the lower quartile for o business of the size and complexity of the Gioup
Mike Ashley does not recerve a salory for his role Matt Pearson’s current solary for F¥16 15 £60,000 In FY16, the Commirtee will seview Mott Peorson’s salary and consrder whether any
increase should be implemented to seflect hus rele o5 an acting Board member or f his appaintment 15 made permanent

Fees for Non Executive Durectars gre nomally reviewed annually In the review in FY15 fees were not increased Fees for Non-Executve Directors will not be increased for FY14

ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME
The Commuittee hos determined that no onnual boaus scheme will be aperated for Executiva Directors whie the 2015 Share Scheme 5 i place

EXECUTIVE SHARE SCHEME
No awards were granted under the Executive Share Scheme in FY15 The tost awards whech were recerved, which vested in 2013, related to the complation of a performance condingn
bosed on EBITDAIN FY11

Following the approval of the 2015 Shase Scheme in July 2014, the Committee proposes to grant Dave Farsey on oward under the scheme in FY16 over 1 million shores The Committee
proposes to gront Mott Peorsan on award under the Scheme an FY16 over 30,000 shares, but may werease the quantum of the award either to reflect Mot Pearson's role 05 an oting
Board member or if fus appountrent 1s made permanent (subject to the kmut e the policy toble set eur an poge 45) The number of shares under omy award may be adjusted os the
Committee desermings fo reflect any vanation i the Compony’s shore copital

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
Mo poyments have been made to post Directors duning the peniod ended 26 Apat 2015

PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
No payments were made for loss of office dunng the penod ended 26 Apnl 2015

SHAREHOLDING GUIDELINES AND TOTAL SHAREKOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS

The Boord believes it 15 mporfont thot Executive Directors hove o signficant holding in the coprick of the Company In FY14 the Committee reassessed the shoreholding quidelines for
Executve Diectors and determmned thot the Execunve Dwectors must hold o mmism shoreholding of 50,000 shares while employed by the Compory

Dave Farsey's heneficual sharehalding an 26 Apal 2015 was 50,000 shares and, based an g share prce of §6 13 (hewng the pace at the dose of business an 24 Apal 2015, the last
tioding day before Sundoy 26 April 2015) the valua of thet holding wos £306,500, which 15 i excess of two years” salory




As on qcting Boord member, Matt Pearson 1s not currently required to soisfy the shareholding quideline In the event hus appomtment becomes permanent, Matt Pearson would be
expected 1o nequire the swmmum nurmber of shares over a reasongble nme penod determined by the Commitee

The beaefcial inerests of the Directors m office on 26 Apnl 2015 ond of ther famlies n both cases ot the beginning of the financial yeor, or o the dote of appaintment i loter, ond ot
the end of the financial yeor in the share capital of the Company are shown below

Ordinory Shares 27 April 2014 Ordinary Shares 26 April 2015

Mik Ashiey 345,400,000 330,000,000
Simon Bentley 10,000 10,000

Dove Forsey 50,000 50,000

Keh Hellawell™ 50,000 50,000

Cloue Jenkins 19,500 21,7125
Charles McCreevy'™ 1,500

Deva Singleton™ 52,000 52000

Matt Pearson™®

(1) Thesa shosss wes hed i e emso of Keath Molkowall s wel an bes wiko,

(2) Clades viood down as & reraber of the Booed om 10 Saptenbe 2014 ks o sesadl of b wesugrstion, B Geotap bes o ity of the nxrnt tharsholding.
(3) Thesa shoses e bedt m the nom of Dova Singlton, es well os be wiia,

(4] The shovehodding of acting Sogad members will x d n arcoesanca with the Group rcerem level Lpon thes s on e Boaxd berng mode permanent:

Thers hove been no changes in the Diractors” holdings in the shara copital of the Company, os set out in the toble above, between 26 Apnl 2015 and 14 luly 2015

DIRECTOR SCHEME GRANT DATE NUMBER QF SHARES STATUS

Dave Forsey Executive Share Scheme 22 August 2011 1,000,600 Unvested

The award wos granted subject 20 the sansfoction of the following EBITDA targets {uf which oll have been met)

Inderkying EBIFDA of £215mn FY12 ACHIEVED
Undeskyiag EBIFDA of £250m i FY13 ACHIEVED
Underlying EBITOA of $260m in F¥14  ACHIEVED
Undertying EBITDA of £300m i FY15  ACHIEVED

* & & »

A the above 20rgets hiave now been met the oward will vest n 2017

PERFORMANCE GRAPH AND TABLE
The following graph shaws the Company’s performance measured by the Toral Shareholder Return compored with the peformonce of the FTSE 100 ond FTSE 250 ndex
(excluding twestment trusts)
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

The Commuttes considered this on appropnate ndex ogainst which fo compare the Company’s performance as it is widely occapted as o natonol measuse ond ichides the companies that
Investors ase bkely to consider aliemaive investments

The tobe helow shows detos of the totol remuneration and performance-reloted poy for Dave Forsey over the kest s fnanaal years

TOTAL REMUNERATION EXECUTIVE SHARE SCHEME AS A % OF MAXIMUM OPPORTUNITY
FY15 6,760,000 100%
Fri4 £150,000 N/A
F13 £150,000 N/A
FYi2 £150,000 N/A
FYH 16,820,000 @ 100%
10 £150,000 N/A

(1) Represans e valun of on awad over 1 000 000 sheses unde the Executive Shore Scheme due 1o rest m 2047 subyert io safrloclory performene end contrved ermploymentt Fos these puiposes. the value o o shore s 1451 bexyy the avesoge shae prre oves the quurta
from 26 Jacwory 2015 o 24 pd 2015

{2) Nor these prpeses. e il rerramengion 1 FYH) il the wekie of an snd oves 1 000,000 shaies that vesied o0 15 st X013 sbperd o e sefrchocion of o pardrmence condton bosed on EEITDA M FY1) For Base putposes, B vk of 4 shom 5 €6 47
bexyg the chrsmg poce of a shore on Bl do.

CEOQ PAY INCREASE IN RELATION TO ALL EMPLOYEES

The table below sets out m relation to salary, taxable benefits and annual bonus the percentage incrense in pay for Dave Forsey compared to the average mcreose between the same
penods for the Group's UK Heod Office employees, which the Committee believes s the most oppropnate camparator group The percentoges shown relate fo the amounts for FY15 os
compared to the omounts for the FY14

ELEMENT OF REMUNERATION DAVE FORSEY / % CHANGE UK HEAD OFFICE EMPLOYEE AVERAGE / % CHANGE
Sakary 0% 03%

Toxoble henefits 0% (no taxable benefits were proveded 1o Dave Forsey m esther year) {36%)

Annwal bonus 0% (no annual benus asrangement was opesated for Dove Forsey m either yeor} (4 %)

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY
The table below sefs out the Group's disinbutions to shareholders by way of dwidends and share buybacks, total Group-wide expenditure on pay for alt stoff, os reported i the oudited
Fnanciat Statements for FY15 ond FY14, ond the Compary’s share pace, calculoted os ot the close of business on the lost day of FY15 and FY14

Y15 Y14 PERCENTAGE CHANGE
Distnbutions to shareholders by way of dnidend and shere buyback %0 £0 0%
Investment™ £126,661,000 £323,475,000 {60 B)%
Groupwide expenditure on pey for all employess £323,545,000 £307,948,000"* 51%
Shore price: (pence) 6130 779 5%+ {2t )%

“Compisas o nieases i workmg coprial ocquissions esd copriol expendins m the yeor s tha Board behaves Shesa t be e mos! tekwant mecsues of the Gioups Ewestment in fekea growih
**Jhe nsens 1 1eflective of the Gloup’s acoustas. end 18t axpetsioh i Ewopa
***For s purposes the shrme prce for £Y15 and the shaea prica fon F14 g1a cedukgied o5 the e of busness on 24 kpad 2015 and 25 Aprd 2084 iespectvely bewg the los! workmg doys poor 1o the yea: ends

CONSIDERATION BY THE DIRECTORS QF MATTERS RELATING TO DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
MEMBERSHIP
The Committee consssts of Siman Bentley, Dove Singleton and Claire Jenkins, who are independent Non-Executwe Diectors, ond Keith Hellawell, wha 15 the Non-Executve Chairman

The role and main responsibibiies of the Committee are detoded n the Corporate Governance Repant on page 42
Attendanice at the meefings held during the year s detaled on page 39

The members of the Committee hove no personal financiol nterest, oer than os shareholders, in the matters 1 be decded, no actuol or patentiad conflicts of intesest ansing from other
dwectorships and no doy to-day operahonal responsibility within the Company

ADVISERS TO THE COMMITTEE
Dove Forsey, the Chief Executve, Mart Peorson, the Acting Chief Fncncia! Officer, ond Mike Ashley, the Executive Depusy Chomman, have odwised or matenolly ossisted she Committee
when 1equested Executve Direciors ore not present, nor do they take pert i distussions m respect of matters relaning directly 1o thewr owa remunerahion

SHAREHOLDER VOTING
The followng table sefs out actuat voting it respect of the resolution to opprove the Directors” Remunerahon Report for the year ended 27 Apn! 2014 end n respect of the resolution fo
opprove the Drectors” Rermunerahon Palicy

VOTES FOR % FOR VOTES AGAINST % AGAINST TOTAL VOTES CAST  VOTES WITHHELD
Daectoss” Rernuneration Report for the yeor ended 27 Apnl 2014 516,947,257 97 9% 11,127,626 21% 528,074,883 1,005,636

Dueclors” Remuneration Poficy AS2362975 81 5% §4.479,250 125% 517,342,225 11,736,294

Dave Singleton
Chairman of the Remuneraton Committee

16 July 2015




DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY AND RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
The Drectors ave respansible for prepanng the Annuat Report, the Remunerahon Report ond the Company and Group Financie! Statements in accordance wath apphicable low
ond requlations

Campeny low requires the Directors to prepare Fimancial Statemens for each finonciat year Under thot law the Directors ore required fo prepare: the Group Fingnaio! Stotements i
accordonce with tnternational Fnancial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) os adopted by the Furopesn Union

The Directors hove elected to prepare the Compony Financiod Stotements in accordance with United Kingdont Ganerolly Accepted Accounting Practices (UK GAAP)

Under company law the Drectors must not opprove the Fnancicl Statements unless they are sasfied thot they give a true and fai wew of the state of affows and profit or loss of the
Company and Group for that penod In prepenng the Finanaal Statements the Directors 6ze required to

= select sutable occounting poberes and then apply them consistently,

» muke wdgements ond esmates thet are reasonable ond prudent,

* for the Group Finencal Statements, state whather the applicable IFRSs have been followed, subject to ony matenal depariures disclosed ond expluined i the Finarcol Statements,

o for the Company Finanaal Statements, stote whether the apphcable UK Accouning Standards hove been followed, subject to any matenial departures disclosed ond explained m the
Financial Statements, ond

« prepare the Fmancal Starements on the going concern basis unless +F 5 inapprapriate to presume that the Compony and Group will confinue n business

The Directors are responsihle for keeping odequate accaunfing records thot are sufficent to show and explain the Compasy’s transactions and disclose wath reasonable occuracy at any
tirme the financal postion of the Company and enable them to ensure that the Finanaal Statements, and the Remunesanion Report, comply wath the Companies A 2006 ond Aricle 4
of the 145 Regulanon They ore also respansibie for safequarding the ssefs of the Company and hence for faking reasonable steps for the prevenhion and detecion of fioud and

other regulantes

The Directors confirm that

* 5o far os each Director 15 aware, there 1s o relevant oudit informanan of which the Company’s oudstors are unaware, end
o the Directors have taken oll steps that they ought to have token to make themselves aware of any relevant eudit mformonon ond to establish that the euditors are oware of
that nformanon

The Directors ore respansible for the manzenance ong integry of the corparate and financial imformanon ncluded an the Company’s website Legislation in the Unted Kingdom goverming
the preparenon and dissemingtion of Financial Statements may differ from legisianion in other unsdrekons

To the best of aur knowledge

{a) the Annual Report, mcluging the strategic report, prepared in accordonce with the epplicable et of eccounting standards, gves o true and fair view of the assers, kabilnes, financiol
postnon and prafit of the Company and of the underiakings induded in the consolidation token os o whole,
ond

{b) the manogement report mcludes o four rewew of the development and pesformance of he business and the posinon of the Compary and the undartokings included i the conschdanon
taken os o whole, together with & descopnion of the prinaipal nsks ond uncertaihies thet they foce

(n hehalf of the Board

Dave Forsey
Chef Executive

16 My 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
TO MEMBERS OF SPORTS DIRECT INTERNATIONAL PLC

OUR OPINION ON THE GROUP FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS IS UNMODIFIED

n our apinion the group Finanaial Statements

* gve o true and fair wew of the state of the Group’s affarrs as o 26 Apnl 2015 and of
the Group's profit for the 52 week penod then ended,

* have been properly prepored i accordonee with Intermanienal Fmanciol Reporting
Standards (FRSs) os adopted by the European Linion,

 have been prepared in accordonce with the requirements of the Componies Act 2006
and Arhicte 4 of the IAS Regulation

OTHER MATTER

We have reported seporately on the Finoncial Statements of Sports Direct intemanonal
PLC for the penod and on the information in the Directors” Remuneration Report that 5
descnbed os howng been audifed

WHO WE ARE REPORTING TO

This sepert ts mada sofely to the company's members, os o body, i accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work hos been undertoken
so that we might state fo the company’s members those matters we ore required fo state
to them tn an auditar’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest exient permitted by
Jaw, we do not occept or assume responsibily to anyone other than the company ond the
company’s members as o bady, for our audit work, for this repart, or for the opmiens we
have formed

WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED

Sports Direct Intemphional PLC's Fingnaol Staterrents compnse the onsolidated mcome
statement, e consobdated statement of comprehensive income, the consohidated balance
sheet, the consolidated cosh flow staternent, the consalidated stafement of chonges s
equity and the reloted nofes

The financial reporting framewaork thot has been appked i ther preparation 15 epplicable
low ond iFRSs s odopted by the European Union

OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISK

In erving at our opimons set out in this repont, we highkght the follawng nsks that are, i
our judgsment, Kkely to be most impartant to users” understanding of our audit

RISK OF FRAUD IN REVENUE RECOGNITION

The sk The revenus recorded by the Group 15 one of the key determanants of Group
underlying eamings before interest, faxaten, deprecton and amorisahan (EBITDA) and
is recognised In accordance with the Group's secounting policy ond Internahonal Accaunting
Stondord {1AS) 18 Revenue The mejonty of group sevenue s recorded Hrough Elecionic
Pomt of Sale (EPOS) transochons, which s & key control used by the Group 15 fa ensure
oll revenue 15 recorded Because of the pressures and incentves monagement may feel

to achreve plonned targers and because of mherent nsk 10 the recording of cosh soles

we have dentified frawd in revenue recognition os a significant audit nsk requinng speciol
oudit consideration

Qur response Our audit work included, but was not resincted to, testing monuol journal
entnes posted fo revenue for mdicaon of fraudulent transachions, a controls fest aver the
completeness ond accuracy of the EPOS duto from hlls through to head office, teshng o
sample of sales transactions to supporting documentonion and re-performing an mtemer
snles recemis reconcliotion in total to cash receved We afso anolytically reviewed sales
trends at on wdoaduad store level and by product type fo dentrly vancnces fo expectanons
that wauld regure further substantive festing

The Group’s nceounting policy with respect to revenue recognihion 5 meluded i pote 1 ond
segmentol analysis of sales 15 provided m nofe 4

VALUATION OF CONTRACTS FOR DIFFERENCE

The nsk The Group hos entered mfo denvatve agreements referencing shares n publicly
Iisted comparies The voluahon of these contracts in the Fmanciel Statements requires
estmation by management These contracts hove been identied os o nsk due to

therr significant monetary vatus ond hecouse they are transachions outside the normal
operations of the Group

Qur response Qur audit work included, bt wos not restrcted o, exomunng the terms of
the tontracts and agreeing the bolances to confirmanons from the counter party to essess
the accounting treatment adopted, the basss of valsahon and the disclosures made We
also engnged our own valuation speciolists to assess te appropnateness of the valuations,
which are bosed on both observable nputs ond estmates and assumptions applied by
management

The Group’s ocsountimg policy for denvative contracts 15 ncluded i note 1 and disclosures
relofing o the controcss 1 found i note 27

The Audit Committee dentited valuanon of contracts for differance os on orea of
significance In s report on page 41, where the Audit Commirtee nlso descnbes how i
oddressed this aren

CARRYING VALUE OF INVENTORIES

The nsk The corrying volue of inventanes 1s stated net of prowistans for obsolete or slow
moving inventory We hove identfied this nsk because judgement is applied by manage-
ment n pssessing the amount of provision required to record mventory af the lower of cost
and net seaksable value and becouse of the complexify of the prowsion caleulohon

Our response Our audit work scluded, bur wos not restcted to, testing the models
used for mathematical accuroey, considenng the appropnateness and conssstany of the
underying assumptions wittun the model and testing the selliag prce of mventory sold
post penod end

The Group’s occounhing policy or wventones and detads of the dgements apphed by the
Directors n establishing the provision is included m note 1

The Audit Committee dennfied carrying value of iventory os an area of signficance m ifs
report 0n page 41, where the Committee also describes how it addressed this areq

INTANGIBLES IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

The nsk As more fully explained in note 15 the Birectars are required to make an arinual
ossessment fo deferming whether the value of goodwll of 156z, trademorks and
licences of £19m end bronds of £50m s impoired We have dennfied this nsk because
the process for measunng and recagnising smpeiraent under IAS 36 15 complex ond
requires udgement and because we denified potennal mdicatoss of impaiment duning
our sk assessment procedures

Qur response Gur oudit work ncluded, but was not restncted to, evalugtiag ond sensitising
the assumptions used by the Diectors, 1n parhicular those key assumphons relehng fo the
cash How projechions used by management for thew assessment, including the discount
rates, perpetuity growth rotes ond forecast gross margins We olso rewewed the odeguocy
of the disclosures on the sensitmty of key ossumphans ysed n the assessment

The Group's eccounting policy on imparment and defmls of the judgaments and eshmates
made by the Owectors are inclided m note 1

The Audit Committee identfied nfangibles impairment assessment os an #rea of
sigrficance n ifs report on page 41, where the Committee also descrbes how it
oddressed this ereo



QUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY AND AN OVERVIEW
OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

MATERIALITY

We define matenality os the mogmtude of mestotement m the Fanciot Statermants that
maokes it probable that the economsc decsions of o reosonobly knowledgeoble person
would be changed or nfluenced We determined matenality for the oudit of the group Fr
noncied Statements os o whole to be €13 3m which s 3 5% of underlying eamungs before
interest, taxoiron, deprecionon and smortisation (EBITDA) T benchmark 1s considered
the most approprate because, this s the metnc against which the financial performence
of the Group 15 measured both nternally ond extemally We use a different level of
materiohty, performance matenality, to drive the extent of gur testing and thrs wos set ot
75% of finonauat stotement matenaty for the sudit of the group Financial Statements
We ako determme o Jower level of specfic motenalivy for certatn aregs such as diregiors”
remuneration ond reloted porty transoctions

We defermined the threshold ot which we commurucoted musstatements to the cudit
committee to be £665,000 In addiion we wilf commumicote nussiotements befow thot
threshold that, m aur wiew, wormont reporting on quoldative grounds

OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

We conducted our audit 1n occordonce with Intesnanonal Stondards on Auding (UK ond
Irelond) Oue responsibifiies under those standards ore further descnbed m the “Respons-
bulines for the Financsl Statemants and the oudt” section of our report We believe that
the oudit ewdence we hove obtained is suffient and appropnate o provde o basis for
OUT OpIOR

We are mdependent of the group in accordance with the Audinng Praciices Bogid's Ethical
Standords for Auditors, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilibes m accordonce
with those Ettucol Standords

Wa evaluated the descriphon, design and operating effectveness of contrals aver key
financial systems idennfied os port of our nsk ossessmens This included o rewiew of the
genesol IT controls, the accounts produdion process and the controls oddressing cancol
accounting motters dentfied i our sk assessment We undertook o combination of
controls ond substantive testing on signficant trensactions, bolances and disclosures,
the extent of which was based on vanous factors including our overal| assessiment of
the conirol environment, the effectiveness of confroks over indwidual systems ond the
monagement of specific nsks

As set out on page 67 the Group hos three operaiing segments, Sports Reta, Premuum
Lifestyle and Bronds The Group Financiol Stotements are o cansolidation of the repoiting
units comgnsing the operoting businesses wiitim these segments

I establishing the overall opproach to the Group oudt, we determined 1he type of work
that needed to be gerformed by us, as the Group engagement team, or cemponent
ouditors opeating under our Instruction

Where the work wos performed by componeat auditors, we determined the levef of
invotvement we needed fo have in thewr sudit work of those repoehng units fo be oble
to conclude whether sufficient appeopnate audit evdence bad een obtained os o bosis
for our opimon on the Group Fmonaal Statements os o whole We ser morenality for the
overseas camponent auds as 75% of the matenolity for the group Finanaial Statements

The reparting unsts vary significantly n size ond we identified 5 reporiing unis that, m our
wiew, required o full scope udn of thenr finangial wnformation for group repornng purposes,
dug to their size or sk choracterstics n addihon a further 27 regorting urats are gudited
to full scape for stansiory reporting purpases, providing in total 87% covernge of the
Group's revenues and 84% of the Group underlying EBITDA

Spectfic oudnt procedures were performed ot a further 7 reporting umits due to ther size
prowding o further 8% coveroge of the Group's revenues ond 12% of the Group underlying
EBITDA, with the remoiming reporking unds subjedi to analyticol procedures

The tables below demonstrate the coverage of our oudit procedures

REVENUE

T\ |

UNDERLYING EBTTDA

P\

B il Scope B Spacific pocedures W Analyical revew

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY REGULATIONS
Qur opinion on ther motters prescnbed by the Companes Act 2006 & unmodified
[ ouE opnion:

« the informanon gven in the Strategqic Repost and Oiectors” Report for the fisanciol
period for whch the Financeol Statements are prepared s consistent with the Financial
Statements, ond

= the infarmatian grven i the Corporate Governante Repost sef out on poges 37 to 43
with respect to nternol control and nsk management systems in refanon fo fiagnal
reporting processes ang nbout shore capital structures s consistent wath the Finoneiot
Stotements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY
EXCEPTION

WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT IN RESPECT OF THE FOLLOWING:
Under the I5As (UK and Ireland), we ose requared 1o repert to you if, n our epimion,
information i the Annual Report s

+ morenally meonssstent with the information in the audited Financiol Stasements, or

« gpporently morenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconswstent with, our knowledge
of the group acquired m the course of performing gur oudd; or

* otherwise mstending

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING..
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
TO MEMBERS OF SPORTS DIRECT INTERNATIONAL PLC

IN PARTICULAR, WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT TO YOU IF-

 we hove wentfied ony inconsistencies betwaen our knowledge ocquired dunng the audit and the dectors’ statement that they consider the Arnual Repont s four, befonced ond
understondeble, o

« the Annual Report does not apprognarely disciose those matters thot were communicated fo the audit committee which we consider should have been disclosed

UNDER THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT TQ YOU iF, IN OUR OPINION:
* (ertoin dsclosures of directors” semuneratron speafied by low @re not made, of

* we hove ot receved ol the informanon ond explanations we require for our eudit, or

« ¢ Corporate Governance Report hos not been prapared by the Compony

UNDER THE LISTING RULES, WE ARE REQUIRED TO REVIEW.
* the Directors” statement, set out on page 35, n relohon to going concem, ond
# the port of the Corporote Govemance Report relaning to the company’s complance with the ten provisions of the UK Comporate Governance Code specied for our review

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT
WHAT AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INVOLVES:
A desenption of the scope of an eudst of Financiat Statements 15 prowded on the Finanaiol Reporting Counal’s website o www frc org uk /ouditscopeukpnvate

WHAT THE DIRECTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR-
As exploined more fully in the Directors” Responsibilies Statement set out on page 53, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Financipl Statements and for being sansfied
that they gie o true and forr view

WHAT WE ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR:
Our responsibility 1 to audit end express an opinion on the Financral Statements in accordonce with epplicable dow and Internanonal Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand) Those
standards require us to comply with the Audiing Prochices Board’s Ethical Standords for Auditors

Philip Westerman

Senier Statutory Auditor

For and on behoff of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Londan

16 luy 2015



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

EYERYTHING 1S CHANGING.
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57 wosks ended
26 Aprll 2015 7 e 2014
Hote (£°000) (£ 000)
Revenue 14 2,832,560 2,705,958
Cost of sales {1,591,748) {1,551,036)
Gross profit 1,240,812 1,154,922
Selling, distnbution and adminishiatye expenses (950 526) {908,843)
Qther operoting ncome 5 8,345 8,583
Exceptionod iems b (3,050} {5,531)
Operating profit 4,7 295,581 249,131
Other snvesiment income 9 14,104 1017
Finance mcome 10 8,289 891
Finance costs n (7.487) {19,853)
Share of peofit of associoted undertokings 16 2959 2,266
Profit before taxation 313,446 239,452
Taxation 12 (72,093) {59,839)
Profit for the period 4 241,353 179,613
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equrty holders of the Grovp 240,397 180,245
Non-ontrofling mterests 956 (632
Profit for the period 4 241,353 179,613
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY SHAREHQLDERS
Pace per share Pesce per share
Bask eernings per share 13 4046 308
Dituted earmings per shore 13 390 297
Underlying bosic sornmgs per share 13 389 321

The censolidated tncome statement hos been prepored on the boss that oll operations ore confinuing

The accompanying accounting palicies and notes form part of thess Fmoncicl Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENCED 26 APRIL 2015

$2 weeks ended
26 Aprid 2015 27 Bl 01
Hete (£'000) {T000)
Profit for the pened 4 241,353 179,613
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED SUBSEQUENTLY TO PROFIT OR LOSS
Actuanal (losses) / gains on defined henefit pension schemes 24 (2.493) 3,840
Toxalion on lems recogased i other comprehensve mcome 524 {698)
ITEMS THAT WILL BE RECLASSIFIED SUBSEQUENTLY TO PROFIT OR LOSS
Exchange differences on trnslation of foresgn operations 2,156 (33,118
Exchange diffesences on hedged confracts recognised an the penod i) AL {3,737
Exchange diffecences on hedged confracts reclossified ond reporfed i net profi 7 7,240 (17,509
Fair value odjustment in respect of ovailobledor sale financie] assets 17 21,893 57,373
Toxation on fems recognssed in other compiehensive ncome {17.728) (4.170)
Othet comprehensive income for the period, net of tox 95,713 1,601
Totul coriprehensive ncome for the period 337,126 181,214
ATTRIBUTABLE T0:
Equity helders of the Group 336,170 181,846
Non-controling infesest 956 {632)
337,126 181,214

The occompanying occounting pohaies ond notes form past of these Finoncial Statements



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

EVERTTHING IS CHANGING..
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AT 26 APRIL 2015
28 Apri 2013 ke 2004
Mo {£°000) (£°000}
ASSETS - NON-CURRENT
Property, plont and equipment 14 472742 412,361
Intangible assels 15 255 364 255,109
Investments m ossoiated undestokmgs 16 38,133 41,783
Avaiablefor sale fmanciol assets 17 140,795 116,504
Deferred tox ossets 25 38,352 31,130
895,386 856,867
ASSETS - CURRENT
Inveniones 18 517,054 565479
Trode and other recevables 19 190,726 123,014
Demvetive fingnonl pssets 77 92199 4,355
Cosh ond cash equivalents 20 78318 151,024
878,297 843,872
TOTAL ASSETS 1,773,683 1,700,739
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shars copitol I 64,060 £4.060
Shore prermaum 874,300 874,300
Trensury shares reserve (56,234) (56,234)
Permanest contabution 1o capial 50 50
{opal sedemphon reserve 8,005 8,005
Forergn wriency translation reserve 14,436 5,280
Revesse combimotion reserve (987,311 {987,312
(wn share reserve {13,251) {13,251}
Hedgung reserve 78,796 {5,625}
Retoined earnings 1,181,511 931,819
1,164,361 821,092
Non<ontrolling nterests {2,810 {3,538}
Total equity 1,161,551 817,554
LIABILITIES - NON-CURRENT
Borawings 23 136,849 6,764
Retwement benefit obbigations i 14,869 15,350
Defesred tox lobdites 25 40,088 24046
Provisions 26 37,705 37 180
229 511 83,940
LIABELITIES - CHRRENT
Dervaive finanool labilries 277 5,629 18,645
Trode and other poyables 28 340,936 392,019
Bonzowings 23 1,204 356,226
Cument tox hobiines 34,852 37,338
382,621 799,245
Totdl fichilities 512,132 883,185
Total equity and liohilities 1,773,683 1,700,739

The accomparying eccounting poficies ond notes form port of these Financial Statements The Fimancial Statements wese appioved by the Board on 16 July 2015 ond were signed on s behalf by

Matt Pearson
Actng Cheef Fnanaal Ofiier

Company number: 06035106
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

51 woeeks mded
26 Apetl 2015 27 ke 2014
Nois {£°000) (7000}
Cosh inflow from operating activiies ] 314,662 222,785
Income toxes pod (77,73 {55,730)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 236,952 167,055
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and squipment 21,150
Proceeds on disposal of listed mvestments 51,695 49 3%4
Purchose of ssotate, net of cosh ocquied {50} {8,000)
Purchase of subsudianss, net of cosh atquued (3,847) {15,407)
Purchasa of mtangible ossets 15 (2,937} (1,827)
Pwichasa of property, plont ond equipment 14 {97,342) {67,304)
Purchose of lisied tvestments 17 (50,415} {55,467)
Imvestment meoma recetved 2,883 1,604
Finance imcome recened 987 891
Nel cosh ootflow from Invesiing octivities (77,876} {96.116)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance costs paid 16,845) (8,111)
Borrowings drawn down 126,989 300,910
Bosiowangs repod {346,997 (348,452
Exercise of ophion over non-controlling inferests {11,678)
Net cosh ootflow from Haandng activities {226,853) {67,331)
Net (decrease) / increase In cash and cash equivalents including overdrofts (67,777 3,608
Cush and cash equivalents Induding overdrafts at beglnning of period 145,282 141,674
Cosh and cash equivalents including overdrafts at the period end 20 77,505 145,282

The accompanying occounting poficies and notes form pait of these Fincnual Statements
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Totdl attrbmtale
Treasoty Forsign comrety Ovwn share Retoined toownrs of  Nowcontrolling
shares transhation reserve wrings  Ctber tesarves parent Intorests Totdd
{£/006) {£7000) ({E'000} {£°000) {£'000) {E"000) {E°000} {£7000)
At 78 April 2013 {56,234) 38,398  (64,375) 752,018 {24,876} 644,931 {254) 644,677
Vesting of shore-based poyment 51124 (51,124)
Curen! tax on shore schemes 25,500 25,500 25,500
Deferred tox on share schemas {11,715 [AFIE)] (13,215
Nomontiofing mterests  ocquistions (10,513 {i0,513)
Exencrse of option over non-contolling tnterest {19.970) (19,970) 7861 {12,109)
Transactlons with owners 51,124 {56,80%) (5,685) (2.652) (8,337
Profit for the financial perod 180,245 180,245 {632) 179,613
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Cash flow hedges
recognsed in the penod {3,737 {3.737) {3,730
teclossified nd reported m nef profi {17,509 {17,909) {17,909
Acwaitol gain on defined beneft pension schemes 3,860 3,840 3,860
For value edwstment m respect of avollable-for-sola
finoncial assets 57,373 57373 57,313
Taxaton {4,868} (4,868} {4,868)
Translotion differences Group (32,498) {37 498) (32,498}
Tronslation differentes assoontes (620 {620} (620}
Total comprebensive income for the period (33,118) 236,610 {71,646) 181 846 {632 181,214
At 27 April 2014 {56,234) 5,280 {13,251) 931,819 {46,522} 821,092 {3,538) 817,554
Credit to equity for share-based payment 5,833 5,833 5,833
Deferred fax on shore schemes 1,266 1,266 1,266
Hor-controlling nlerests  acquisitions 384 384
Transactions with owners 7.099 7,099 384 7483
Profit for the finenciol period 240,397 240397 956 241,353
Divdends recenved {612 {612}
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Cash flow hadges
tpcoghised In the perod 7718 71,18 7718
rackassfied and reporsed i net profit 7,240 7,240 7,240
Actugnal fosses on defined benefit pension schemes (2,493) (2493} (2,493)
Fau votve adpsiment in respect of avarlable-forsale finonciok
assets 21,893 21,893 21,893
Toxation {17,204} (17 204} {17,204)
Tronslation differences Gioup 13,783 13,783 13,783
Tronslation ddferences assocites {4.627) (4,627} (4,627)
Total comprehensive income for the period 9,158 242,593 84420 336,170 344 336,514

At 26 April 2015 {56,234) 14,436  (13,251) 1,181,511 37,899 1,164,361 {2,810) 1,163,551
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consohidated Finonciol Stotements of Sporis Direct Intemahional plc {the “Company”)
and ts subsidicnes (together the “Group”) have been prepared m accordonce with
internohond! hnanciol reparhng standards os adopted by she european union (“IFRS™)

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consohidated Fingncinl Stotements have been prepared in occordance with IFRS os
adopted for use in the European Unwon (including Internptional Arcouniing Stoadards
{"1A5") and International Finonciol Reporting Standords Interpretations Committee
{*IFRSIC") ond with these ports of the Companies Act 2006 opplicable to compantes
reporting under IFRS os ndepted for use in the European Umion The consohdated Fingnoinl
Statements have been prepared under the hestoncal cost convention, as modified to
inchode for valuation of cestown finonaiot assers and denvoive hinanaol nstruments

The following [FRS, IFRSIC interpretanons ond amendments are effective for the first ime
in this fingaciol year

IFRS 10 Consohdated Fenancuol Staremens and [FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Enfihes hove been adopted i the finonciol year The revsed standards reploce the porhion
of AS 27 that oddresses the accounting for consolidated Finantisl Statements The
sdoption of these standards has resulted in no change to the Income Staterent, Balance
Sheet ar Statement of Comprehensive Income 1n the cursent financial peniod

CONSOLIDATION

The consalidated Finananl Statements consolidate the revenues, costs, ossets, linhifines
ond cash flows of the Company and 115 subsidiones, being those enfifies thot the Group 15
deemed to have control over It will be deemed fo hove control when it hos power over
the entity, i exposed to or hus nghts to vanoble retusns from the eniy and hos the ability
10 use 115 power over the entity fo offect the amount of the entity's retums

On acquesihon, the assets and hobulines and contingent fiabilities of o subsidiary are
meosured at thew frir values ot the dote of acquisition Any excess of farr valug of the
considerahon transterred over the fair volues of the dentificble net ossets ocquwed 15
recognwsed os goodwall Any deficiency of foir value of considerahoa tronsferred below

the fair values of the dennfiable ner assers acquired 15 credited to the consolidoted ncome
statement n the penod of ocquisiion: The non-controling mterest s stated af the
norcontroling mterest’s proportion of the faw values of the assets, hobines and
contngent habikes recognised Costs incurred relafing 1o acquisiiions ore expensed to

tha imcome statement

The results of subsidiones ocquired or disposed of dunng the yeor ore mcluded in the
consohdated mcome stetement from the effechve dase of acquisition or up to the effecive
date of disposal, us opprapnate

Intercompany mansactions, bafances and unreahised gains and losses on tronsachons
between group companes a:e ehminated

ASSOCIATES
Assoaiaies ore entities aver which the Group hes signficarnt imfuence but not control,
generolly accompanied by o share of between 20% ond 50% of the voting nghts

The Gsoup’s share of the results of associases 15 ncfuded s the Group's consokidoted
income statement using the equily method of accounting Investments in associotes

ore cormed m the Group's conschdated balance shees ot cost plus post acquisinon changes
i the Group’s share of the net assets of the ossocates ond joint ventures, fess any
mpairment in velue The carying values of mvestments in assecotes include

ocquired goodwil

If the Group's share of Tosses in an assacinte or equaks or exceeds its wvestment i the
ossocrate, the Group does nor recognise fursher losses, unless 1t has incurred obligntions to
do s0 or made poyments an behalf of the associare

Unrealised goins ansing from trnsactions with assocates are efimmated to the exrent of
the Group's mterest in the enlity

INVESTMENTS

Avolabledarsale nvestments ore ninolly recegnised of fon volue Where for volue

s different to cost, this s recognised m the income stotement on initsal recogauion
Subsequent goins and losses onsing from changes e forr valug are recognised m the
staterment of other comprehensive meome When the secunty s disposed of, de-ecognesed
or 15 determined to be impaied the cumulotive goin of loss prewiously recogmised m

other comprehensive incame s reclossified from equity to the mcome stofement gs o
redossification adjustment within other comprehensive income

ACQUISITIONS

For business combinohons achived in stages, the Group remeastres its prewiausly held
equily nterest m the ncquiree of ts acquisthon-dote faw vahue and recogmises the resulting
goin of loss, i amy, 1n the mcome stutement os oppropaate

GOODWILL

Goodwill ansing on consolidahon 15 recognised os an asset and reviewed for impairment of
least annually or when a change In ercumstances o situotion indecates thar the goodwll
hos suffered an impoirment loss The need for impoirment s tested by companng the
motket volue of the coshgeneroting unit ((GU} to the comying volue Asty impowment 5
recognsed immediately i the ncome statement Impairment losses on goodwll are not
reversed Gomns ond losses on the disposal of o business inchude the amount of goodwil
relating to thot business

When the non-entrolling interest of an exsting subsidiary s acquired the carrying volue
of the nonrcontrolling interests in the balance sheet s ehminated Any difference berween
the amount by which the nonconirolling inferest & adjusted and the fair value of the
consdesation paed 15 recognised duectly in equity

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Beonds, trade marks and ficences that ore intemally generated ore not recorded on the
blonce sheet Acquired brands, trade marks and ficences are inihally camed on the
balonce sheet ot cost The faw value of bronds, trade morks ond hcences that ore acquired
by wiriug of o business combinghon 1s determined of the dote of acquesition and is
subsequently assessed os being the deemed cost o the Group

Expenditure on advertsing end promatianal acinaties 15 recognised as an expense
05 incurred

No amortisonion s chorged on those bronds, ode marks or perpetual /renewable cences
with an indefinite e g the Group beliaves that tha volug of thesa brands ond trade
marks con be maintmned mdefnmaly The Group carnes out an mpamment review of
indefiaute life mrangsbles, ot least annually, o when o chonge n crcumstonces or situgtion
indicates that those infangibles have suffered on impoirment loss {mpoirment ts megsured
by companng the corsyng amount of the mtongible asset os part of the cosh-genersting
unit ((GUY with the recoverable omount of the (GU, that s, the hugher of ifs fair vatue fess
coss to sell ond its value sn use Volue in use 15 colculated by usng a pre tox discount rate
that reflects curent marker assessments of the nme votue of money and the rsks specic
to the gsset for which the eshmates of futue cosh flows heve not been odpsted

Amarisahon 15 provided on other bronds, ode marks and licences with o definire hfe

on o streight liae basts over thew useful ecenomic lives of 5 fo 15 years and s accounted
for within the selling, distsbution ond administrotive expenses categary within the
income stafement

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plont ond equipment gre stoted at histoncal cost less depreciahion less any
recognsed smporment Josses Cost includes expenditure that & directly ottributable to the
aequesition or construcian of these tems Subsequent costs are nduded m the asset’s
carymg amount only when it s probable that future economuc benefirs associared wth the
item wall flow to the Group and the costs can be measured relisbly

All ather ¢osts, inchudig repairs ond maintenance costs, are charged o the mcome
stotement m the penod in which they ore incurred




Depreciotion 15 prywded on oll property, plant ond equipment other than freehold land and
55 wlootated on o reducing balonce basss or straight fing bosis, whichever is deemed by the
dtrectors io ba more appropnate, to allacate cost fess ossessed residual volue, other than
assets In the course of construchion, over the eshmated useful lives, as follows

Freshold buldings  betwaen 2% ond 10% per anrum - strught ding
Leasehold improvements over the terms of the leose - stemight lne
Plont ond equipment  between 5% ond 33% per cnnum  straight line

The assets’ useful hves ond residual values ore revewed and, if appropnate, adjsted af
cach batance sheet date

The gaim or kss arsing on desposal or scrapping of an asser s derermined as the diffesence
between the stles proceeds, net of seling costs, and the corryirg amount of the esset and
15 recogrused 1n the income statement

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS OTHER THAN GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS WITH AN INDEFINITE LIFE

At each balonce sheet date, the Directoss rewew the carrying amounts of the Group’s
tangible and infangible ossets, other than goodwall and miangible assets with an mdefinie
ife, to detesrming whether there 1s any indicahion that those assets have suffered on
impawment foss IF any such indicohion exists, the recoverchle amount of the asset is
estmated i order fo determune the extent of tha impoinment loss, if any Where: fhe asset
does niot generate cosh flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates
the recovernble omount of the cosh-generating unir, {CGU) fo which the assat belongs
With respect to property, plont ond equipment, each store s considesed fo be a (G

and where onerous lenses ore noted the assets of each ndwidual store are indvidually
assessed for imparment

Recoveroble amount & the hugher of foir value less costs ro sefl and value in use In
ossessing value 1n use, the eshmated futuse cosh flows aze discounted to their present
volue using o pre-tox discount rate that reflects current merker ossessments of the time
valua of money ond the nsks specfic 1o the asset for which the esnmates of future cash
flows have not been odusted

if the recovesable omount of an asser (or CGU) 15 esmated e be less than its camying
omount, e corying amount of the asser {CGU) s reduced to ifs recoverable amount
Anmpanment loss 1s recogmised o5 on expense immediotely, unless the relevant osset
15 camed at o re-valued amount, in which cose the impaimant loss 15 treoted as o
revaluohion decreose

Impaiment losses recognised for CGU's to whikch goodwill has been allocated are credited
oy to the carrying omauat of gocdwll Any remoining imparrment loss s charged pro
rato to the other ossets i the (o

Where an impairment loss subsequantly reverses, the camrying omount of the gsset (CGU)
is ncrensed 1o the ravised estmate of its recoverable amount, but so thet the increased
corrying omount does rot exceed the casryiag amount that would hove been determmned
had ro mparment loss been recagmised for the asset (CGUY i prior penods A reversal of
o9 mpomment loss 1 recognised n the income statement immediately

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue 1s measured af the fow valug of the consideranion recewved, or recenvable, and
represents amounts recanvebte for gonds supphied, stated net of discounts, setums and
volue odded foxes

In the cose of goods sold through ratal stores, revenue Is recognised at the point of sale
of o product fo the astomey, less provision for returns. Accumulated experience i used
to estimate ond prowide for such returss ot the tme of the sole Retoil sgles ore usually i
cassh, by debet cord or by credit cord

In the cose of goods sold on the infernet revenue & secognsed ot the pomt that the nsks
and rewards of the mvestory have possed 1o the customer, which 1 the pomt of delivery
to the eustomer Transochons ot seftled by credit cord or payment cord Prowsions are
rode for internet credit nares bosed on the expected level of retums, which n fum &
based upon the hestoncal rate of returns

In the case of ncome genesated from trade marks and licencas, revenue s recognised on
an accruels boss m occordonce wath the eelevant agreements or on o transactienal basts
when revenue i linked fo sale or purchase volumes

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

The Group presents os excephionol ikems en: the face of the income statement, those
signicant items of income ond expense which, becouse of ther size, noture and
infrequency of the events gving nse to them, ment saporate presentaon to allow
shoreholders 1o understand better the elements of finanuel performance in the yeer,

50 s to foerhitate companson with prior penods and assess frends i financiol performance
more readily

INTEREST INCOME
interest mcome & reported on on aceual bosis using he effective interest method

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The presentohonal currency of the Group 1s sterling The funchional cursency of the
Company s also steding Foreign currency transachions re tronslated wto steding using
the exchange rafes prevailing on the dates of the tronsactions Exchange differences of
the Company ansing on the sertlement of manetary tems, and on the sefranslaiion of
monetory items, ore included i the ncome statement for the penod

Exchanga ditferences ansing on the retranstation of non-manetary items comed o foi
valug ore mcluded in the income statement for the penod except for dfferences ansing

on the retranslohion of non-manetary ttems n respect of which gains ond fosses ure
iscognised in other comprehensive income For such nor-monefary items, any exchange
component of thar gon or less 15 also recogmised divectly m other camprehensive ncome
Monetary ossets and habifities denominated in foreign currencies ore tronslored of the rate
of exchange riling o the balance sheet date

On consolidanion, the assets and kabilihes of Foreign operatians which have a functioral
curreacy ather then sterling are translated inte sterling at forexgn exchange rates rufing

ot the bolance sheet dare The revenues and expenses of these subsidiory underickings
gse translated ot overage rates apphicable in the penod AR resulting exchenge differences
are recognised m ather comprehensive income and documented 13 o separate component
of equity

When o foreign operation s sald, the cumulotive exchonge differences that have been
recognised as a separate component of squity ore recissiad from equity to the :ncome
statement when disposat 15 recagmised

In order to mingofe ifs expasure fo certain foreign exchange nsks, the Group enters mto
forward confracts (see chief executive’s repart and the cesh flow hedging accounting pokcy
on page A5

INVENTORIES

Inventanes are valued of lower of cost ond net realsoble volue Cost includes the
purchase prce of the monufactured producrs, motenols, direct lobowr, wronsport ¢osts end
a proportion of opphcable overheads Costis calculnted using the weighted average cost
meshod Nef realisoble volue s based on the estimated sefling price fess all eshmated
selling costs

The company recewves trade discounts and rebates from supphiers based upon the volume
of orders placed i o gven ime window ead as o contbution fowards marketiag cosfs
Where there 55 suffiaent certainty that a discount or rebate will be recesved i the future
that relates to histanc purchases this 1s reflected in the cost of mventones

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Loans ond recewables ore recognised inimally ot fowr value plus fransochion costs and
suhsequently megswred o amorhsed cost under the effectve migrest method less provision
far impoimment Provesion for impawment s established when these s objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect amounts due according to the ongingt tenms

of the recervable The omount of the imporment i the difference between the asset’s
cormying omount ond the presant value of the eshmated futuse cosh flows, decounted ot
the onginal effectve imerest rote
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cosh end cash equavalenss inciude cash in hand ond depesits held on call, fogether with
other short term highly hiquid investments thot ore readily convernble o known omounts
of cash and which are subject to an msigaficant sk of changes in value

TRADE AND QTHER PAYABLES
Trode and other poyables are iniolly measured ot fair value, and are subsequently
measused ut amernised cost, using the effective interest method

TAXATION

Tox expense comprises current ond deferred tox Tox s recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent if relates to items recognised in other comprehenswe
icorme or directly in eguily

Defemed toxation s colculated using the lability method, on femporary diferences
arssing between the tax bases of assefs and liabilikes and thewr commymg amounts in the
consolidated Finonciot Statements However, 1f the deferred tax anses fram the mimal
recogninon of goodwill or inial recognihion of an asset or liability in o ronsachon other
than @ bustness combination that at the time of the transachon affects neither occounting
nor toxoble profit or foss, it 1s not accounted for Defemed fox on temporary differences
ossoctoted with shares i subsidionies 15 not provided if reversal of these temporary
differences con be controlled by the Group ond i 1s prohable that reversal wall ot occur
in the foreseeable future In addinon, fax fosses availcble to be cared forward os well
us other icome tox ¢redits fo the Group ore ossessed for recogmihion os deferred 1ax
ossets Deferred tox ts determned usmg fox rates and lows that hove been enacted (or
substantively enacted) by the bofonce sheet date ond are expected to apply when the
reloted deferred fox osset s relised or the deferred tox bty 15 sattled

Defemed tox hobilities ore prowded  full

Deferred tax ossefs ore recogrused to the extent that it 1s probable that fufure toxable
profits will be availnble against which the remgorary differences con be unised

Changes Ir current and deferred tax assets or habilihes are recogmised os o component
of tox expense in the ncome stalement, except where they relote 1o iterss that are
recorded 1n other comgrehensive income or chorged or credited directly fo egusty m which
tose the reloted deferred tax 15 also charged to other comprehensive income or cradied
directly 1o equity

PENSIONS
The Graup operates pension plans for the benefit of certain employees, ircuding bath
defirad contrbution and defined hensfit ploas

In relotion to its defined conmbution plars, the Group makes contmbutions to
independently odminsstered plans, the conmbutions heing recognised os on expense
wiien they foll due The Group has no legal of ¢onstructive obligation to make any further
poyments to the plans other than the contnbutions due

In relghon to ts defined banefit schames, the Group recognises 1a ifs balonce sheet the
present value of ifs defined benefir obligotions less the fai valus of plon assets The
current servica cost s chargad agasst operating profit Interest on the schemes habilives s
included 1n finance costs

The defined benefit obligation s calculated of each pesiod end by independent aciuanes
using the projected unit credit method The present value of the obhganon s determined
by discounting the estmated future cosh quflows wstng inferest rates of high qualiy
corpornte bonds et nre denommnated e the cumency n which the bengfirs will be paed
and which have terms to motunty opproximating the terms of the relateg

pension biobilines

Actuanal gains and losses ansing from expenience adstments and changes n acuonal
assumptions are reflected 1n other comprehensive ncome s the perad m which they anise

BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS

Borrowngs ore recognised mihally af fow vofue, ner of sansochon costs incurved, ond
subsequently ot amortsed cost Any dfference batween the proceeds (net of transachion
cosfs) and the redesphon volue is recognised i the income statement over the penod of
the borowings using the effectve mterest method

Borrowings are clossified os current kobilies unless the Group has on unconditional nght
0 defer sertlement of the hiebehty for of least 12 months from the belance sheet dote

Borrowing costs, being eterest and other costs meurred m connection with the serviang of
bosrowings, are recognised os on expense when morred

PROVISIONS

A provssien 1s recogmised whien the Group hos o present legal or constructive obligatien os
& result of 0 post event, it s probable thot an outflow of resaurces wil be requred to seffle
the ebligahon and o rebnble eshmote can be mode of the amount of the obligaion

The Group prowdes for ifs legal sesponsibihiy for diapidation costs followang adice from
chartered surveyors and prewious expenence of exd costs The eshmated cost of futhlfing
the leasehold dilapidations abligations & discounted to present value and onolysed
between nor-cogitol and copifal companents The copital element s secognisad as o
decommsssionng cost and depreciated over the Ife of the asset The noncopital element s
taken to the income statement m the first year of the leose where the cost it represents is
of no lasting beneht to the Group or ts landlord “Wear and tear” costs are expensed to the
income statement Provistons for onerous lease contracts ore recognised when the Group
behieves the unavoidable costs of meeting the lease oblgations exceed the economic
benefits expected fo be receved under the lease

LEASES

Legses of property, plont and equipment where the Group has subssannolly oll the nsks
ond rewords of ownership ore dossfied s finance lenses Fnance leoses are copitalised
of the lease’s mcapnon ot the lowsr of the fer volue of the leosed asset and the present
value of the mimmum lease payments Ench lease payment s aflocated between the
hability and finence chorges so os to achieve o constant rate on the finance bolance
outstanding The asset subjext to the fnance lease s deprecioted oves the shorter of its
useful Iife ond the fease term The corresponding rentol obbganons, net of fingace chorges,
are ncluded o o lability

Leases of property, plant ond equipment whese the Group does not have substorehally of
the rsks ond rewaids of ownarship are classified as operahing lenses Poyments made
under operating feases are charged fo the ncoma statement on & straight ing bos:s over
the fegse ferm Incensves prowided by the lessor ore credsted to the income statement on
0 strught lne 4osis over the minmum lease term

Contingent rental poyments, above standard payments, ore condihonal on the Groug’s
opermzing performance denved from the lease dem, (e g turnover levels) These ore
expensed 15 the period n which they are wcurred

Rentat income from operating leases where the Group acts as o lessor is recognised on o
stro:ght g basis over the 1erm of the relevont laose

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The most significant expasure o foreign exchange fluctuatiens relates to purchases made
in foraign currencees, principally the §S Dollar The Group’s poticy s to reduce substannally
the sk ossociated wath purchases denommated i foreign currencies by using forword
fixed rate currency purchase controcts, toking into occount any fereign currency cash flows

Denvative financiol sstruments are measured of fair value Where denvetives do not
qualify for hedge accounting, ony gans o losses on re-magsurement are immediotely
recognised n the income statement Where denvatives qualy for hedge accounting,
recogninion of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relahonship
ond the item being hedged

In order fo qualify for kedge accounting, the Group s required to document from inception
the relatioaship between the item beng hedged and the hedging instrument The Group
15 ko required to document and demanstite on ossessment of the relaonship between
the hedged item and the hedgwg instrument, which shaws that the hedge will be fighly
effactive on on en-going basis Thus effechveness testing is performed ot eoch penod end
fo ensure that the hedge remas tughly effective




CASH FLOW HEDGING

Denvative financial mstruments are clossified os cash flow hedges when they hedge the
Group's exposure to vanabiliy m cash flows that are esther atiributable 1o o parnculor msk
assocated with o recogrused osset or fiahilty, or o tughly probable forecest ronsaction

The effective element of any gain or fass from re-meosunng the denvatve mskument s
recognssed direcdly in other comprehensive income

Ths ossociated cumulateve gawn or loss s redussified from other comprehensive income in
the some penod o1 penads dunng whch the hedged transaction effects the peofit or loss
The dhossification of the effective portion when recogrised in the income stotement is the
same s the dassificahon of the hedged tonsaction Ary element of the remeasurement
of the dervoive instrument which does not meet the ctena for on effectrve hedge &
recognised immediately in the meome stotement within finonce mcome or costs Hedge
accounting 15 discontinued when the hedging mstrument expires or 15 sold, termunoted

or exgrcssed, or o longer qualifies for hedge accounting At that pomt 1n time, any
cumulative gamm o loss on the hedgng instrument recognised in equity s retamed in
equdy uniil the forecosted fromsoction occurs If o hedged tonsaction ts no longer expected
to occu, the nef cumulative g or loss recognsed in other comprehensive income 15
rechossified from equiy to the ncome statement s o reclassificahon odpustment

TREASURY SHARES

The purchnse price of the Group’s own sheres that 1t acquires is recogmsed os “Treasury
shares” within equity When shores ore transferred our of reosury the difference between
the market volue and the overoge purchase prce of shares sold out ef treasury 15
trarsferred to retomed eamings

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST

An tmployee Benefit Trust hos been established for the purposes of somsfying certom
sharebiased awards The Group hes “dedacto’ contzol aver the speoal purpase entity This
Trust & fully consolidated within the occounts The cost of shores ocquired by the Sports
Direct Employee Benefit Trust 1s recognised within “own shore-eserve” it equity

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group ssues equityseitied sharebosed poyments to certain Directors and employees
These are measured of Fai volue ot the dote of grant, winch s expensed to the
consoldated incorne statement on  strarghtkne bosis over the veshng penod, with te
terresponding credi going to equrty

Non market vesting coadiions ae not teken inio account in defermumng grant date fai
value Instead, they are token mto account by adjusking the number of equity mstruments
10 vest

Foir value s bosed on the market share price on the gront date The expected staff
numbers used m the mode! hos heen odjusted, based on monagement’s best eshmaote, for
the effects of non-transferobiisy, exercise resmchians, and behowoural considerations

A share-based pryment chorge of £10 1m was recognesed i selling, distnbution and
adminstrove expenses for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2015 The key defods i respedt
of the share scheme charges ore sef out in note 21

Fhe credit for the shore bosed payment charge does not equal the charge per the mcome
statement os 1t excudes amaunts recogrised m she balance sheet i eelanon to the
expected notonal msurance comabuhons for the shares

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

An equity instrument s any confroct thot endences o residugl imterest in the ossefs of
the Group ofter deducting ol of s liobifines Equrty instruments ssued by the Group ore
recorded ar the proceeds recesved, net of any dwect ssue costs

DIVIDENDS

Omndends ore recogrused as o iabiity wn the Group's Financial Statements and os o
deduction from equity m the period i which the dmdends ore dedared Where such
drndends are proposed subject to the approval of shareholdess, the didends ore regarded
as dechred once shoreholder approvel has been obrained

MATERIALITY

I prepanng the Fingnciol Statements, the Board considers both quentriatve ond
qunfitntive factors m forming ws jdgements, and reloted dischosures, aad ore mindful of
the need to best serve the interests of s stakeholders and to ovoid unnecessary clutter
borne of the dsclosure of immatenal tems

In making this assessment the Board considers the nature of each wem, os well as ifs
size, 1n ossessing whether any disclosure omissions or misstarements could inflyence the
deasions of users of the Financal Statements

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS {“STANDARDS”)
IN 1SSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

At the date of cuthonsotion of these consabdnted Finanoe! Starements, the intemohional
accounting siondards board {"1ASB”) and mtemananal financial eeporting stardards
commttee {"IFRSC") hove ssued the following standards and interpretanons which ore
effectve for annual occounnng periods beginning on ar after the stated effectve dote
These standards and miespretohons ore nof effective for and have not been apphed n the
preparanon of the consobdated Fmonaal Storements

© |FRS 9 Fmance! Instruments {IASB effective dote 1 Jansary 2018}
« |FRS 15 Revenue trom Contracts with Customers (effectve | laruory 2017)

= Defined Benefit Plons Employee Contbunons {Amendments o 1AS 19} {1ASB
effectve date 1 July 2014)

» (larificanon of Accepable Meshods of Depreciahon end Amorisation
Amendments to 1AS 16 and 1S 38 (1ASB effectve date 1 Jonuary 2015)

o Amendments to 1S 27 Equity Method in Seporats Fmancal Staiements {gHectve
1 Jonuory 2016)

o Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 28 Investment Entities Applying the
{onsolidonon Exception (effective 1 Jonuory 2016)

» Disclosure Imhotve Amendments to 1AS 1 Presentohion of Finonaol Statements
{effectiva 1 fanuory 2016)

The directors anhapote thot the adophion of these stendonds end intespretations in fuure
periods wil hove no matenal impact on the Finanaial Statements of the Group

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The trncal accounning estimates and judgements made by the Group regarding the furure
or other key soutces of eshmation, uncertainty and judgement that may have a signiicont
ask of gving nsa 1o 6 matenal adjustment to the camying valuss of assers and hobilities
within the nexi financial yeor are

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The cokutehon for considenng the impairment of the carrying amount of goodwill requires
a compansor of the present value of the CGU's 1o which the goodwill hios been alloceted
to the value of goodwill and assocated assets i the balance sheet The calculonon of
present volues requires an eshimahion of te future cosh flows expected to onse from the
{GL's ond the selectron of o switohle discount rrte The key essumphons mode n relation
to the impaiment rewew of goodwill are sef out m note 15

IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The coleulonon Far considenng the impoment of the corrying amouni of other intongible
ossefs with on mdefimie ke, speaficolly bronds, trade marks and licences, requires

o companson of the present volue of the reloted cosh flows to the value of the other
intongible assets in the balonce sheet The cakculation of present volue requires on
eshimahon of the futare cosh flows expected to anse from the other mtongible assets and
the selechion of o suitoble dicount rate The key assumphions made m relanon to the
mmpasment review of other miongible ossefs ore set out an noie 15

EVERYTHING 15 CHANGING...
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

USEFUL ECONOMIC LIFE OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For ntangible ossets which hove o finite Iife, the dweciors revsit thew estmate of useful
economic Iife ot each penod end end revise accordingly Licences and ode marks ypicolly
hiave o itz of between 5 ond 15 yeors

IDENTIFICATION AND VALUATION OF ACQUIRED INTANGIBLE ASSETS
On acquisition, each matenal, separable infongible asses & identfied and valued by
the Buectors Any such clwlation s dgemental in nature os it 1 bosed on
vahuohon methodalogy

Brond voluations ase tymcally valued using the relief from rovalty valuahon methodology
The nature and carrying amounts of these assets are set out m note 15

IMPAIRMENT
The Directors review the camying emounts of the Group’s tangible assets o determine
whether there & aay mdication that these essers have suffered an impairment loss

PROVISION FOR OBSOLETE, SLOW MOVING OR DEFECTIVE
INVENTORIES

The Directors have applied therr knowledge and expenence of the retail mdustry in
determining the level and rates of prowsioning required 1n colculanng the apprepnate
mventory carrying volues The prowision inchades eshmates for shnnkoge, spoilage and
slow-mowing ifems depending on the oge ond current selling prces of the ndmdual
stock items

FINANCIAL POSITION OF RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The net defined benefit pension plan nssets or habilihes are secogmised in the Group's
balance sheet The determination of the fisancial posihon requires assumptians to be
mode regarding inter alia future solary increoses, mortafity, discount rotes and inflation
The key ossumphions made i relation to the pension plan are set out in note 24

PROVISION FOR DILAPIDATIONS AND ONERQUS LEASE CONTRACTS
The basts of the estimation of the prowisioning for didopidations ond onerous lease
contmocts 15 desaded in the provisions aceounhing policy and note 28 Esimates ond
judgements ore continually evoluoted ond are bosed on histoncal expesience, external
advice and other factors, inchuding expectottons of future events shor are beheved to be
teasonabla under the crcumstances Whese an onerous lease hos been identified, the
assets dedicated to thet confract are impoired

CALCULATION OF SHARE SCHEME CHARGE

4 sharebased payment charge s recognised in respect of share owards based on the
Directors” best eshmate of the number of shares that wil vest The charge rs colculated
bosed on the fair valug on the grant date, which 1s deemed to be the date on which the
entity and counterparty reached o shored understonding of the scheme The key detads in
respect of the shere scheme charges are set out in nate 2

VALUATION OF INVESTMENTS

Where morket doza 15 aor ovorable to assist 1n valuing ivestments, manogement eskmate
the fair value of the enterpnse bosed on the current performance and finoncial posmon of
the relevant compony

VALUATION OF EQUITY DERIVATIVES

The value of equity denvatives s cakuloted using o propaetary ophon gncing mode! The
model output 15 the result of ¢ number of npuss mcluding, amengst other things, the terms
of the ophon {strke price, hne to expuy, etc ), the prevailing share prce, mterest ates,
the voloniiry of the underying stock, and dividends pard by the underlying company

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's current octminies resutt n the following financil nsks and set out below are
management’s respanses {o those nsks 1n order to mimmuse any resulting odverse effects
on the Geoup’s finencial performance

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK
The Group 55 exposed 1o forexgn exchange sk pincipally wa

o fronsoctional exposure from the cost of future purchases of goods for resale, where
those puichases are denominated i o currency other than the Aunchional currency of the
purchosing compeny Transachional exposures that could significantly impact the income
stutement are hedged These exposures are hedged wia forward foresgn currency controcts
which are designated os cash flow hedges The notional and fair value of these contracts
& shown In note 27

b Net mvestment exposure, from the for volue of net mvestments outside the UK
The Group hedges its infernationol mvestments wia foresgn asmency tansactions and
borrowngs in matching curencies

¢ Loans to non-UK subsidiaries These are hedged vio forexgn cummency transactrons and
borrowings in matching currancies, which are not formally designated os hedges, os goins
and losses on hedges ond hedged foans will noturally offset

INTEREST RATE RiSK

The Group has net berrowings, which are ponaipally of floaning terest rtes nked

to bonk base rates or UBOR The Group does not currently use interest rate financial
mstruments to hedge s exposure to interest rote movements The Group requiarly
morifors and reacts accordingly to any exposure o fluciustions 1n intesest rtes and the
wpact on ifs monetary ossefs and hobiihes

CREDIT RISK

The Dieectors hove o credit policy i place and the exposure to ceedit risk 15 monitored on
an on-gotng basis Credit evolughons aze performed on all customers requinng creds over o
certoin amount The Group does not reguire colloteral n respect of finoncial assets

At ench bolance sheet date, there were no significont concentrakions of Gedit sk The
maximm exposure o credit msk 1 represented by the comying amount of each financiol
osset in the balance sheer

nvestments of cash surpluses, borrowings ond desvative instzuments are made through
banks ond compenies which must fulfit credit rohng and mvestment criteno approved by
the Board

LIQUIDITY RISK

The avalabilty of edeguate cash iesources s managed by the Group thiough utilisahion
of its revohving credst foalines together wath equity and retoined profits theseby achieving
continuty of funding ond short term fexdbibty

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
A description of the Group’s objectves, policies and processes for menaging copital are
included i note 27




4. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
IFRS 8 - ‘operating segments’ requres the Group’s segments o be identdied on the bass of itemal reports chout companents of the Group that are regularly revewed by the Chvef
Operoting Decsion Maker 1o ossess performance and allocote resources across each operating segment

The Chief Operating Decsion Maker hos been wentfied os the Executive Directors and the operating segments re identiied as the store foscio or brond, 1n Ine with ihe iatemal reporting
to the Exeautrve Directors

Sales ond grass profit for eoch operoting segment, as wefl as undedying EBITDA, ore the main measures used by the Execuiive Duedlors fo assess performance
I accordunce with perngraph 12 of IFRS B the Group’s operating segments hove bean aggreqared mto the folowing reportable segments

« Sports Reiol — nchudles the results of the UX ond international refail network of sparts stores olong with relared websites,

o fremwm Lifestyle — ncludes the results of the premum retal businesses such as Cruse, Aoanels and USC, ond

» Bronds — mcludes the results of the Group's parfolio of intemationally recognsed brands such os Everlost, Lonsdale and Dunlop

Information regording the Group’s reportable segments for the 52 weeks ended 26 Apal 2015, gs well as a reconcliotion of reported profit for the penod to underyng EBIFDA, =
presented on poages 67 fo 49

Segmental mormanon for the 52 weeks ended 26 Apr 2015

Retad Bronds Eliminations Totd
{£'000) (£1000) [£°000) {£000)
Sports Retall  Promizm Lfestyle Tord Totd
Soles to externol customers 2,398,547 207,623 2,606,170 226,390 2,832,560
Soles to other segments 25480 (25,480)
Revenue 2,398 547 207,623 2,606,170 251,870 {25,480} 2,832 560
Gross pioht 1069088 80,523 1,149,611 91,201 1,240,812
Operghng profit before foreign exchange ond extephonal nems 285,534 (13,170} 274 364 27,984 302,348
Opesatmg proli 283,347 11,278) 02,069 73,512 195,581
Other invesiment income 14,104
Finance peome 8,289
Finance casts {7.487)
Shore of prodits of ossocioted undertokings 2,95%
Profit before taxation 313,446
Taxation (72,093
Profit for the pesiod 241,353
Sales lo other seqments are priced of cost plus o 10% markup
Other segment ttems inchuded in the income statsment for the 52 weeks ended 26 Aprl 2015
Retal Brends Toid
(£000) {£7000) (E£'000)
Sports Ratall  Premium Lifestyle Totel
Depreciation 57,855 2,543 50,398 2,028 62,424
Amorisation 548 687 1,235 4122 5,357

Accelerated depreciation and ameriisation inchded within excephional dems are excuded from fhe above

Information regurding segmen? assets and babiites as of 26 Apl 2015 ond copital expendiiure for tha 52 weeks then ended

Sporis Retal  Premium Lifestyle Bronds Eltmbsations Total

(£°000) (£7000) (£°000) 1£°000) (€000}

Investments m associoted uedertakings 38133 36,133
Dther pssets 1,688,779 24,446 190,772 {168, 447) 1,735,550
Tatal assets 1,726 012 24,446 190,772 (148,447) 1,773,683
Tatal fiabifities {646,836) (60,255) {73,488) 168,447 {612,132
Tangeble osset odditions 93,479 232 1,592 57,342
Intangible osset additions 108 2,82% 2,937

Totel copital expenditure 93,537 23N 4,421 100,279
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Segmental mformation for the 52 weeks ended 27 Apnl 2014

Retoll Erunds Himinations Totd
{£°000) (£'000) {£°000) {£'000)
Sports Reted  Promins Liesyhe Toral Totel
Soles to external customers 2,274 365 214,066 2,488,431 217517 2,705,958
Sales to other segments 203 203 29,938 (30,141}
Revenue 2,274,568 214,066 2,488,634 247,465 (30,141) 2,705 958
Gioss proht 914,952 86,263 1,061215 93707 1,154 922
Operating profit before forewn exchange ond excephonal lems 254,736 (25,729) 229,007 23,825 252,832
Opesgitag profi 251,762 {25,588) 226174 22957 - 249,131
Othes mvestment mcome 7017
Finane mcome 891
Fmance costs {19,853)
Share of profits of nssocnted undertakings 2,266
Piofit befors taxation 239,452
Taxoton {59,839)
Profit for the penod 179,613
Salas to other sepments are prced of cost plus 0 10% markvp
Oshei segment items induded m the income stotement for the 52 weeks ended 27 Apnl 2014
Retcll Bronds Totd
(£°000) (€°000) {£°000)
Sporis Retall  Prenskms Lfastyle Fotel
Depreciohion 50,549 4,689 55,238 1,725 56,963
Amortsation 1,348 687 2,035 4,797 6,832
Impoimend 284 284
Infarmation regarding seqment assets and Babiities as at 27 Apnl 2014 and copital expenditure for the 57 weeks then ended
Sports Retali  Premivm Lilestyle Brands Elizinations Tozal
(£°000) (£°000) {£°000) (€°000) {£°000)
Investments i assooated undertakings and potnt ventures 42176 13 41,763
Other assets 1,609 024 96,601 183,103 (229,152) 1,658,974
Totol assets 1,651,200 96,601 182,690 {229,752) 1,700,739
Total habifities {893,269) {123,554) {95,114) 229,752 (883,185)
Tongible osse! odditions 57,385 6,978 2,981 67,304
Intangible asset odditions 159 1,568 1,827
Total capitaf expendituie 57,624 6,978 4,529 69,131
GEQGRAPHIC INFORMATION
Segmentol informetion for the 52 weeks ended 26 Apnt 2015
14 Non-UK Elminations Totd
(£000) {£7000) {£°000) (£009)
Segmentol revenue from external customers 2,252,360 580,200 2,832,560
Total copital expenditure 81,793 18,486 100,279
Segmental ossets 1,564,864 377,264 {168,447) 1,773,683
Segenental information for the 52 weeks anded 27 Aprif 2014
u Noo-UX Elizinations Total
(£°000) {€'000) (E'000} {E°009)
Segmental revenue from extermol customens 2,063,724 542 234 2,705,958
Total capital expenditure 51,525 17,606 69,131
Segmental assets 1,526 405 404,086 {229.752) 1,700,739




The followmyg fable reconciles the reported operating profit to the underlymg EBTTDA o5 it 15 one of the moin mensures used by the Chief Operating Decrsion Maker when teviewing performance

Reconciation of operatmg profit 1o underlyng EBITBA for the 52 week penod ended 26 Apal 2015

Sports Retoll  Premiom Lifestyle Brands Totel
{£7000) (£°000} {£'000) {E'000}
Qperating profit / (loss) 183,347 (11,278) 23,512 295,581
Depreciation 57 855 2543 2,006 62,424
Imponment 548 87 4122 5,357
Shore of profit / {koss) of essouated undertakings 3,009 {50) 2959
Reported EBITDA 344,759 (8,048) 29610 366,321
Charges fou the share scheme 10,110 10,110
Exceptional stems {3,395 6,445 3050
Reafised FX gai / (loss) 5332 358 (1,973) 3.7
Underlying EBITDA 356,806 {7,690) 34,082 383,198
Reconciiation of operating proi fo underlymg FBITDA for the 52 week penod ended 27 Apil 2014
Sports Retall  Pregivm Uifestyle Brunds Totd
(£/000) {£°000} {£°000) {£'000)
Operating profit / (loss) 251,762 {25,588) 22,957 249,131
Depreciation 50,549 4,689 1,725 56,963
[mparment 284 284
Amartisation 1,348 687 4,797 6,832
Share of profit / {loss) of essoceated undertakengs 2,679 {413) 2,266
Reported EBITDA 306,338 {20,212} 29,350 315,476
Charges for the share scheme 1,927 11,927
Exteptionel dens 5,531 5531
Reafised FX (Foss) / gam {2,557) (141) 868 (1,630}
Underlying EBITDA 321,239 {20,353) 30,218 331,104
5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
52 wouks ended
26 April 2015 27 kgt 2014
{E7000) {£000)
Rent recewvable 4851 5118
Other 3,494 2,465
8,345 8,583
6. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
57 woeks shided
26 April 2015 2 kel 2014
{£°000) (£ 000
Profit on sale of frehokd property 10,288
Impairment and accelerated deprecotion ond amoiisaiion {13,338} (5,531)
{3050 (5,531}

The impaiersent ard aceelersted deprecanon ond omorsanon relstes fo o change n the estimated useful ife of certain tangible and ntangible essets ond impairment ngewmst goodwill m
the year included wiitun this fiqure & on acceletoted gmortsotion charge of £6m due to o change in the usefl economic Ife of certom intangibles w the yeor from 10 yeors 10 5 yeors

The psofir on sale of freehold property of £10 3m includes to the sake of o freehold warehouse for £27 2m, realising e profit of £12 Tm
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7. OPERATING PROFIT
QOperntmg profit for the penod s stated after chorging / (crediting)
§2 weeks ended
26 Aprd 2015 27 tod W4
{£"000) {£°000)
Foreign exchonge losses / (gans) 3117 (1 830
Depreciotion of property, plant and equipment
owned assefs 62,424 56,963
Amottisation of mtangible assets 5,203 6,832
Inpairment of snfangible ossets 284
Opergling lesse rentols
Land ord buldings 142,571 127 341
Other 751 708
Awcelerated deprecution ond amortisafion mcluded within exceptional iems ore exchuded from the above
SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE GROUP’S AUDITOR
for the 52 weeks ended 26 Apal 2015 the remuneration of the ouditors, Grant Thornton UK 1LP ond assocmied fiums, wos os detalled below
57 woeks stided
26 Aprfl 2015 27 Apil 2014
{E7000} (£°000
AUDIT SERVICES
Audit of the Compony’s ond the conselidated Finoncal Stotements 105 85
Audht of subselinry compamies’ Finencial Statements 450 585
NON-AUDIT SERVICES
Other services refating to taxation 748 249
Al other services 484 208

An explanation of how ouditor objectwty and independence s sofequorded when non-oudd services are provided by the auditors s set out in the Audit Commetiee Report or poge 40

8. PAYROLL COSTS
The average manthly number of empfoyees, mcluding Executve Directors, employed by the Group dunng the penod wos
52 waeks ended
26 April 2015 7 Al 2014
(Number) (Humber)
Retos stores 13,414 13,609
Distibuiion, odminstration and other 3,193 3,556
17,207 17,155
The oggregote paysoll costs of the employess, including Executive Directors, were os follows
52 wasks ended
26 Aprl 2015 o7 bork 2014
{£°000) {£.000)
Wages ond salores 290,769 278,714
Sociol secunty costs 31,256 27,835
Pension costs 1,520 1,399
373 545 307,948

A share-bosed poyment chorge of £10,110,000 (2014 £11,927 000) was recogrused m respect of shore awards dunng the year. This 55 mchswve of the reloted chorges for expected national insurance
toninbutions

Agurequte emalsments of the Directors of the Company are summansed below

57 woeks ended
26 Aptll 2015 77 hged 2014
{E'000) (87000}
_bagregate emokiments 477 605

Fursher details of Durectors” remuneration are gven m the Durectors” Remunarahon Report on pages 44 fo 52

Detoils of certom key management remunerahen ore gwven m note 33




9. OTHER INVESTMENT INCOME

57 weaks mded
26 Aprtl 2055 77 kel 014
{£'000) (£ 000}
Profit on disposal of avorlable-forsale financial assets 3678 5413
For volue gain on dervative nsiuments 8,895
Drvidend wnconite frorm investments 1,531 1,604
14,104 7,017
10. FINANCE INCOME
52 weeks ended
26 April 2015 2 dged 2014
{E600) {£000}
Bk iferest regenvabla 929 761
Other mterest recevable 58 130
Fan value odpstment to forward foreign exchonge controcts 1302
8,289 BN

1 The s valoe adiostment 16 forword forengn exthonge controcts redotes to diflerences between the fou vokse of forwasd foresgn cunency contmets nol desagnated for hedge occountig fom one: petwod end 1o the next

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING...
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11, FINANCE COSTS
52 wosks wied
26 Apd 201§ 17 Aped 2014
(£°000} (£'000)
Interest on bank loans end overdsafts 5,692 1513
Interest on other boans and fmance legses 153 400
Interest on retrament benefd obligations (note 24) 642 547
Fair value odjustment 1o forward foregn exchange contracts ™ 11,193
7487 19,853

™ The loi vave adjusiment to forward e exchange: contiocts relates 1o differences between the fon volve of forwasd foregn cuitenty tontroxts not designated for hedge occounting from one: penod end 1o the aext

12. TAXATION
52 weeks snded
26 Aprd 2015 2 houd 2014
{E°000} {£.000)
Current tax 14,072 57,569
Adjstmant in respect of paior peniods 5140 (280}
78,212 57,289
Deferred tox (note 25) {7,119) 2,550
712093 59,839
TAX RECONCILIATION
Profit before toxation 313 4456 239,452
Taxoton of the standard rate of 10x in the UK of 21% (2014 23%) 65,824 55,074
Tax efects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2178 1,445
Overses tax kosses 2,552 2,509
Othes tox odjustments {4,205) 1,01
Adiustments i respedt of por penods Cument tox 5141 {280)
Adustments m respect of pnor perods  Deferred tox 3 80

12,093 59,839
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM TOTAL AND CONTINUING OPERATIONS ATTRIBUTABLE

TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

Bastc eamings per share s cakculated by dmding the eomings attnbutable to ardinary shorehotders of the paren by the weighted average number of ardinary shores cutstanding dunng
the yeor

For diuted earnings per share, the weighted average number of shores, 592,294,371 (2014 585,513,537), s adwsted to ossume conversion of all dilutwe potentiol ordiory shares
under the Group's Share Schemes, being 24,200,000 (2014 32,676,278), to give the diluted weighted overage nuraher of shares of 616,494,371 (2014 618,189,815}

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

52 wesks snded
16 Apr 2015 26 Apri) 2015 7 e 2014 0 ded 204
Basic Dioted Bou Drbted
{£°000) {£000) {000} {8000}
Profit for the penod 240,397 240,397 180,245 180,245
Nursber i thousands Worcber w Bosonds
Weighted average number of shares 592,294 616,494 585,514 $18,1%0
Pence per share Pence pet shose
Farnings per share 406 390 308 292

UNDERLYING EARNINGS PER SHARE

The underbymg eamings per shore seflects the undeslying performance of the business compared with the pnor yeor and « colculated by diiding underying earrungs by the weighted
averoge number of shoces for the period Undedying earmings s used by management os o measure of profutability within the Group Undedying easmings 1s defined as profit for the penod
attributable to equity holders of the parent for ench finoncial penod but excuding the post tax effect of certan nontroding items

The Directors bebeve thot the undesying eamings before exceptionol nems and underlying earmings per share megsures proide addmonol usefut informaion for shareholders on the
undertying performonce of the business, and are consisient with how busmess performance s meosured mtemolly Underhying eamings is nat o recognised profit meosure under IFRS and
may not be directly compornble with “adjusted” profit measures used by other compames

5T wonks ended
26 Apet 2015 26 Apell 2015 27 Jpd 2014 7 Aped 7014
Bask Dituted Diand
1£'000) (£°000) (€000 {£000)
Profit for the penod 240,397 240,397 180 245 180,245
Post fox odpstments to profil for the penod for the foflowing nor-lroding ters.

Realised boss / {gain) on forward exchonga conteacrs 2862 2,862 {1,373) {1,373)
Forr value adsiment to forward fosexgn exchangs controcts (12472 (12,472 8,395 8,395
Profit on disposal of ksted investments {2,832) (2,832) {4,060) {4,060)
Impatienent of fixed assels 4148 4148

Profit on disposal of property (7.921) {1.921)
Imggienent ond uceleratron amostisation & depeeniotion 10,270 10,270 284 284
Undeshng profit for the penod 730304 230,304 187,639 187 639

Mumbar in thousands Hunbal in thousands
Weighted averoge number of shores 592,294 616,494 585,514 618,150
Pence pes share Peexa per share

Underlying earmings per share 389 374 321 303




14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Froshold kond  Long-term leaseisold  $hort-term: leassbiold
ard buddi . o ”

Plont and

" ip [ Totdl

{£°000} {£7000) (E'000) (£'000) {£7000)
CostT
At 28 Apnl 2013 237 488 i1,961 108,078 387,255 744 782
Exchange differences {3,634) 358 {8,884) (12,160)
Acquisitions 68,448 3 15,476 83,963
Addrions 20,608 704 6,591 39 001 67,304
Elimnated on disposals (754) (430) {2,228) {6,956) {10,368)
At 27 hpnl 2014 322,354 12,832 112,441 425892 873,521
Exchange ddferences (785) 927 2 (9.458) {9314}
Acquisitions 79 779
Addifions 23,50 12 7890 65,859 97,342
Flimgnated on disposals {21,740 (8%2) {2,861) (12,502) (37,995}
At 26 April 2015 323,402 12,87% 117 472 470,580 924,333
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
A28 Apdl 2013 {33,504) {4,814) (74,387) (300,041) {412,746}
Fxchange differences 137 {137) (186) 7,229 7063
Charge for the penod (1,561) {(150) (b,444) (42,802) {56,963}
IMPAIRMENT {5,531) (5,531)
Himinated on disposals 145 995 5277 1.017
At 27 Apnl 2014 (40,189 {5,101} (80,0023 (335,868) (463,160)
Exchange differences 488 (203) LI 9,872 10,203
Chaege for the penod (11,478} (340) {9,129) (42170 (62,924)
Efirranated on disposals 1,035 127 162 10,966 12,290
At 26 honl 2015 (50,344) {5,317} (88,973) (357,267) (501,591)
NET BOOK AMOUNT
At 26 Apal 2015 273,258 7,562 18,549 113,373 422,742
At 27 Koul 2014 282,167 7731 32,439 90,024 412,361

Additons n the year mclude £35 5m of assets undar construction n relation Jo our new Shuebiook worshouse
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Trademarks end
Goodwill liconces Brands Totd
(£7000) {£°000) {£°000) {£°000)

CosT

At 28 Apiil 2013 144,938 57,895 80,991 285,824
Ansing on business combmations 30,683 30,683
Addiions thicugh business combinatians 4,847 4,847
Other additons 827 1,827
Disposals {4,053) {1,000) {5,053)
Exchange adfustment (8,348} (1,473} (7,703) {17,526)
At 27 April 2014 165,220 62,096 713,286 300,602
Arsing on busmess combinations 3,882 3682
Other oddians 2937 1937
Dispesals 2) (1,714) {1,716}
Exchange edjustment 6,908 599 6,599 14,104
At 26 Apnl 2015 175,808 63918 79885 319,611
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT

At 28 Apnl 2013 (17,133) (78271) {45,404)
Amorhsation charge {6,832) {6,832)
Impairment (284) (284)
Dispasals 3,897 1,000 4 897
Exchange odivstment 1,849 281 2,130
A 27 Apiil 2014 {11,671} (33,822) (45,493)
Amortsation charge (12,725 {12,725
Impairment (5314) {5,314)
Disposals 1,607 1,607
Exchange odjusiment (2,269) (33) (2,320
At 26 April 2015 (19,274) (44,373) (64,247)
NET BOOK AMOUNT

M 26 Aprl 2015 156,534 18,945 79,885 255,364
A 27 Apnl 2014 153,549 28,274 73,286 255,109

Amortsahon 1s ¢harged to sellng, distubunion and administrative expenses in the consokdated income stotement

The carrying volue of goodwil and brands ¢hat ore considered to hava on indefinite ife are allocared to the Graup’s apesating segments before aggreganien With the exception of Everlast,
none of the indwidual cash-generating units (C6Ys) are considsred matenal to poodwall or sndefinite s ntongibles (Brands) The corrying value of goodwill and brands allocated to the
Group’s CGUs, {nos oggregoted except n she cose of Everlns?), s shown hetow

Goodwill Bronds

{£7000} {£°000)

LIk Sports Retanl 6,964 8,500
[ntemational Sports Retail 33,395
Premium Lfestyla 13,689
Brands (exd Evedast) 48,048

Everlast 54,438 71,385

156,534 79,885

The Group tests the carrying aount of goodwill and ossefs with an indefintte: ke aanually for mpairment or mare frequently if these ore mdicanons that therr camying value might be
impexred The camyag emounts of other infangible assets ore reviewed for mpairment of there 1s en ndicassor of impairment

fmparment s calculared by componng the corrying amounts to the value in use denved from discounted cosh flow projechons for each CBU to which the miongible nssets ore oflocoted A
(U 15 deemed 1o be on indnaduol fostio and these have been grouped together mto smilar lsses for the purpose of formulating apezating segments os reportad m note 4

Value m wse coloulohons ore based on five year monagement forecosts wath o teimingl growth rate apphed herenftes, representing management's eshimote of the long-term grawth rate of
the sector served by the (6Ls



The key assumphons, which are equally applicable to eoch CGU, i the cosh flow projechons used fo support the carmying amount of goodwill and infangibles with indefarte hves os ot 26

Apnl 2015 were os follows

B et Erwen
Sales giowth 0%%5% 0%10% W% 6% 0% 5%
Termnal sales growth 2% 0% 2% 0% 2% 0%
Gross margin 3% 45% 35% 50% 15% 50% 0% 30%
Capral expenditure Nd §Im il $3m Nl 52m Wl £1m
Discount otes 11 88% 11 88% 11 88% 1733%

The Group Weighted Average Cost of Capital is used i UK Sposts Retaul, Intemaional Sports Retaif, Premium Lifestyle and Bronds (exd Everlast) os these (GU's ore considered to have

simlar nisk profiles

Tha key assumpttons are bosed an management’s hsstoricol expenence and future plans for each CGU

A regsonably possible change m any key cssumpton would not cause the caerying volue of any (GU to exceed its recoverable amount

The intangble ssefs that bave an indefinite Ife are brands and roding names and are considered 1o have an mdafinite ke on the grounds of the proven longewty of the bronds and

rradmg nomes and the Group's commstment to mamtaining those brands

Al key ossumphions are consistent with known extemal sources of nformation

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

The Group uses the equity method of accounting for assocites and gt ventures The followsag table shows the aggregate moverent in the Group's mvestment in ossocates and

jomt venfures
Assedates (£°000)
A1 28 Apnf 2013 kYALY
Exchangs differences (620}
Addions 8,000
Share of profit 2,266
A1 27 hprd 2004 41,763
Exthange differences (4,593)
Additions 93
Disposals {751)
Dridends paid {1,338)
Share of profit 2959
At 26 Aprl 2015 38,133
None of the Group's assouiates are considered to be mdwduclly matenal to the Group
The Group’s share of associates’ ossets, latibties and income statement, which 15 included m the consolidoted Financiol Statements, s os follows
26 Agril 2015 27 hpal 2014
{£°000) (£°000)
Share of non-current ossets 44,767 51,702
Share of curient gssels 27,210 74,459
Shatz of non-current habilities {13,796 (18259)
Share of cusrent labilihes {20,108} {16,139)
38,133 41,763
52 wesks ended
26 April 2015 7 kel 201
(E'000} {£ 000)
Income 104,279 95751
Expenses (101,509 {52,975
Profit betore axation 2,110 2,776
Taxation 189 (510}
Profit fot the period 2,959 2,266

15
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17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

16 ek 1015 T ek W14
(£7000) (£°000}
Avallablefor sle finonaol ossets 140795 116,504

The toir vahue of the avarlable-forsale investments 1s hased on bid quated market prces ar the bolance sheet gate or where morket pnces are not avadlable, ot management's stmate of

forr value

The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Group’s fincrcial ossefs during the yeor

26 Apell 2015 2 ke 014

{£7000) {5000}

Al begmoung of period 115,504 47,645
Additions 50,415 55,467
Drsposals (48017 (43,98Y)
Revohsation through other comprehensive income 21,893 57,373
At end of penod 140,795 116,504

The disposol above relates to financia! assets that weve acquired in the yeor and thesefore there 15 na reclassificahion adiustment between equity and the income statement on disposal

The financiat ossets ot 26 Apn! 2015 relaie to strotegic mvestments held of between 4 8% and 11 1% of shore copiral
At 27 Apnl 2014 ond 26 Aprd 2015 the Group hod no mvestments m excess of 20% of share capital

18. INVENTORIES
16 Apell 2015 2 kel 2014
(£000) (£7000)
Row matenols 4 147
Goods for resale 517,050 565,332
517,054 565,479
The following ventory costs have been recogrised n cost of safes
26 April 7015 W A 2014
(£°000) (£ 000}
{ost of inventores recognised as an expense 1,591,748 1,551,036
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
26 Aprll 2015 2 herd 2014
{£°000) {2000}
Trode recengbles 65,335 60,851
Arnounts owed by related porties 13,094 7 450
Other debtors 80516 19,040
Prepoyments 31,781 35,653
190,726 123014

The Directors consides thot the corrying ameunt of trade and other recevables approximotes to therr fair velue The moximum exposure fo credit nsk af the reporfing date is the corrying

value of each class of asset above, phus any ¢osh balonces

Other debtors includes unremitted soles receipts and collateral n respect of dervative imstruments

Ageing of trode recenvobles

26 Aprll 2015 7 hod 2014

{£7000} (£ 008}

Cutient 58,364 34,667
(-30 days past due 744 18,467
3060 days past due 1,516 3,13
60-90 days past due 2,520 1,194
Over 90 doys past due 2)91 280
65,335 60,851

The credit quolety of assets neither past due nor mmpaired s considered to be good



The movement 1n the bod debt provsion con be onalysed s follows

57 woaks snded
26 hprl 205 27 dpul 2084
{£000) {£000)
{Opening position 8,336 6,674
Amounts chrrged fo the mcome siatement 1,238 2,343
Amounts wrtten off as uncollectable (2331 (649)
Amaunts recovered dunng the year (in (32)
(losg posihon 7,232 8,336

The Group has no significant concentration of credit sk, with exposure spread over a large rumber of ustomers These bod debt provisions / charges have been determuned by reference
to past default expenence ond knowledge of the ndmduol crcumstances of certain recervables

The other ctasses within trode ond other recevables do not nclude imparred assets

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING .
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26 Aprtl 2015 27 trd W14
{£°000) (£.000)
Cash in bonk ond i hond  Sterfing 1,026 113,327
Cash n bonk and n hand  US Dobhors £9.194 15,874
Cash m bank and m hand  Euros 23,31 21,443
Ceshin bank and i hand Other 4,787 380
78,318 151,024
Bank overdrati (note 23} {813) {5,742}
Cash ond cash equwalents inchuding averdrafis of pened end 77,505 145 262

21. SHARE CAPITAL
26 April 2015 7 tgel 2014
{£°000) {5000}

AUTHORISED
999 500,010 oxdinory shares of 10p each 99,950 99,950
499,990 redeemable preference shores of 10p each 50 50
100,000 100,000
ALLOTTED, CALLED UP AND FULLY PAID
640,602,369 (2014 640,602,369) ordmory shores of 10p each 64,060 64,060
SHARE CAPITAL

At 27 Apel 2014 ond 26 Apal 2015 64,060 64,050

The Group holds 42,137,508 shares in Treasury

CONTINGENT SHARE AWARDS

THE EXECUTIVE SHARE SCHEME

UUnder the terms of the Execuive Shave Scheme, which was opproved by Sharholders an 0 Seprember 2010 and & o Revenue approved scheme, the Board moy make share awards
In tespect of the ardinary shores 1n the Compony Awords moy be made fo Executives and Parsons Discharging Menagenol Responsibelinies aver o fixed number of shares subgect 1o
performance condibars Further detaifs are set aut wa the Remunesafion Report on poges 44 1o 52

An award of 8,073,034 shores was granted on 10 September 2010 ot o share price of 125 5 pance, 4,000,000 of these shares have since vested ond 1,000,000 have since lopsed
These shares will only vest f ol condifions ore mer No comsiderahion ts peyoble in respect of these awards

SHARE SCHEMES
The 2011 Share Scheme was approved by the Baard 60 10 September 2010 The first aword of 30,000,000 shores were granted on 10 September 2010 o: an average price of 200 0
perke per share. At 26 Apel 2015 21,200,000 (27 Aprd 2014 22,672,000 remoined eutstanding These shetes wil anly vest f all condinons are me

A shore-based poyment charge of £10,110,000 was recognsed m respect of these share awards for the 52 weeks ended 26 Apal 2015, based on the Duectors” best estimate of the
number of shores thos wall vest The chorge s celculoted bosed on the foun volue on the grant date, which 1s deemed to be the date on whch the enfity and counterpusty reached @ shared
understanding of the scheme

On 2 fuly 2014, o sesokstion was possed to mplement the 2015 Share Scheme No grants have been made under this scheme fo date

7
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22. OTHER RESERVES
Petmanesi Capitd Reverse
Share Share contribution to redeciption combingtion Hedging Totd ether
copital preniom copltd raserve resuve reserve reserves
(£000) £'000) {£000) {£000) {£7000) (£°000} (£"000)
M 28 Aprl 2013 64,060 874,300 50 B 005 (987,312) 16,021 (24,876)
Cash flow hedges
tecoguised 1 the period {3,737} (3730
techossiied and reporied i nef prohit (17,909} (17,909
At 27 Apnl 2004 64,040 874,300 50 8,005 (987 312) (5,625) (46,520
Cosh flow hedges
recognised in the penod 7718 718
reclgssified ond reposted in net profit 7,240 1.0
Al 26 Aprl 2005 64,060 974,300 50 8,005 (387,312 78,796 37,899

The shore premwm account is used fo record the excess proceeds over nominat value on the tssue of shares
The permanent cantrbution to capitol relotes % o cash poyment of £50,000 ta the Company on 8 February 2007 under a deed of copital contnbution
The capital redemphon resesve orose on the redemphon of the Company's redeemable preference shares of 10p each ot par on 2 March 2007

The reverse comiinghion reserve exists os o result of the odopticn of the panciples of reverse acquisition accounting in accounhing for the Group restructunng which accurred on 2 March
2007 and 29 Murch 2007 between the Compary and Sports Word inrerrational Limited, Brands Holdmgs Limited, interanional Brand Management Limited and (DS Holdings SA wit
Sports World Inremahanal Limited as the acquirer

The hedging reserve represents the cumulatve omount of gans and losses on Fedging wstruments deemed effective 1n cosh flow hedges The cumulatve defened gam o loss on the
hedging mstrument 1s recognised in the mceme stotement anly when the hedged tronsochion wnpacts the mcome statement

OTHER BALANCE SHEET RESERVES
The foreign currency translation reserve 15 used to record exchange differences arsing from the transtahion of the finoncial Statements of foretgr: subsidianes and associotes

Tha own shares and freasury shares reserve repsesent the cost of shares in Sports Direct Intemational plc purchased in the market and held by Sports Direct Internofional plc Employee
Benshit Trust to sorsfy options under the Group’s shore ophons scheme, see note 21

23. BORROWINGS
26 Aprll 2015 27 hprd 014
{£'000) (£000)
NON-CURRENT
Bank ond other loons 135,849 6,764
134,849 6,764
CURRENT
Boak overdrafts 813 5742
Beak ond other loans 391 350,484
1,204 356,226
TOTAL BORROWINGS.
Bank overdrafis 813 5,742
Bank ond other logns 137 240 357,248
138,053 362,990
An analysis of the Group’s totel horrawings other than bank overdrafis s os foflows
6 Apri 2015 7 A 2014
{£000) (000}
Bormowings — Sterling 95,808 240731
Bormowings — Cther 4) 432 116,517
137,240 357 248

Loans are alf ot rofes of mnserest ranging herween 1 15% and 2 0% over the nterbank rate of the country within which the barrowing entisy resdes

On 28 May 2014 the Compeny entered mto & new committed unsecured revohang foclity ogreement with 13 financial mstutions, with Barcleys Bank ple acting as Agent This revolang
faality can be drown to an aggregate hmit of £738 miflion and 15 avallable unnl 27 Segtember 2018



The Group also hos o £250m working capral faakty with Mike Ashley which can be drown down on request The focility wos agreed of marke# ferms ot 1ts incephon ond ts nok secured
agoinst any fixed essers Ar year end no bolence wos due

The Group continues to operate comfurtobly within ds banking focfihes and covenants
The camying amaunts and fair value of the borrowings are aor matenally ddferent
Net debt ot 26 Apnl 2015 was £5% 7m (27 Agnl 2014 £712 Om}

24. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Tha Group’s defined benefit pension obhganons relate to Dunlop Slazenger Group Holdings Limited (“DSGHL™), which wes acquired on 28 Jonuary 2004 DSGHL operates o number of
plans worldwade, the largest of which s of the funded defined henefit type The Scheme hos been closed 1o new members since 2005

The ameunts for the cument ond previous four penods folfowsng the ocqushon of DSGHL ore os follows

b Aprll 1035 17 o 2014

{E"000) (57000}

Totol forr value of plon assexs 59939 4% 498
Prasent vakve of plan biobelittes (74,808) {64,848)
Net plan obligotions (14,869) {15,350)
Expeniance odpstments on plan Bobiities 1.226 (46)
Expenence adpstments on plan mssels (9.719) 3,306

The cumulative amount of ectuennl goins and lesses recognised n other comprehensive meome os ar 26 Apil 2015 wos on ocruanal loss of £12,688,000 (2014 actuanal foss of
£10,195,000)

There wese no unrecogrised actuonal goins or losses or post service costs a5 of 27 April 2014 or 26 Apnl 2015

Amounts recognssed in the income statement ore as follows

52 woeks mded
26 Aprll 2015 Wk M
{£000) (5000}
Current service cost 2 22
Nt inlerest expense 332 547
353 569
The currens serwice cost s mdudeg within cost of sales The net intesest expense s included within finence costs
Amounts recognised | other comprehensive mcome s as follows
57 woeks snded
26 Apell 2015 7 el 2014
(€000} (57000
Actual eturn on scheme assets excluding omounts inchidad in net intarast income 7,226 (46}
Actvanol (osses) /goms relatng to plan fiabdlites 9,719) 3,906
{2,493) 3,860
The octual refum on plan ossets for the 52 weeks ended 26 Agridl 2015 wos o gora of £9,377,000 (2014 gam of £1,855,000)
The movernents m the fair vaiue of plon assefs are os follows
52 woeks ended
26 Agrfl 2015 27 bl 2014
{£7000) {5 000)
At the start of the pemod 49498 4741
Interest ncome based on discount rate 2,151 1,901
Actuonot gom/ {loss) 1218 {46)
Employer contnbutions 218 2,708
Employee contnbutions 12 |74
Benefits pad out (1,666) {2,488)
Al the end of the penod 59939 49 498

The Group expects to contrbute 2,720,000 to ts defined benefit pension plans fos the 52 weeks ended 24 Apnl 2016
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The plon asset mix wos os follows

26 Agrd 2015 W R 214
(£000) (£000)
Equities 27 867 22,807
Bonds 31,503 26,313
Cosh and othes 569 378
59,939 49 498

“ The four volues of the above mvestments are determined bosed an publicly ovadable morket prces wherever ovaroble Unquoted wvestmens ore stoted af foir volue eshmates provided by
§ the monager of the investment of fund
S The prncipal assumphons underying the octuanal assessments ore
26 Aprd 2015 27 hped 0}
= (%) ®
g Inflation rote 32 34
Future pension ncreoses 31 33
a Discoun rate 33 43
g
& Mortolity ossumptions
- 26 Apel 2015 2 hrd 014
E Life expectancy ot 85 of penod end
Future pensioners — male 878 877
Future pensioners — female 303 902
Cuvient pensionets — mole 861 860
Current penswoness — female BB 4 BB 3
Sensitvity Analysis
80 n & donn
Liabifity af 26 Apal 2015 149
Sensivity of 0 5% increose fo
Discoutst rate 58 (38 9)
Rotall price inflation and salary neranses 38 255
Increase in long-term mortolity rate of improvement to 1 5% pa (from 1 25%) (ih (14)
The movements in the present volue of the slan liabiities are os follows
26 Apetl 2015 7 b 2004
1£7000} (£°000
A the start of the period (64,848) (67,351)
Cusrent service cost {21} {22)
Interest cost (2,483} (2,429)
Actuarial {loss) / gain {9,719} 3,906
Employee contnbutions (12} {12)
Benefits poid ot 1,666 2488
Exchange gon 409 806
Aequistions {nots 29) (2,234)
At the end of the penod 74 808 {64 848)
The net movernents i the net present value of the plon hiobilities were as foltows
52 woeks onded
26 Aprll 2015 27 kel 2014
(£7000) (£'000)
Nt iobility af the start of the penod (15,350 {19.940)
Movement in foir value of plon assers 10,441 2,087
Movements in the present volue of the plan habdities (9,960) 2,503
Net bability ot the gnd of the penod {14,86%) {15,350)

In eddition to the amounts recogrused n relonon to the defined benefit retirement plans, amounts of £1,207,000 and £1,363,000 hove been recogrised n the meome statement for the
penods ended 27 Apnl 2014 and 26 Apal 2015 in refation fo defined contnbution retirement benefit plans




The weighted overage years duranon of the defined benefit abligation ot 26 Apn! 2015 5 28 3 yeors (2014 29 3 yeors}

25. DEFERRED TAX ASSET AND LIABILITIES

Accounts deprocdiation Tax ksses Pessionples ~ Other lemporary
=@ tax recoverchie licbities differonces Totd
deprediation (£7000) {£000) {£°000} {£r000) {£000)
At 28 Apnl 2033 2,400 (461) 5,60 14,434 22,9714
Credited / {chorged) to the meome statement 2,142 {24) (275) (4,393) (2.550)
Ctedted to the statement of other comprehensive income (698} {4,170} {4,868}
{redited to reserves i respect of Share Scheme {11,214) {11,214}
Ansimg on pcquision 2,742 27142
A1 27 Apal 2014 4547 2,251 5628 (5,343 7,084
(redted / (charged) o the mcome stoternent 5,230 4749 (3,178) 318 7,119
(redted / {charged) fo the siatement of other comprehenswe income 524 (17,728 (17,204}
Credited fo reserves in respect of Shore Scheme 1,266 1,266
At 26 April 2015 9,772 7,006 2574 {21,488) {1,736}
26 Apell 2015 27 il 2014
(E°000) {57000}
Deferred tox asssts 38,352 31,130
Deferred fox labifihes (40,088) 124,046)
Net deferred tax balonce (1,736} 7,084
The tux rate used to measure the deferred tox ossets and lwbilines was 20% on the bosis this ws the tox rate that was substantively enacted ot the balonce sheet date
Defened tox ossets are recognised for fox losses reoverable and pension plan kabilties to the extent thot realsation of the reloted tax benefit 15 probuble on the basis of the Group's
current expectahons of future texable profits
Included within ether temporary differences s o deferred tax asset i refohion to the Share Scheme and a defersed tox lobility recognised on other intangible assets upon acqussition
The deferred tax effects of the acquisitans made in the yeor were considered ond it was derermined that there wos no matenal impact on the Group or the farr volue of net essets
acqurred
26. PROVISIONS
Onerous contrarts
ond other
Dilapidetions proparty costs Total
(€000 (£'000} (E'000}
At 27 Apul 2014 33,843 3,937 37,780
Amounts pravided 6,29] 4,349 10,640
Armounts uhlised (624) (3,149) {3,773
Amvunts reversed {2,330) 4612 (6,942
At 26 Apiil 2015 37,180 525 37,705

The dilap:dations prowsion 1s the best esmote of the present value of expenditure expacted to be ncurred by the Group i order to satisfy its obligotions to restore its teasehald premses
o e condinon required under the lense agreements as the end of the lease discounted at 5% par annum The pravisian 15 exgected to be unlised over the penod to the end of each
specific lease

The provision in sespect of onerous lense contracts represents the net cost of fuffilkng the Group's obligations over the terms of these contiac's discounted ot 5% per ennurn The prowsion
s expecied to be uhlsed over the penod 1o the end of each speafic lease

The unwanding of the discount on provisian over fime passes through the income stotement
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(o) FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying values of financiok assets ond labilines, which are pnopolly denominated m Stering or US Dollars, wese os follows

Assets af faiv
Loans and volvs throogh  Avclloble [or sde
recaivables paofit ad foss fnandd essets  Now-finanddl assehs Totd
(£000) (E°000) {£000) {£7000) (£7000)
ASSETS - 2015
Property, plant and equipment 422,742 422,742
Intangible ossets 255,364 255,364
Investments in ssociated undedakings 38,133 36,133
Avolable-forsale finonciol assets 140,795 140,795
Defered tox assets 38,352 38,352
Imventonies 517 054 517,054
Dervotwe finanaiol ossets 92,199 92,199
Trode and other recenables 65,335 125,391 190,726
Cash ond cosh equivalents 78318 78,318
143,653 92,199 140,795 1,397 036 1,773,683
ASSETS - 2014
Property, plant and equipment 417,36} 412 361
Intongsble assefs 255,109 155,109
Investments n ossocated undertokings 41,763 41,763
Avanloble-forsate financial ossets 116,504 116,504
Deferred tox ossets 31,130 31,130
Inventones 565477 565,479
Dervotive fincncial assefs 4355 4,355
Yiade ond other recevables §0.851 62,1463 123,014
{ash ond cosh equwvalents 151,024 151,024
214,875 4,355 114,504 1,368,005 1,700,739
Uiohilitins at fair
valve through profit Non-facncial
Loanis and poyables and loss libilities Tatal
{E'000) (£7000) (E7000} (£7000)
LIABILITIES - 2015
Non-cument boriowings 136,849 136,849
Retrament benefit ohligofions 14,869 14,869
Deferred fox labifities 40,088 40,088
Provisions 37,705 37,705
Dervatve financtal liabifities 5629 5,629
frade ard other poyobles 170,090 170,846 340,936
{urrent bortowings 1,204 1,204
Current tax labilhas 34,852 34,852
308,143 5629 298,350 612,132
LIABILITIES - 2014
Nom-cusrent borrowings 6,764 6,764
Retwrement benelit obligations 15,350 15,350
Delerred tax kabilitres 24,046 24 046
Provisions 37,780 37,780
Demvetwve finoncial habiites 18,665 18,665
Trode ond other payables 739,463 152,556 392019
Cument borowiags 356,226 356,226
Current tax labiies 32,335 32,335
607,453 18,665 262,067 583,185

Carrying votues do nor marenafly differ from for value




FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
The Group uses the followng hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair velue of fingnuel mstruments by voluation technigue

 level 1 quoted {unadiusted) prices m nctve markets for wenticol assets or hobilines,
# level 2 other techmigues for which all impurs which hove o significant effect on the recorded foir value ore observable, either directly or mdiretly, and
 Loval 3 techmgues which use npurs which have o signihicont effect on the regorded fair value that are not based on observable market data

As o 26 Apnl 2015, the only financral mstruments keld ot foir volue ware Demvative financial ossers and iabrlies, which are classified os Leve! 2, ond Avarlobleforsale bmoncal essets,
which ase classified os Level 1 except for Hightand Group Hotdings, whech is dlassihied o Level 3 Highland Group Holdings s held at management’s estimate of the fow value of the
enierpnse bosed on publcly ovarlable data A 1% wncreose in profitaility for the company woufd result in ¢ £0 3m incrense in value

The volushon of Denvative finoncial assets and hobilines 15 performed vsing an opton valuahon mode!, based on the marker data overlable of e bolance sheet date, depending on
whether the istrument s ¢ foreign exchonge or an equify denvative

The Group has entered mto a number of put ophons referencing lsted comparry shares To the extent thet the market pnce of these shares s less than on agreed pnce on expay of the
put ephion, the Group hos the night to elect whether tu settle the put aphon by acquing ordinary shares or, by poying the cosh setsfement value of the put ophion Sports Direct s reqenred
10 fransfer cash coliateral fo cover its obligatiens under the Pur Ophon  The amount of collaterl requred dunng the Iie of the Put Option can incrense or decrease by reference fo the
undedying market prce of the shares

{b) DERIVATIVES: FOREIGN CURRENCY FORWARD PURCHASE CONTRACTS

The most significont exposure fo foreign exchange fluctuahans relates to porchases mode i fareign curencies, prnaipally the US Bollar The Group’s policy 1 to seduce substortiolly the
nisk gssociated with foreign ewrrency spot rates by using forward fixed rate curvency purchase contracts, toking it account ony foreign curency cosh flows The Group does ot hold of
issue dervatve financial instruments for frading puspases, however if derwatives do aot qualify for hedge accounting they are accounted for o5 such and occordingly ony goin or loss i
eecognised immediately i the income stotement

The casrying values of forword forergn currency puichase contracts were gs follows

26 pell 2015 27 Ao 2014

(£000} (5000}

Forr volve of dervative financal mstruments  assets 92,199 4,355
Far value of dervatve financak mstruments — (fiobifties) {5,629) (18,665

The sterhng principal amaunts of forwnrd foreige currency purchose contracts and controcted forward rafes were os follows

26 ApHil 2015 27 hond 2014

{£:000) (£/000)

US Dallor purchases 418,561 540,349
Controcted rofes 15-17 161171

A1 26 Apnl 2015 $419m of Jorward US Doflar contracts qualfied for hedge accounting and the goin on fair voluahion of these confracts of £84m has therefore been recognised i other
comprehensive mcome  This amount 1s split between a profit of £77m recogrised in the period ond o profit of £7m reclossified m the pesicd

Forward foreign currency purchose and sale contracrs gensrolly hove a marunty ot incephon of epproximgtely 12 manths At 26 Apnl 2015 £419m of purchase contracs had @ maturty
at incephion of grenter thon 12 months (2014 £245m of purchose contracs)

() SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

FOREIGN CURRENCY SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The Group’s pancipal foreign currency expasures are o US Dollors gnd the Fura The toble below ilustrates the hypothencal sensitvity of the Group’s reposted profit ead equity to o

5% nerease and decrease o the US Dollas / Sterhing and Eura / Sterling exchonge rates af the year end date, ossuming oll other vanables remain unchenged The figures have been
caleedoted by componag the fair volues of outstonding foreign curreney contracts of the current exchange rate to thase if exchange rates moved as ilustrated The income statement figures
include the profit effect of oy relevont denvetives which are not in o designated cosh flow hedge The wnpact on US Dollor relared hedging instruments is mcluded m equity

Posttwe figures represeat an nciease / {decrease) m peofit of equity

Incorae stetentent Fouity
16 Ak 2015 27 Aprd 20M 26 Apadl 2015 27 hped 2014

(£°000) {£°000) [£°000) (€ 000}
Steding strengthens by 5%
US Doflos (114} 812 (99 {5,205)
furo (1,650} 2,218 {1,650) 2218
Stesfing wenkens by 5%
US Dolor 813 {852) }04) 5,485

Furo 1,732 (2,329) 1,732 (2,329)
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INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
The following rable flustrares she fyporhetical sensitaty of the Group’s reported prafit and equity to o O 5% increase or decrease in mrerest rofes, ossuming all other vanables
were unchonged

The analysis hos been prepared using the following essumphons

= For floatmg rute essets and fiobilives, the omount of asset or habilty outstending of the blance sheet date 15 assumed ro hove been outstanding for the whale year
o Fived rate fingnciol insteuments that ore carmed ot amortised cost ore not subject fo inferest mte nsk for the pupose of this analysss

Positive figures represent on increase in profit or equity

Income statement Eqity
26 Aprll 2015 2 ket 014 26 Aprd 2015 27 byl 2014
(£°000} (5000} {£°000) (5006}
Interest rafe increase of 0 5% (690) (1,690) {690) (1,690)
Interest rate decrense of 0 5% 690 1,690 £90 1,690
(d) LIQUIDITY RISK
The table below shows the matunty analysis of e undiscounted remaiming contractual cosh flows of the Group’s financial bobilines
Less thea 1 yeor 1to 2 yours 215 yours Over § years Totd
(€000) (€000} 1£°000) {£°000) (£°000)
2015
Bank loens and ovetdrafts 1,204 135,277 5677 142,158
Trode and other payables 170,090 170,090
Desrvatrve financiod fiabilities
Cash mflows {513,393} (118.040) {631,433
Cash outflows 439416 105,447 544 863
97,317 122,684 5,677 225,678
2014
Bank loans and overdiofts 355,226 1731 5,237 363,193
Trodz ond other payables 739,463 739,463
Dervative firencol hobikies
Cosh inflows (401,718) (105,177 (506,395)
Cosh outflows 414,776 105,263 520,033
408,747 1,817 5237 515,800
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The capitol structure of the Group conssts of equity ottmbutable to tha equity holders of the pareat, compramisiag ssued share capital, share premium and retemed epmings end cosh
ond barrowings

it i the Group’s policy to mamtain a stong capital %ose 5o as to maintain investor, credstor and market confidence and to sustain the development of the business

In respect of equity, the Board hos decded that, n order fo maximise Hexibility in the reas term with regards to a number of inargantc growth agportunitees under review, not fo refurn any
cosh by way of o dwidend of this ime

The Board s committed 1o keeping this policy under rewiew and to fogking to evaluote oltemotive methods of returning cosh to shareholders when appropaate

The objective of the Share Scheme 5 to encourage employee shate ownership erd f0 hak employee’s remuneration to the performance of the Company Itis not designed as a meens of
manoging capital

In respect of cosh and borrowings the Boord regutorty monttors the roto of net debt to underlying EBITDA, the working copito! reguirements ond forecasted cash flows however no
MmUY 6 faxmure fehos ore set The rgtio for net debt to reporied underlying EBITDA, excluding <horges for the Share Schemes, 5 0 16 (2014 0 64) The objective 15 to kegp this
frgure below Z 5

Bosed on this analysss, the Board defermines the oppropreate seturn to equity holders whilst ensunng sufficient capttak s retamed wittin the Group 1o meet ds sirategic objechves, including
but not kmited to, ocqussition appertumnes

These copital manogement palictes have serained unchonged érom the prior yeor




28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

6 Agell 2015 17 e 7014
{£000} (5000
Trods payables 170,030 239,463
Armounts owed to seloted underiokings 191 72
Othes fexes mchuding sooal securrly costs 31,365 22,230
Other paynbles 1 479 10,263 <
Ao 171,811 120,041 g
340,936 392,019 ;_,
The {irectors consider that the camying amount of trade and other payables opproximates o their four value z
=
E
29. CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES =
57 weeks ended
26 Aprll 2015 2 hd 014
{£000) woon) 3
Prf before foxahon 313,446 29452 B
Nel finance costs (802) 18,962 -
Other ivestmen! ncorne: {14,104} (71.007) E
Share of prodits of assocated undertokings (2,959) (2,266) g
Opertting orofit 295,581 249,131
Deprechon™ 62,924 56,963
Amortisation™ 12,725 6,832
Impament 5,314 5815
Profit on disposal of minngibles 107
Defined benefit pension plan cument service cost i 22
Defind benefit pension plan employer tontibutions {2,718} (2,708} 8%
Share-based payments 10,105 11,927
Operoting cosh inflow beiore changes i working capstel 384,059 321 982
Intrese  recenvables (66,348) (18,741}
Detrease/(increase) i mvantasies 49,320 (52,521)
Deciease m payables (52,349) (34,43%)
Cosh inflows liom opesaling octonties 314,667 222,785
*£13,300,000 of depreciohion and emormsation is included wirun Exceptional trems
30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
As 01 26 Apnl 2015 the Group had outstanding commitments for fubure miimum tegse poyments under sor-concellable operating leases, which falf due as follows
26 Aprtf 2015 27 hoed 2014
{€°000) 157000)
LAND ARD BUILDINGS
Within one yeor 121,749 99,041
In the setond to fith years inchiswe 397,054 329,163
Alter five years 330,118 242,297
848,911 470,501

The leases have varying terms, escalotion douses ond renewal nghis There are 1o clouses in refahian fo restmehions concerming diidends, oddional debt and further leasing within our
porfofio Confingent rets are payubie on ceriam store leases bosed on store revenue For those leoses that oee umover<eloted leases, the onnual net lease commument s colculoted
eswng the estmated lease labifity and any changes in the rentul charge are accounted for when known Amounts of £1,598,000 (2014 £2,213,762) were charged to the income

stofement in relotion to contingent rent

The Group sutlets certoin stand-alone refar stores whech are no longer apersred by the Group The propesty rental income eamed during the 52 weeks ended 26 Apnd 2015 wos

4,832,000 (2014 £6,118,000)
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As ot 26 Apel 2015, the Group hod contracts with sub-tenants for the followang future minimum lease rentals

16 April 2015 21 hoed 2014
{(£'000) (5000}

LAND AND BUILDINGS
Within one year M9 5,800
In the second ta ffth yaors inchiswe 10,847 17,812
After fve years 10,136 22,388
4,23 46,000

31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group hod caprfol commutments of £26,899,000 os a1 26 Aprl 2015 {2014 ENiB) in relation o the construchion of our Shiebrook worehouse

32. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

There were no matenol contingent ossefs of labiines o the balonce sheer date

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Groug has teken odvantage of the exemphions contained within 1AS 24 *Reloted Party Disclosures™ from the requrement to dsclose transachons between Group compomes os these
have been ehmingted on consohidahon

The Group entered mto the following matenal tramsactions with reloted porhes

52 weeks ended 26 Apnl 2015

Tads ond othes

Sal, Puschasas vecoachies  Trads ond othes payotles
Rebstoby {7000 (£000 (£°000) (£7000)
RELATED PARTY
Hastons Assaciote 29472 4926
The Flanrek Group Limuted Subswduary 18,814 19,825 4,865 1,246
Biosher Lexsuie Limited Assoonte 12,482 5,057
MST Sports Subsidiory 39 7699
Rengers Retod Limited Subsidiary 3834 441
Robinsons Country Lewsure Limited Sebstdiary 23 482 3,251
Sondico Professwnol Limsted Subsidiary 70 1,061 2,691
Newtostle Unrted Football Chsb Connected persons 2412 205
Yeomans Outdoors Limited Subsidiary 38 3,027
Heaven or Hell Limited Subsidiory 2152 2,581
Queensdown Assovntes Limited Assaciote 981 1,149

52 weeks ended 27 Apnl 2014

Trode and other Trade and other
Relationshly Sohes (E000)  Porchoses {£°000) Recoivables (£°000)  peyables (£7000)

RELATED PARTY

Heatons Associote 28,759 52h
The Flannels Group Limied Subsidiory 15,401 13,414 9898
Brosher Leisure Lirmted Associots 11,508 209 2,119
MS1 Sports Subsifiary 270 2,768
Rangers Refall Lirmted Subsidiary 3,843 234
Robimsens Country Leisure bimited Subsidiary 83 61 1,816
Sondico Professional bimited Subsihary 54 678 1,370 109
Newsastle United Football Chib Connected persons 3,395 337
Yeomans Outdoors limied Subsudiory 30 2,884
Heover or Helf Limited Subsuliory 2,850 641 2,587
Queensdown Assoriotes Limited Associote 823 348

On &th Octaber 2014, the Group mode o drowdown of £40 milhon on the £250 million loan faclity thet & held with Mike Ashley through fis wholly owned entity Mash Holdings Lisited
This was fully repmd on 20th October 2014



The Group mede furthes drowdowns of £50 millon and €80 millan on 31st Ociober ond 26th November 2014 respectively and made repoyments of £90 million on 7th Apni 2015 and

€40 millon on 22nd Apnl 2015 At the yeor end date ae dolonce was due

The Group hos agreements with Rangers Retail Limited and Newcastle United Footbolt Club, omongst other foathall clubs, whereby the Group prowdes proquremens ond warehousing
servces on behalf of the cub All sales ae receved directly by the clubis and soles disclosed ahove relate solely ta geods bought from the Group at cost plus o small handing fee

Al rlated porty transachons were undertoken on on arms length bosis

26 April 2015 77 hpnl 2014
(£000) (000}

KEY MANAGEMENT, EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION
Sakines ond short term benefits 1,382 1,435
Share-hased payments 988 2,003
Total 2310 3438

34. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The Group s controlted by Mike Ashley through fus 100% shorehaldng 1n MASH Beta Limited and MASH Holgmgs Limited, which own 303,507,460 (50 71% of the wsued odinary
share capital of the Company} and 26,492,540 (4 43% of the 1ssued ardmary share caputaf of the Company) ordinary shares respectively

35. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

There were no matenol post bolance sheet events after 26 Aprl 2015 up fa the dute of signing of these accounts

36. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
The subsidiaey undertnkings of the Company at 24 Apal 2015 were os follows

COUNIRY OF COMPANY PERCENTAGE OF ISSUED

NAME INCORPORATION NUMBER SHARE CAPITAL HELD
3237303 Canoda fnc {anodo 3237303 100
Acte 653 tiruted Englond & Wales 4579745 100
Acivatos Brands Lirmuted England & Wales 5344658 100
Actvator Products Limired England & Wales 4204611 100
Acive Apparel New Corp Untted States 3270168 100
Amencan Fitness Products Inc United States 366835 100
Antigua Enterprses Inc United States 26660 100
AP Brands Holdings Ltd Malaysio 49214 100
Beauty Brond Management imied England & Woles 5258421 100
Bellatrix Assouates Limred Isle of Man 111671€ 100
Bellatrix Holdings Unfimsted Isle of Mon 111670¢ 100
Brands & Fashion NV Belgom 0477995412 100
Brands 001 Limited England & Wales 5347540 100
Brands Afnco Limited England & Wales 6836765 100
Brands Holdings Limuted England & Wales 4087435 106
Brands Inc Lrnided Englond & Wales 3585719 160
Cofico Comercio de Artigos de Desporfos 5 A Portugal 503751804 50
Campn Limited England & Wales 5398677 100
Cotlion Shuttlecocks Limited Englond & Wales 480582 100
Carlton Sports Compty timied England & Wales 467686 100
{DSIPSA Belgum 405461077 160
Cfimber & Rombler bimied England & Woles 3936618 100
(e Clothing Limeted Scotlond 5(382991 100
Dovd Geoffrey & Assocwtes (UK} Urmred Englend & Wales 670530 100
Duest Fshing Limited England & Wales 8203469 100
Donay Intesaotionel N V Belgum 435392220 100
0861 Sponsorship Limited England & Wales 9395458 100
[kmlop Austrofa Lmited Englond & Woales yNT409 100
Bunlop Brands Limeted Englond & Woles 5794296 100
Duntop Footwenr Lirnated England & Wales 571672 100
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Dunfop International Limited Englond & Wales 4825179 100
Dunfop Licensing Limied Englond & Wales 6836773 100
Tuntop Shazenger (ESOP) Limited Englond & Wales 3400468 160
Duntop Slazenges (For East) Sdn Bhd Moloysio 2070371 100
Duntop Slazenger (HK) Limited Hong Kong 65306 100
Dunfop Sluzenger {Philippmes) Inc Phillippines SEC1 60084 100
Dunlop Slazenger 1902 Limied England & Wales 4983558 100
Dunfop Skazenges Group Holdings Limated Englond & Wales 4061715 100
Duntop Skazenger Group timited Englond & Woles 3097977 100
Dunfop Slazenger Holdmgs Inc United States 2596048 100
Dunlop Slazenger Holdings Linited Englond & Woles 3139917 100
Dunlop Sozenger Infesnotonal bimied Englond & Woles 775384 100
funlop Slezenger Intemotional SA Fionce 3921279300034 100
Dundop Slozenger Limited Englond & Woles 2030941 100
Dunlop Slazenger Limited Heng Kong 2002 100
Dunlop Slazenger Sporis (Singapore) PTE Lirnited Singapore 198203076M 100
Dunlop Slazenger Frust Company Limsed Englond & Woles 3151573 100
Dunlop Sport GmbH Germany HRB5726 100
Dunlop Sports Company Limied fnglond & Woles 429750 100
Dunlop Sports Group Amencas Inc United States 2047393 100
Fastchance Limited Hong Kong 174348 100
Etak Services Limited Englond & Wales 5146997 100
Euiopean Branded Clearonce Company Limited Englond & Wales 4359910 100
Evertost Avstratio Limited Englond & Wales 8103912 100
121961 (43

Everlost Fitnass Mig Comp United States 0865535) 100
Everlost Sports Internotional Inc Corp United Stotes 132811380 109
Everlost Sports Mg Corp United Stafes 131804772 100
Everlost World Boxing Headauarters Corporction United States 131804773 100
Everlost Worldwide Acquisthons int United States 4379232 100
Everlost Worldwide Inc United States 133672716 100
Exsparts Limuted England & Woles 277%040 100
Feniger And Blockburn Lirted England & Wales 639594 100
Fietd & Trek {UK) Lid England 8 Woles 5622577 100
Field & Trek Com birted fnglond & Wales 3943377 100
Firetrap Limited Englond & Wales £836684 100
foraver Media Limited Englond & Wales 8249185 100
Forever Sports Limted England & Wales 7489811 100
Guelic Boots Limited ROl 520868 100
Gelert 1P Limtad England & Woles 8576185 100
Gelert Limsted Englond & Woles 8576204 100
Golddigge Brands Limited Englond & Wolss 6636173 100
Goudie Squash International imited Enplond & Wales 280461 10D
Grodidges Limifed England & Wales 218122 100
Graduate Clothing Limited Engiand & Woles 2511038 91

Gul 1P Limded Ergland & Woles 8612478 100
Gul Watersposts Linuted England & Wales 7589714 100
Heotons Limited Irelond 11229 50

Hetven or Hell Limted England 8 Weles 5899282 51

HK Spoits & Golf Aktiebotog Sweden 556510-818% 100
Hot Tuna 1P Limsted Englond & Woles 6836792 100
1B Brond Services SA (Pty) Limied South Afnco 2006/016700/07 100
Infesnotiona) Brond Management irmted England & Walss 5142123 160
Jomes Lallywhrtes Limited Enghand & Wolss 118840 160
Kongal Holdings Lvvted Englond R Wales 3317738 100




Kongol Limeted Englond & Wales 3343193 100
Kangol Tnsstees Limited Englond & Wales 3505517 100
Kotmor Limided Englond & Wales 5215974 100
1a Jolla (UK) Limnded Englond & Wales 5737550 100
Ulhywhites Limited tngfond & Wales 290939 100
{nteseme Sportswear Limmted Englond & Wales 207867 100
Lonsdole Austrofia Limied Engfond 8 Wales 7665885 00
Lonsdale Boxing Lired Englond & Woles 3912303 100
Lonsdale Sports Limited England & Wales 4430781 100
Masters Holders Limted Englond & Wales 87687718 100
Megavahie com bmrted fagland R Wales 9544685 100
Megmaoheduact com Limrted fagland & Wales 9545879 100
Mississipp Manufociunng LLC Uniked States 3470413 100
MST Sports Retail Sdn Bhe Maloysic 925164 51

Muddylox irted England & Wales 4187350 100
NDS ehf leelond £301121760 100
Nevica B Limited Englond & Wales 6836778 100
No fear Brond Eimited England & Woles 5568043 100
No Fear Intemational Liried England & Woles 5532482 100
No Feor USA limuted Englond & Wales TN2470 100
Qldeo 10 Limred England & Woles 5541144 100
Olympus Ventures bimited England & Wales 3945752 100
QOuidoos Sports Direct Limsted Englond & Wales 7780756 100
P ¥ P Sporthase Limited England & Wales 1933891 100
Poddle Sport Linited Englond & Wales 6836690 100
Propalier (HK) Limited Hong ong 415094 100
Propeller (UK } Liuted England & Wales 2770207 100
Queensberry Boxing IP Limifed England & Wales 7929363 100
Queensberry Rules Lienined England & Wales 6723660 100
Rengars Retol Limsted England § Wales 8142409 74

Rangers Refail Rights Limited England & Wales 9210817 100
Republic P Limdted Englond & Woles 5635015 100
Republic com Relal Limiled Ergland & Wales 8248997 100
Robimsons Country Leisure Limited Englond & Wales 1204722 51

$&B Bronds Limuted Englond & Wales 5635585 100
S0 Equestren timsted England & Wales 8692780 100
SB Qutdoor [P Lirvted Englond & Wales 8560252 140
SB Outdoor limited Ergland & Wales 8560260 51

SDB2 SA Belgum 0848 964 388 160
SDI (Aberwystwyth) Limiled Englond & Wales 2789996 00
SDI (Aintree) Limited England & Wales 3352462 100
SDI {Ashford) Limuted Englond & Woles 7848460 100
SDI (Ashington) Lintted England & Woles 7849231 100
SOl {Ay1) Lmded England & Wales 5528267 100
SDI {Bangor} Limited Englond & Wales 5529705 100
SBI (Barrow in Fusness) Limited England & Wales 7851574 100
SDI {Bosddon) Lrmuted Englond § Wales 8512592 100
SDI {Beddgelert) Limited England & Wales 8577551 100
SOl {Berwick) Lirited Enghnd & Wales 2739957 100
SDI {Betwsy-(oed) Limited England & Wales 6836673 100
SOl (Birkenhead) Limated England & Wales 7849198 100
SDI {Bishop Aucklond) Lmied England & Wales 3004246 100
SDI {Bdgwater) Limuted Foglond & Wales 7852061 100
SO {Brook EU} Limrted Englond & Wales 9335830 100
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SDI {Brook ROW) Lineted England & Wales 93358056 100
SDI {Brook UK) Limeted Englond & Wales 9340379 100
5SB! {Burton) Limited Englond & Woks 495632 100
SO (Codfiske) Limred Englond & Woles 7851959 100
SDI (Chathom) Limsted Enghond & Woles 6836679 100
SDI (Clocton) Lomted Englond & Wales 7852078 100
S0I (Colchester} Limded Englard & Wales 5632790 100
SOI {Dunferméing) Limdted England & Woles 8483679 100
SO (Fast Kibade) Limted Englond & Wales 6656348 100
SDI {Epsom} Limited Enghand & Wiles 6372181 100
SD) (Exmooth) Lrnsted England & Wales 6328505 100
SOI (Futham} Limited Englond & Wales 7852037 100
SOI (Gemnsborough Limated Englond & Wales 6338907 100
SDi (Galashiek) Limted England & Woles 7852091 100
SDI (Ghoucester) Limated Englond & Wales 7852067 100
SOI (Hartlepool) Limrted England & Wales 8972499 100
SDI (Hastings) Limued England & Wales 8675693 100
SBI {Hotco) bimrted England & Wales 8319960 100
SOl {vy) 1 Lnuted England & Wales 127140 100
SDI {hvy} 2 Lineted England & Wales 9127316 100
SDI {bvy) 3 Limsted Englond & Wales 127170 100
SOI (bvy) 4 Limated Fnglond & Wales 1127387 100
SDI {hoy) 5 Lirmated Engtond & Woles 985 100
SOI {ivy) 6 bumated England & Wales g127266 100
SOl (ivy} 7 Limited Englond R Woles 9127285 100
SDI (vy} 8 Limeted England & Woles 9127300 100
SDI (Keighley} Limited England & Wales 6260237 100
SDI (Kendol) Limited England & Wales 6338918 100
SDI (Kidderminstes) Limdted England R Woles 9203731 100
SDI (Krlrnornock Limsted England & Woles 7853433 100
SBI (Kickealdy) bruted England & Wales 7852097 100
SD! (Leeds) Linufed England & Wales 9293515 100
SDI (Lowesteft) Limited England & Woles 7852265 100
501 (Negth) Limited England & Wales 7853548 100
SDI (New Covendish Street) Limited England & Wales 6306917 100
SD! (Nework) bimided England & Wales 7853470 100
SDI (Newport) Limited England & Wales 8679118 100
SOF (Newton Abbot) Limited Englond & Wales 6836666 100
SDI (Northampton} Limsted England & Wales 7852272 100
SOl {Nuneator) Limited Englond & Wales 7852249 100
SDI (Oswestry) Limied Englond & Wales 7852363 100
SOI (Possley) fimited Englord & Wales 2933408 100
SDI (Penzance) Limuted Englond & Wales 7852157 100
SDI (Peterdee) Limited Fngland & Wales 7852401 100
SDI (Plymouth) Limied England & Wales 9470468 100
SOI {Poole) imded England & Wales 5656295 0
SDI {Romsgate) Limited Englond & Wales 18527250 100
SDI (Redcar) Limsied Enpland & Wales 2131452 100
SB! (Rolle S1) Limded England & Wales 1852669 100
SDI (S¢arbosough) binited England & Wales 6328463 100
SDI (Swunthorpe) Limited England & Wales 7852055 100
SOI (Slough) Lirmted England & Wales 7852417 100
SDI (Southampton) Limied England & Wales 8512480 100
SDY (St Austell) Limtted England B Wales 78522684 100
SO) (St Helens) Limited Englard & Woles 71852281 100




SOt (Stafford) Lirrted Englond & Wales 85685681 100
SDF (Stoks Longton) Limited Englond & Wales 7853877 100
SDI (Stoke Newinglon) Limded Englond & Wales 7852207 100
SDI {Strood) Limeted Englond & Wales 7852251 100
SDi {Sunderland) bimsted Englond & Woles 8755347 100
SO {Tounton} Limrted Englond & Wales 7852191 100
SD1 {The Lion Hotel) limded England & Wales 835680 100
SDI (Wakefiekl) Limited Englond & Wales 848371 100
SDI (Waksall) bimuted England & Wales 7852289 100
SOl (Weymouth) Limited England & Wales 8716652 100
SOI (Wigon) IP Limwted England 8 Wales 4835407 100
SDI (Wigon) Retail Limuted England & Wales §208933 100
SOI (Wishow) Lmuted England & Woles §656345 100
SOl (Worksop) Limsted England & Wales 9310031 100
SO Fness (Armogh} Limrted England & Woles 9038768 100
SDI Fitness { Bedford) Limited Enghand & Wales 9038839 100
SDI Fitaess (Belfost) Limeted Englond & Wales 9038724 100
SD! Fitness (Bminghom) Limied Englond & Woles 9038982 100
SD! Fness (Bury St Edmunds) Lientted England & Wales 9038949 100
SDI Fitness {Combndge} Limrted Englond & Wales 5038881 100
SI Faness (Cheltenham) Lirted Englond & Wales $039840 100
SO Frtness (Chester) Lomuted England & Wales 9038943 100
SO Faness {Cokhestes} Limsted Englond & Wales 9039011 100
SDI Friness {Croydon) bintted England & Wales 9039243 100
SDI Fitness {Darry} Limded Englond & Wales 9039023 100
SOI Fiiness (Epsom) Limted Englend & Wales 9039043 00
SO finess (Forehom) Lenied Englond & Woles 9039057 100
S fitness {Formby) Limuted Enghond & Wales 9039895 100
SDI Fitness (Glasgow) bamted Englond & Wales 9038611 100
SD Fitness (Guiidford) Limrted England & Wales 9039269 100
SDI Fitnass (Hove) Limited England & Wales 9039030 100
SDI Fitness {Huntingdon) bimited Englond & Wales 903988) 100
SDI Fnass (K Henth} Limited Englard & Wales 9039717 100
SO Fidnass (K lyan) Limited England & Wales 9035847 100
SDI Fitnass (Kettenng) Lirnited England & Woles 9039852 100
501 Fitnass (bacoln City) Lirnsted England & Wales §039331 100
SDI Fitness {lincoln South West) Lumited Englond & Wales §039319 100
SO Fitmess (iwverpaol) Limad Englond & Wales 9039347 100
SDI Fiinass {Merdstone) Lemited England & Wales 9039343 100
SOl Friness (Monchester) limded Englond & Wales 9039339 100
SO Fiinass (Mdngavie) Limded England § Wales 9039510 100
SO Finess (Nework) Linuted Englond & Wales 9039440 100
SOl Faness (Northhield) Limited Englond & Wales 9039412 100
SDi fitnass (Poole) Limited Enghand & Woles 9039481 100
SO Fitnesss. (Rughy} Limsted Englond & Woles 9033408 100
SDI Fitnass (Sale) Lenrted Englond & Woles 9039405 100
SOl Fitness (Salisbury) Lirtted Enplond & Woles 9039429 100
SDI Golf binded England & Wales 9083512 100
SDI Uofestyle Limited fnghind & Woles 8293614 80

SOl Newco N 10 Lnrted England & Wales 9578776 100
SDi Newco No 2 Lirnited England & Wales B158679 100
SDI Newce No 4 Lirarted England & Wales 8241183 100
SDI Hewco No 5 Limited England & Woles MNbIT47 100
DI Newo No.8 Lintted England & Wales B612647 100
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SDI Newco No 9 Limited England & Walss 8576472 100
SDI Newrco Shire Limrted England & Wales 8177495 100
SDI Properties (USA) Inc United States 535872 100
SDI Properties {Wigan) Limied England & Woles 6836527 100
SDI Property Limited England & Woles 2767493 100
SD! Retonl Sesices Limited England & Wales $143303 100
S04 Retoiling Limited England & Wales 9283231 100
":: DI Shurebrook 0C imied Englond & Woles 2963189 i00
E S8l Shurebrook Limuted tngland & Wales 3016549 100
g SO Shurebrook Shop Limiled England & Wales 3018210 100
; SO1 com Friness Parent Lmted Enghond & Woles 9082454 100
] SDLS A Belgum 810198 636 100
S Serveronge Limted Enghond & Wales 2997208 100
SIA Sportland Latvio 40003530961 60
| Sk and Outdoot Warehouse Lited Englond & Woles 2917223 100
B Slazengers Austiolo Limsted Englond & Wales 9217319 100
& Skizengers limeted fnglond & Wales 116000 100
Smith & Brooks {Germany) Limred Englond & Wales 5427463 100
E Seruth: & Brooks {Indio} Limited England & Wales 2964528 100
Smith & Brooks Linsted England & Wales 2073120 100
Smith And Brooks Group Limsted England & Wales 4079331 100
Smuth And Biooks Holdings Limsted Englond 8 Wales 4983573 100
SHD Sport Vertniebs Gmbl hustno 7N m 100
Sondico 1P Levited Enghond 8 Wales 6548121 100
Sondico Professional Limded Englond & Woles J158332 51
%7 Sport Eybl & Sponts Experts Logistikbeinebs GmbH Ausino 96024 m 100
Sport Eybl Holding GmbH Austrio 180095 x 100
Sportland Festie A 'S Estonia 10677712 60
Spertlond Internotionc! Group A S Estonio 10993195 60
Sports Commission Limited Englond & Waoles 482440 100
Sparts Duect Brands Limuted England & Wales 6026039 100
Spoits Dizect Estomo A S Estonia 12495656 50
Sports Direct Holdings Limied England & Wales 6464317 100
Sports Direct Hong Kong Holdings L4 Hong Kong 1216339 100
Sposts Direct Inteinationol Holdings Lirmifed Eagland & Woles 6027131 100
Spoifs Direct Refail Lumuted England & Woles 6026013 100
Sports Essentioks Linuted Englond & Wales 4409470 100
Sports World Intemotionol Limuted England & Woles 6531266 106
Sports World The Netherands B ¥ Nethedands 34056291 100
Sportsdirect com Austrig GmbH Austno 309738y 100
Sportscuect com Belgum S A Belglum 416 268 471 100
Spartsduect com Cyprus Limted Cyprus HE 230340 100
Sportsirect com Czech Republic s 1o (zech Republc 24258933 100
Sportsdiredt com Friness Limited Englacd & Wales 8028577 100
FR27379042813
Sportsdirect com Fronce France R(S379062013 100
Sportsdiredt com Hungary K Hungary 0109 985824 100
Sportsdnact corn lmmobilien GmbH Austie 104151 p 100
Sportsdeect com Luxembourg Luxembourg 2700 3200 297 100
Sportsdiredt com Medio imited England & Wales 127526 100
Sportsdired com Polond Sp 700 Poland 452610 100
Sportsdiredt corn Pry 11d Austiofio 603 187 319 100
Spersdirect com Retoll {furped SA Belgum 458883046 100
Sportsdirect com Resorl Limited Englond & Wales 3406347 100
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Spostsduect om Slovakio 8.1 0 Slovikoo 47 240458 100
Spertsduest com SIWN o o Skwvenio 1198157000 100
Spertsdirect com Spain S LU Spamn BB6567860 100
Sportsdwect com Swiizedend AG Switzerland CHE331 683991 100
556 Sport GmbH (S50} Gemany HRB 7134 100
Stefing Resources {Holdings} Limied Englond & Woles 4651701 100
Sterfing Resources Lmited Englond & Woles 1413254 100
Stekngs {Augyle Stieet) Limated Scotiond $(088108 100
Siiub Corporation Limited England & Woles 3003584 100
Summercombe 167 Lid England & Wales 6217509 100
SWimmo fupen SA Belpum 818673906 100
Toble Tenns Pro Furope Lirmited England £ Wales 5003853 100
Tolisway Umited Hong Kong 323181 100
The Antegua Group Inc United Stotes 07346794 100
The Fiannels Group Liruted Fnglond & Wales 2318510 51

The Trodemark Lkensing Compony Limated Englond & Woles 4477879 100
Total Estates Lirmited England & Woles 4958214 100
UAB Spertlond 11 lathuoni 135039836 51

Unwversal Cydes Limeted England & Wales 1339667 100
UP Brands Lired Englond & Wales 6521633 100
US Pro [P Lumed Englond & Wales 5497914 100
USCIP Limited Englond & Wales 4836808 100
USC co uk Retodl Limited England & Wales 8617068 100
Used Tockle Limded England & Wales 7989154 100
Voo Mdert (Idestyle) bmited Englond & Wakes 8319959 100
Visonfigure Lirited Englond & Wales 2951233 10
Vaodoo Dols Brand Limited England & Woles 5323305 100
Watedine Angling Products Limited England & Woles 2696374 100
West Coast Caputal (HOFCO) Limited Scothand S(437614 100
Westminster Menufoctung 4LC United States 44358 100
Wiidiow Limited Englond & Wales 4571678 100
Willom Sykes Limyzed England & Wales 123119 100
Workd of Service International rntted England & Woles 1202465 51

World of Service Limitad England & Woles 8020729 5

Worthyfund Limited England & Wales 2955978 100
YUV Limited England & Wales 9350127 100
Yeomans Outdoors Limited Englond & Wales 8058714 51

On 13th Jonuary 2015 one of the Geoug's subskdiory enhes, West Coast Capitat (USC) Limited, wens into odmsnsstration The assets of the business were subsequently gurchased by

Reputihc com Retol Limited
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Sports Direct Interanonal pic will prowide o parental guarantes for the fallowing Unsted Kingdom icarporoted subsidianes thus ennthing them to exempiion from statutory oudit under
sechion 4794 of the Componzes Act 2006

NAME COMPANY NUMBER COMPANY NAME COMPANY NUMBER
Direct Fshing limsied 08203469 SDF (Leeds) Lrited 09293515
Dunlop Austenlia Linited 09217409 SDI (Lowestoft) Limited 07852265
Everlost Austealio Limsted 08103912 SOI (Neath) Limited 07853548
Gelert 1P Lomuted 08576185 SDI (New Cavendish Street) Limited 06306917
Gol IP Lirited 08612478 I (Newnrk) limited (07853470
Hot Tuno IP Limited 06836792 SOF (Newporl) Limuted 08679118
SI Equestnon Limeted 08692780 SDI (Newton Abbot) Limited 06836866
SD Outdoo: 1P Lamsted 08560252 SOI (Northamgpton} Limited 07852272
SO (Aberwystwyth) bimited 02789996 SOl {Muneton) Limited 07852249
SOI (untree) Limied 03352462 SOI (Oswestry) Linuted 07852363
501 (Ashford} Limeted 07848460 SD! (Parsley) Limated 07933408
DI {Ashington) Limited 07849231 SOl {Penzance) Limated 07852297
SOI {yr) Limsted (15528267 SDI (Peterlee) Limuted 07852401
SDi {Bangor) Lemited (15529705 SOi {Pymouth} imuted 09470468
S {Barsow n Fumess) Limted 07851574 SDi (Romsgate) Lirsted 07852250
SDI {Basikdon) Limuted 08512592 SDI {Redror} Limted 02731452
SBI (Beddgelert) Limited (8577551 SDI (Roffe St) Linttad 07852669
SOI (Berwick) Lemited 02739957 SD! (Scarboeough) Limuted 06328463
SDi (Betwsy-Loed} Limifed 06636673 S0 (Saunthorpe) Limded 07852055
SO (Birkenheod) Limded 07849198 SOl {Siough) Limited 07852417
SD! (Bishop Aucklond) Limuted 03004246 50! (Seuthampton) Linwled 08512480
SO1 (Bndgwater) Limited (785206 S (St Austell) Limded 07852284
SOI (Burton) Limuted 08495632 SD1 (i Helens) Limited 07852281
SO ({odisle} Limited 07851959 SDI (Stattord) Eimited 08568681
SDF (Chatham Limited 06836679 SOI (Stoke Longion) Eirmited (07853877
SO} {Clacion) Limited 07852078 SOt (Stoke Newington) Limited 07852207
SDI (Colchester) Limited 05632790 SDF (Sticod) Limiteg 07852251
SO} {Dunfermdine) Limited 08483679 SOt {Sunderlond) Limired (18755347
SDI {East Kilbrida) Limied 06656368 SDI {Taunton) Limited 07852191
SBI (Fulham) Liited 07852037 SOl {Wakefigld) Linited 0848371
SOI (Gamsborough} Linited 08338907 SDI {(Watsall) limeted 07852289
SDI (Golashrels) Limsted 0785200 SOI (Weymouth) Limited 06714652
SDI (Gloucestes) Limited 07852067 SDI {Wishaw) Liruted 06656365
SDI {Hartlepool) Lrmted 0B972499 SDI (Worksop) Limited 09310031
SDI (Hastings) Limited 08625893 SDI Golf Lernited (9083512
SOU (Kewghley) Lirmuted 06260239 D1 Praperty tmited 02747493
SO} (Kendal) Limited 06338918 SDI Retart Services Limired 08143303
SDI (Kidderminster) Limited 0920373 S0t com Filness Parent tmited 03082454
SDI {Kilmarnock) Limited 07853433 Slozengers Ausiralia Limited 0217319
SOI (Krkeakdy) Limited 07852097 Statings (Argvle Streed) Lumded S(088108




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

We figve oudired the parent company Financial Statements of Sparts Direct Intemanonal PLC for the 52 week penod ended 26 Apnd 2015 which comprsse the parent compeny bolonce
sheet and the relosed nofes The financial reporkng framework that hos been applied in the preparation of the parent company Finarciol Stotements i opphiceble law and United Kingdom
Accaunting Standgsds (Umited Kingdom Generolfy Accepted Accounting Prochice)

This teport s moda solely to the Company's members, o5 a body, in accordance with Chapte 3 of Port 16 of the Companes Act 2006 Qur oudit work hos been undertoken so thet we
mght state fo the company’s members those matters we are required ta state to them 1 an uditor's repont ond for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
uccept of ossume responsibeliy fo onyona othes than she Company and the Companry's members os o body, for our audit work, for this repart, o for the opinons we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As exploined more fully n the Directars’ Resporsibilines Statement, the duirectors ore responsible for the preparanon of the Financial Statements and for bemg sansfied that they give o
true and foir view Our responsibility s to audit and express an opinian on the Finenaal Stotements i eccordance with apphicable law ond fnfernatana! Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) Those standords require us to comply with the Audinng Practices Board's Ethical Standasds for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A descaption of the scope of an oudit of Finencinl Statements s prowded on the Financinl Reporiing Council’'s webstte af www fic org uk/ouditscopeukprvote

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our opinran the parert compony Finoncral Statements

o qve o frue and fawr view of the state of the Company's offoirs as ot 26 Apnf 2015,

 hove been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Genesally Accepted Accounting Prachice, and
= have been prepored In accordance with the requirements of the Compantes Act 2006

OTHER MATTER

We hove reported separately on the Group Firancinl Statements of Spons Direct Intesnational PLE for the 52 week penod ended 26 Apnl 20135

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opision
« the part of the Directors” Remunreranion Report to be oudited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

« tha imformatan given in the Strategic eport end Directars’ Report for the finaneral penod for which she Finanaal Statements are prepared ss consistert with the parent company
Financiol Statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following maiters where the {omponies Act 2006 reques us fo report to you ff, in our opialon

* qadequate accounting recards have nat been kept by the parent company, of refums adeguote for our audst have not been recewed from branches not visited by us, or

* the parent company Financial Statements and the part of the Birectors” Remuneration Report fo be audited are ot in agreement wath the occounting records ond returns, or
certain disclosures of dweciors” remuneration speafied by law ore not made, or

* we have not recewved all the formotion and explanohons we require for our audit

*

Philip Westerman

Senior Stafutary Auditor

For ond on beholf of Grant Thomton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chortered Accountants
London

16 Jly 2015
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AT 26 APRIL 2015

Hates (000 i
FIXED ASSETS
Investments ? 1,083,119 1,077,408
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 3 25,513 14,984
Cosh of bonk and in hand 1418 186

26,931 15,170

Creditors: amounts falling doe within one yeor 4 (112,488) (114,018)
Net current lichilities (85,557} {98,848)
Net ossets 997,562 978,560
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Colled up share capitol 5 64,060 64,060
Share premmm [ 874,300 874,300
Treasury shares reserve [ (56,234) (56,234)
Permanent contnbution to caprtol ] 50 50
Capital redemption reserve 6 8,005 8,005
(whn shore reserve [ (13,251) (13,251)
Profit and loss account b 120,632 10,630
Shareholders’ funds 7 997,562 978,560

The accomponyiag accounting pohicies ond notes form: part of these Fnangial Stotements
The Financial Stotements were opproved by the Board on 16 Judy 2015 and were signed on ifs beholf by

Dave Forsey
{hief Executive

Compony number 04035106



NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These accounts have been prepered in accordonce with appheable United Kingdom oceounting stondards A summary of he matenal accounting policies adopred ore descnbed below

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The occounts hove heen prepored under the histonical cost convention

As permutted by Sechon 408 of the Companies Act 2006, a profit ond luss account of the Company & not presented The Company's profit uftes taxation for the 52 week peaod 26 Apnl
2015 was £1,824,000 (2014 £417,000 loss}

INVESTMENTS
Fixed osset invesiments ore stoted ot cost tess any prowsion for impairment

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
Loars ond recewvobles ore recogned mmolly gt fox volue plus Tansaction costs less provision for impaarment Provision for mporsment s estoblished when there i abjective ewdence that
the company will not be able to coflect amounts due according to the ongmal terms of the recevahle

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other payables ore musally messured of fair vokue, ond are subsequently metsured of amartsed cost, using the effechive mterest method

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST
An Employee Beneft Trust has been estoblished for the purpases of saftsfyig certam shave-based awards The Group hos “de facto’ control over the spacial purpese ennty The Trust is fuly
consolidated withun the occounts

The cost of shares acquired by the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Tt s recognesed wiitun “Cwn shareseserve” n equily

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tux s prowded for on o ful provision basis on all tming diferences, which have ansen but not reversed at the balonce sheet dote No tuming differences ore recogsed m respect
of gums on safe of assets where thase gains have been rolled oves info replocement assets A deferred fox ossel 15 not recogrsed to the exient thot the ronsfer of economy benefit in
future s more unlikely thon not

Deferred tox 1s colculated on a nondiscounted besis of the tex rates that ore expected to apply i the penods in which haming differences reverse, bused on tax ates and laws enacted or
substantively enacted of the balonce sheet daie

FOREIGN CURRENCIES
Htems ansing From transanons denomimated i foreign currencees ore fronsloted ot the sate of exchange subng af the dote of the ansachon At the balonce sheer date all monefasy ossets
and liabiities denomineted in foreign curtencies aze translated ot the closing rate or ot the rofe of exchonge of which the tansaction & contracted to be setled 1n the future All exchonge

differences ore secognised in the piofit ond loss account

DIVIDENDS
Dividends o the Company’s ordinary shares are recagnised os o iability in the Compeny’s Financis! Stotements, and os ¢ deduction drom equity, in the period in which the dwidends ore

deddized Whesa such ddends ore propased subiect to the approval of the Company's shareholders, the dadends ore only declared ance shoveholder opprovel hios been abtoined

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
An egurty instrument s any contract that ewdences o residual interes? in the assefs of the Company ofter deduchng all of s habilites Equisy instruments 1ssued by the Company, with te

exceptien of those accounted for o mesger refief evailable under Sechion 612 of the Comparves Act 2006, are recorded at the praceeds recerved, net of ony dredt ssue costs

INCOME FROM GROUP UNDERTAKINGS
Income fiam Group underiakings 1 recognsed when qualfying considesatioa 1s recenved from the Group undertoking

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company has 1oken advoninge of the exemption coniained m FRS 8 ond hos therefore not disclosed tronsoctions o bolonces with wholly-owned subsidiories whuch form part of the

Group

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
The Company bos applied the requiements of ERS 20, “Shore-based Payments™ The Compony ssues equitysettled shote-based payments to cestoin Directors ond employees of the
Company and ifs subsidianes

The for volue of the share opions on the date of the grant s chasged o the profit and loss occount over the vesting penod of the share option, based on the number of options whech are
expected to become exercable A corresponding adjustment is made to equiy At each bolance sheet date the compony revises s estimates of the numbe of options that are expecied
to become exercsoble and recognises the impoct of any revesion of anginal estimates i the profit and loss account
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

The expected fife used m the model hos been adpusted, based on manogement’s best estmate, for the effects of non-tansferbility, exerase restnchions, and behaviowral consideranions
A shere-bosed payment chorge of £10,110,000 was recognsed for the 52 weeks ended 26 Apnl 2015 based on the Diractors” best esmete of she number of sheves that will vest
£9,901,000 of this share-based payment wos recharged to subsidiory undertakings of the Compony

2. INVESTMENTS
2015
{£000)
As o 27 Aped 2014 1,077,408
= ADDITIONS
E rsted imvestments 45,020
g Copidal contmbution in subsidiary 511
= DISPOSALS (45,020)
=
;
= As of 26 Apeil 2015 1,083,119
] Nome of the Company's mvestments of 26 Apni 2015 oe fisted
E The Company s the prnupol holding company of the Growp The prnapal subsidiery undenakings of the Company are set out in note 36 to the Group Fnanaial Stotements
E Dunng the year the compoay ocquired ond disposed of £45,020,000 of shares in Debenhams ple
3. DEBTORS
2015 o]
{£°000) (£000)
Amounts ewed by Group undertakings 318 318
Other debors 20,691 14512
Other toxes ond soctal secunty costs 126 154
98 Prepaymants 4,178
5,513 14 984
4, CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2015 M
{£°000) {5 000)
Trnde cieditors 424 4
Amounts owed 1o Group undertckings 111,567 112,554
Awcruols 476 13
Other faxes and sooal secunty costs 2
112,488 114,018
5. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
2015 4
{£°000) (£°000)
AUTHORISED
999,500,010 ordinary shares of 10p each 99,550 99,950
499,990 redeemabla preferenca shares of 10p each 50 50
100,000 100,000
CALLED UP ARD FULLY PAID
640,607,369 (2014 640,602 369) oidinary shares of 10p ench 64,060 4,060
SHARE CAPITAL

At 27 Agiil 2014 and 26 Apil 2015 54,060 64 060




6. RESERVES

sa.....x Treasary theire "':ﬁ muu.r.:;ﬁ O share resarve mmu:::

(£7000) (£/000) (£°000)

M 27 Apil 2014 874,300 50 101,630

Profit for the financial penod 1,824

Shere based povments 17,078

A 26 Apiit 2015 874,300 50 120,632

The Compaony holds 42,137,508 ordinary shases in Tregsury

7. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT ON SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

2015

{E£000)

Openmy shoreholders’ funds 978,540

Profit for the fmoncial penod 1,824

Share based payments 17,178

997 562

Closing sharehokders” funds

8. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
No matengl post bofonce sheet events occumed after 26 Aprl 2015 to the dote of this Annuol Report
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CONSOLIDATED FIVE YEAR RECORD
UNAUDITED INCOME STATEMENT

57 waeks snded 52 weeks ended 53 works, ended 57 woeks endled 52 weeks ended
26 Apl 2015 2 Ad 2014 78 kel 2013 (itied)* 2N 2012 24 kd 2011
(£°000) {000 (£000) &000) {5000}
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue 2,832,560 2,705,958 2,185,580 1,835,756 1,599,237
Cost of sales (1,591,748} {1,551,036) {1,290 820 (1 091,480) (340,330
Gross profit 1,240,812 1,154 922 894,758 744,276 £58,907
- Seffing, distnbution and adminssiraive expenses (950,526} {908,843} (689,578) (594,368) (521,213
§ Other operating ingome 8,345 8,583 7,199 3,268 5,28%
'g Lega! dispute 2309 (3,128)
E Imparment and accelerated depreagion {13,338) (5.531)
"g" Produl on disposal of property 10,258 1,686
g Profit on disposal of mtangible assel 625 1,624 876
Excephional rlems (3,050} {5,531) 625 5619 (2,252}
Operating profit 295,581 249,131 213,004 158,795 134,671
é Investrent ncome / {costs) 14,104 107 1473 (5,800) (9,481}
E Finance tcome 8,269 891 117 6426 2,560
a Finance costs (7,487) (19,853 (9,688) (8,481 (8,953
E Share of profit of assouated undertokings and joint ventures 2,959 2,266 £,320 558 (8}
§ Profit betore taxation 313,448 239 452 207,228 151498 118,769
Toxahion {72,093) (59,839) (55,569) (45 867) (35,566)
Profit for the pertod 241 353 179,613 151,657 105,631 83,223
Fqury holders of the Grup 240,397 180,245 151,596 106,198 84173
Norcontiolling mierests 956 (632) 6} (567) {950)
Profit for the perlod 241,353 179,613 151,657 105,631 83,223
100

*Restatement ielates 1o the adophon of the revsed IAS 19 Employee Benefits”
Notes to the corsolidated income stalement five yeor record
1 Allinformotion 1s presented under (FRS

2 The five yeor record hos been prepared oa the same basis as the Finanaal Statements for the 52 weeks ended 26 Aplf 2015, as set out n note 1, basis of preporation, of the
consofidated Finencig! Statements




COMPANY DIRECTORY

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Compatershore Investor Services ple

The Povihons

Bricgwater Road

Brstol

BS13 BAE

COMPANY SECRETARY AND REGISTERED OFFICE
Sparts Durect Intesnononal plc

Unit &, Brook Pork Eost

Shirebrock

NG20 8RY

Telephone (344 245 9200
Sporis Direct [nremanionel pl: 1 registered m Englund ond Wales (No 6035106)

SOLICITORS

Freshfields Bruckhaus Dennger
65 Fleet Street

Londan

EC4Y THS

BROKERS

(ingroup Global Markes Limited
i Cenire

Conodo Square

Canary Whart

Londan

E14518

Espmto Santo Investment Bank

The Landon Stock Exchange Bulding
10 Patemoster Square

London

ECAMTAL

Goldman Sachs Limited
Peterhorough Court
133 Flest Street
Londan

EC44 288

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Barclays Bank ple

5 The North Colonnade
Canory Whorf

London

E14 488

HSBC Bonk plc

8 Conada Square
London

E14 5HO

AUDITORS

Grany Thornton UK LLP
Grani Thormton House
Melton Street

Euston Square

London

NW1 2¢p

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Anewial Generol Meenng of the Company will be held at 11em on Wednesdoy 9
September 2015 ot Sports Direct Inernchonol ple, The Auditonum, Unit D, Brook Pork
East. Shirebrook, NG20 8RY Each shareholder 1s enntled fo attend and vote of the
meening, the arvangements for which are descnbed 1 0 separate nohce

RESULTS

For the year to 24 Apnl 2016

Half yeor results nnounced 10 December 2015
Prelminory announcement of full yeor results 7 July 2016
Annual Report crculoted July / August 2016

SHAREHOLDER HELPLINE

The Sports Direct shareholder register s maintomed by Computershare who are responsible
for makng dwadend payments and updoting the register, wcloding detas of changes fo
shareholders” addresses 1f you have o query about your shareholding n Sports Direct, you
should contoct Computershare’s Sparts Direct Shoreholder Helpline on 0370707 4030
Calls re chorged a1 stondard geogrophic retes, althaugh retwork charges may vary

Address The Pawdions, Bndgwater Road, Brstol, BS99 627
Website www computershare com

WEBSITE

The Sports Direc webisite at www sportsdirecple com provides news ond detodls of the
Lompany’s ochaties plus information for shareholders ond contoms real fime share price
data os well os the lotest results and announcements

UNSOLICITED MAIL

The Compony 15 obliged by low ta make vs shoze register publicy available and as a
consequence some shareholders may receive unsolhated mail, iacludiag from unouthonsed
investment firms

For mors nformatan on unouthonsed investment firms targeting UK investors, wisit the
website of the Finangiat Conduct Authonty of www fco org uk

1f you wish to lmit the amount of unsolicited madl you recewve contact

The Mailing Preference Service
{OMA House

70 Margaret Street

Lendon

Wiw 8ss

Telephone 020 7291 3310

Fox 0207323 4226

Emod mps@dma org uk or regester oning of
www mpsonline org vk
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